NANTUCKET MEMORIAL AIRPORT COMMISSION
February 9, 2021
Agenda
YouTube Link
https://youtu.be/xa-WR39zCDk
Zoom Webinar Registration Link
Link to register to make public comment during the meeting. After registering you will be emailed a zoom link for the meeting.

https://zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_GJ6f5yl0Q6um7qQADiB0SQ

1. Announcements
a. Chair reviews virtual meeting statement
b. This Meeting is Being Both Audio & Video Recorded
2. Review and Approve:
a. Agenda
b. 1/12/21 Draft Minutes
c. Ratify 1/20/21 and 2/3/21 Warrants
3. Pending Leases/Contracts as Set Forth on Exhibit 1, which Exhibit is Herein Incorporated by Reference
4. Pending Matters
a. 091019-01 Capital Approval Process/Home Rule Petition
b. 071420-03 Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) Investigation Update
i. 020921-1 Napoli Shkolnik PLLC Legal Firm
ii. 020921-2 PFAS Invoice Tracking
5. 020921-3 EA/EIR Review of Public Comment
6. 020921-4 Declaration of Surplus Property Bunker Road Parcel
7. 020921-5 MassDOT Grant Award- Environmental Assessment and Environmental Impact Report- $9,826.02
8. 020921-6 Proposal for Land Acquisition
9. Finance
a. 020921-7 Presented FY2022 Budget to the Finance Committee on 2/6/21
b. 020921-8 Final Financial Statement Audit FY2020
10. Manager’s Report
a. Project Updates
Remote Participation
b. RFP/Bid Status
Via Zoom and
c. Operations Update
d. Statistics
Youtube
e. Personnel Report
f. Letter of Support to NEC for Airport Manager for AAAE Position
5:00 PM
g. Airport Manager Travel
i. Annual SEC/AAAE Conference, Savannah, GA, March 28-30, 2021
ii. Annual AAAE Conference, Las Vegas, NV, July 11-13, 2021
11. Commissioner’s Comments
12. Public Comment
13. Executive Session – G.L. c.30A, §21 (a)
a. Review ES minutes of 5/28/13, 9/10/13, 1/14/14, 3/11/14, 3/25/14, 6/24/14, 8/11/15, 9/8/15, 12/8/15, 2/9/16,
9/13/16, 12/13/16, 5/11/17, 3/16/18, 4/10/18, 5/8/18, 6/12/18, 6/29/18, 7/10/18, 8/14/18, 9/11/18, 11/13/18,
12/11/18, 1/14/19, 2/12/19, 3/12/19, 4/9/19, 5/14/19, 6/11/19, 7/12/19, 8/13/19, 9/10/19, 10/8/19, 11/12/19,

12/10/19, 1/14/20, 2/11/20, 3/10/20, 4/14/20, 5/12/20, 6/9/20, 7/14/20, 7/16/20, 8/11/20, 9/8/20, 10/13/20,
11/20/20, 12/8/20 for possible release; 1/12/21 for review and possible release.
b. Clause 3: To discuss strategy with respect to the litigation regarding the Gatto Claim, where the Chair has
determined that an open session may have detrimental effect on the litigating position of the Airport Commission.
c. Clause 3: To discuss strategy with respect to the litigation regarding Walsh Part 13-Detrmination and Superior
Court Litigation, where the Chair has determined that an open session may have detrimental effect on the
litigating position of the Airport Commission.
d. Clause 3: To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining, where the Chair has determined that an open
session may have detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the Airport Commission.
e. Clause 3: To discuss strategy with respect to the litigation regarding Brosnan, where the Chair has determined that
an open session may have detrimental effect on the litigating position of the Airport Commission.
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Town of Nantucket

NANTUCKET MEMORIAL AIRPORT
14 Airport Road
Nantucket Island, Massachusetts 02554
Thomas M. Rafter, Airport Manager
Phone: (508) 325-5300
Fax: (508) 325-5306

Commissioners
Daniel W. Drake, Chairman
Arthur D. Gasbarro, Vice Chair
Anthony G. Bouscaren
Andrea N. Planzer
Jeanette D. Topham

DRAFT
AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING
January 12, 2020
The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm by Chairman Daniel Drake with the following
Commissioners present: Arthur Gasbarro, Jeanette Topham and Anthony Bouscaren.
This meeting was conducted remotely by video conference via Zoom app and broadcast on the
Town of Nantucket YouTube Channel consistent with Governor Baker’s Executive Order of
March 12, 2020, due to the current State of Emergency in the Commonwealth and due to the
outbreak of the “COVID-19 Virus”.
Airport employees present were: Tom Rafter, Airport Manager, Noah Karberg, Assistant Airport
Manager and Katy Perales, Office Manager.
Also present were Richard Doucette, New England Region of Federal Aviation Administration,
Alex Streaky, Environment Analyst from MEEPA, Brian Smith, McFarland Johnson, Inc., Jed
Merrow, McFarland Johnson, Inc., Georgie, Nugent, McFarland Johnson, Inc., Meredith Avery,
Director of Natural Resources from VHB, Donny Goris-Kolb, Planner from VHB, Jason Ross, Air
and Noise Specialist from VHB.
Mr. Drake read the Town’s virtual meeting statement.
Mr. Drake announced the meeting was being audio and video recorded.
010621-1 Draft Environmental Impact Report and Environmental Assessment (DEIR/EA)
Public Meeting- Mr. Drake explained that the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) is an evaluation
required by the State of Massachusetts per the Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act (MEPA).
The Environmental Assessment is a required evaluation by the Federal Aviation Administration
(FAA) as per the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). The complete document, a combined
evaluation, is available on the Airport’s Website. Mr. Drake reported that the public comment
period will end on January 29, 2021.
 Mr. Drake introduced the following presentations Background from the Airport planning

perspective:
- Alex Strysky, MEPA, reviewed the purpose of MEPA, when MEPA is
required, MEPA review for Nantucket Airport and information for submitting
comments.
Nantucket Memorial Airport

Page 2 of 321

Basic Annual Financial Statements

-

Richard Doucette, FAA, reviewed the purpose of NEPA, federal regulations
and FAA regulations and guidance.
 Proposed Projects and Impacts- Jed Merrow, McFarland Johnson Inc. reviewed the
following proposed projects, summarized their environmental impacts and indicated the
schedule for the most current projects. - Runway 6-24 rehabilitation or reconstruction
- Decommissioning of runway 12-30 and conversion to Taxiway C
- Replacement of airfield lighting home-run cables
- Construction of runway 24 high-speed taxiway
- South apron expansion- potential noise abating berm
- Relocation of Taxiway G
- Relocation perimeter road and fence
- Construction of Nobadeer Farm Road crew quarters
- Construction of ground service equipment building
- Expansion of marine storage facility
- Project Schedule
 Public Comment on DEIR/EATom Sydlowski, President of The Surfside Association, believes that the Association’s
members will be affected by the South apron expansion and expressed the following
concerns: 1) noise and odor from parked aircrafts 2) the noise berm is not definitely
included in the south apron expansion project 3) there are no plans for additional Ground
Power Units (GPU) or mobile units, and 4) there are no plans for water runoff.
Meredith Lepore, resident, has concerns with the priority for these projects when PFAS
has not been completely remediated. She also asked why additional aircraft parking isn’t
going on the opposite side of the airport. Ms. Lepore also has concerns with noise pollution.
 Commissioners Comments

Mr. Gasbarro explained that he believes the noise berm should be a condition of approval
of the south apron expansion project.
Mr. Drake explained that the runway and taxiway projects, including the south apron
expansion, are all projects that the FAA has high on its priority list for the Airport to
accomplish for safety reasons.
Additional comments can be submitted to Alex Strysky at alexander.strysky@mass.gov or
via MEPA Public Comments Portal by 1/29/2021. For other questions email Noah Karberg
at nkarberg@nantucketairport.com or 508-325-7531.
 Concluding Remarks

1/12/21 Airport Commission Meeting
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Mr. Drake asked for comments on the Agenda; hearing none, the Agenda was adopted.
Mr. Bouscaren made a Motion to approve the 11/20/20 draft minutes. Second by Mr. Gasbarro
and Passed by the following roll call vote:
Ms. Topham- Abstain
Mr. Bouscaren- Aye
Mr. Gasbarro- Aye
Mr. Drake- Aye

Ms. Topham made a Motion to approve the 12/8/20 draft minutes. Second by Mr. Gasbarro and
Passed by the following roll call vote:
Ms. Topham- Aye
Mr. Bouscaren- Aye
Mr. Gasbarro- Aye
Mr. Drake- Aye

Ms. Topham made a Motion to ratify the 12/16/20 and 1/6/21 Warrants. Second by Mr. Bouscaren
and Passed by the following roll call vote:
Ms. Topham- Aye
Mr. Bouscaren- Aye
Mr. Gasbarro- Aye
Mr. Drake- Aye

Pending Leases/Contracts – Mr. Rafter presented for approval the following agreements and
contracts:
 Nantucket Regal Group, LLC DBA Crosswinds Restaurant- Lease amendment for
COVID rent abatement in the amount of $90,933 for 50% of restaurant rent and 100% of
retail rent from March 2020 to February 2021.
 A Taste Nantucket- Catering license agreement for catering at the airport. $1,500 annual
business fee applies plus 25% airport catering fee.
 L3Harris Technologies, Inc.- contract in the amount of $49,500 for public view flight
tracking software license. This is a three (3) year agreement that expires 2/28/2024.
 Infax, Inc.- Contract in the amount of $37,680 for system support for the flight information
display to help diagnose software and hardware problems. This is a three (3) year
agreement that expire 12/31/2023.
 Passur Aerospace- Contract in the amount of $79,200 for flight tracking software. This is
a three (3) year agreement that expires on 1/31/2024.
 Water Filtration of New England DBA Culligan- contract amendment in the amount of
$2,221 for additional work needed related to unknown site conditions. New contract
amount including the amendment is $57,521.33. Expiration date extended to 6/30/2021.
Mr. Bouscaren made a Motion to approve the contracts and agreements as shown on exhibit 1
Second by Ms. Topham and Passed by the following roll call vote:
Ms. Topham- Aye
Mr. Bouscaren- Aye
Mr. Gasbarro- Aye
1/12/21 Airport Commission Meeting
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Mr. Drake- Aye
Pending Matters – Mr. Rafter reported on:
 091019-01 Capital Approval Process/Home Rule Petition- Mr. Rafter reported that
Article 94 in the warrant was passed at Annual Town Meeting (ATM) and has been sent
to the state. Mr. Karberg has reached out to State Representatives and has established a
frequency schedule to check on progress.
071420-03 Per- a polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) Investigation Update- Mr. Karberg
reviewed an updated PFAS template showing numbers for Madequecham Valley Road,
Monohansett and Nobadeer Way in the following categories• Access Agreements
• Sampling Status
• Test Results
• POETs winterized
• Homes closed/unoccupied
• Residences with Bottled Water
• Connections to Town Water
Mr. Karberg reviewed the updated ground water contours map.
Mr. Karberg explained that a new soils data set has been received. This data will be included in
the January Immediate Response Action (IRA) report update. This data will also be released on
the PFAS website. Mr. Karberg explained that this data will include the range of soil impacts
across the historical AFFF release sites, the results of the leasehold investigation and the results
of the additional monitoring wells on Airport property that were rehabilitated and sampled.
Mr. Karberg explained the Airport and consultants held a meeting on 12/29/2020 regarding water
service for residents of the Nobadeer Way/Evergreen are where water is available, but those
homes are not connected to municipal water. Only one out of seven affected residents were able
to attend, but additional residents reviewed the recording. In this meeting the Airport and
consultants reviewed the next steps and procedures for connection to the water main. The next
step is to schedule site visits with each resident and draw up specific site actions.
Mr. Karberg reviewed the water main map. Mr. Karberg explained that the water main was
originally going to be installed using trench and fill. However, the surveys that would be
necessary to obtain approval for this approach would delay the project for up to a year. Mr.
Karberg reported that the Airport is proposing directional drilling at the areas highlighted in red
on the map. Through the consultant, the new plan reflecting the directional drilling components.
This has been submitted to the state’s Division of Fisheries and Wildlife.
Mr. Karberg explained that step out sampling has been completed. There are five (5) POET
systems awaiting installation.

120820-2 Airport Lighting Policy- Mr. Rafter reported that the draft lighting policy as presented
has been coordinated with the town and references the town lighting by-law. The Airport has
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identified the town’s lighting enforcement officer with whom the airport will correlate with on all
lighting projects.
Mr. Bouscaren made a Motion to approve the lighting policy as submitted. Second by my
Gasbarro and Passed by the following roll call vote:
Ms. Topham- Aye
Mr. Bouscaren- Aye
Mr. Gasbarro- Aye
Mr. Drake- Aye
010621-2 Declaration of Surplus Property 14 Airport Road Parcel- Concession Space- Mr.
Rafter reported this is required for the concession space located in the tent. A Request for Proposals
(RFP) will be issued.
Mr. Gasbarro made a Motion to declare the area of surplus property as stated above. Second by
Mr. Bouscaren and Passed by the following roll call vote:
Ms. Topham- Aye
Mr. Bouscaren- Aye
Mr. Gasbarro- Aye
Mr. Drake- Aye

Finance- Mr. Rafter reported on:
010621-3 Consideration of Taxi Fees- Mr. Rafter requested the commission to allow the Airport
to charge taxi cabs a fee of $200 as opposed to $400 for the 2021 season due to COVID-19. This
is a temporary reduction.
Ms. Topham made a Motion to approve the recommendation to reduce the taxi charge from $400
to $200 for the 2021 season. Second by Mr. Bouscaren and Passed by the following roll call
vote:
Ms. Topham- Aye
Mr. Bouscaren- Aye
Mr. Gasbarro- Aye
Mr. Drake- Aye
010621-4 December Fuel Sales- Mr. Rafter reported that December fuel sales are down 42% or
$146,656 due to the pandemic and its impacts. Jet A gallons sold was down 36%, AVGas gallons
was down 38% and year to date total fuel sales was down 17% or $1.4 Million.
He also reported that under the federal Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021 was passed and
the Airport may receive up to $1.4 Million in funding for costs related to operations, personnel,
combatting the spread of pathogens at the Airport through extra janitorial services for cleaning,
sanitization, and debt service payments.
Manager’s Report
Project Updates – Mr. Rafter reported:
 Taxiway E- there was an aircraft incident on the closed portion of taxiway E. Meeting with
the design team to review phasing and scheduling for the remainder of the project.
 Security Project Phase II- Work continues. Conduits are being installed in the terminal,
FBO and ARFF buildings. Trenching to take place in February.
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 Fuel Farm Rehabilitation- Finance committee approved the supplemental funding

request. Bids will be available March 10, 2021, sub bids will be due April 12, 2021 and bid
opening for general contractors will be due May 3, 2021 to enable additional appropriation
requests to be ready for Annual Town Meeting (ATM) which will take place on June 5,
2021.
RFP/IFB Bid Status – Mr. Rafter reported on:
 Bunker Road Land #32- deadline for Request for Proposal (RFP) for additional land
located on Bunker Road has been extended to January 29, 2021.
 Aircraft Tug- Reissuing bids. Bids due January 29, 2021.
 Security System Maintenance Program- developing an RFP for a long-term maintenance
program of the security system.

Operations – Mr. Rafter reported:
 Received initial information regarding summer flights for the Airlines-JetBlue at peak will have ten (10) flights a day
-American will have five (5) flights a day and includes Philadelphia and
Charlotte
-United will bring back Newark service with three (3) flights a day.
 Maintenance staff has started developing a scheduled maintenance plan for storm water
facilities following the receipt of the Jacobs Engineering, Inc. inventory. Staff will begin
with routine inspections with the landside structures and more robust inspections for the
structures where work was previously noted.
 COVID vaccines for Airport emergency personnel will begin January 13, 2021.
Statistics – Mr. Rafter reviewed the October and November 2020 statistics:
October 2020 Operations are up 7.65% from October 2019; and up 29.90% from last FYTD.
 Enplanements are down 38.80% from October 2019; and down 60.97% from last FYTD.
 Jet A Gallons are up 76.03% from October 2019; and down 8.02% from last FYTD.
 Jet A Gallons are up 59.80% from November 2019.
 AvGas Gallons are up 6.55% from October 2019; and down 18.27% from last FYTD.
 AvGas Gallons are down 20.54% from November 2019.
 Freight is up 19.11% from October 2019; and up 8.02% from last FYTD.
 12 Noise complaints were filed for October 2020 compared to 0 in October 2019.
November 2020 Operations are down 22.37% from November 2019; and down 29.22% from last FYTD.
 Enplanements are down 23.14% from November 2019; and down 59.87% from last FYTD.
 Jet A Gallons are up 59.80% from November 2019; and down 6.41% from last FYTD.
 Jet A Gallons are down 35.99% from December 2019.
 AvGas Gallons are down 20.54% from November 2019; and down 18.51% from last
FYTD.
 AvGas Gallons are down 38.09% from December 2019.
 Freight is up 61.89% from November 2019; and up 14.98% from last FYTD.
 0 Noise complaints were filed for November 2020 compared to 2 in November 2019.
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Personnel Report- Mr. Rafter reported:
 An administrative staff member tested positive for COVID and an FBO employee was in
contact with someone that has tested postage for COVID. All appropriate action has been
taken.
Commissioners CommentsMr. Gasbarro reported that there were some storm water basins that were not found as part of the
Jacobs Engineering, Inc. investigation and asked if there would be follow up in trying to find those.
Mr. Rafter said that they will look into it.
Mr. Drake reported that he has prepared and sent to the Commissioners a proposed response to an
email that was received from Peter McKay, Monohanssett resident, representing a number of
residents in that area, questioning the proposed timeline for the water main extension and. Mr.
Drake asked the Commission to review the draft response and let Mr. Karberg know if they have
any comments before it is sent.

Public CommentNone.
Having no further business for Open Session, Ms. Topham made a Motion to go into Executive
Session, under G.L. Chapter 30A, Section 21A, not to return to Open Session, to review Executive
Session Minutes as enumerated on the Agenda; Clause 3: To discuss strategy with respect to the
litigation regarding Walsh, where the Chair has determined that an open session may have
detrimental effect on the litigating position of the Airport Commission; Clause 3: To discuss
strategy with respect to collective bargaining, where the Chair has determined that an open session
may have detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the Airport Commission. Second by Mr.
Bouscaren and Passed unanimously, by the following roll-call vote:
Ms. Topham- Aye
Mr. Bouscaren- Aye
Mr. Gasbarro- Aye
Mr. Drake- Aye
Meeting adjourned at 5:31pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Lillian Sylvia, Recorder
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Master List of Documents Used
1/12/20 Agenda including Exhibit 1
EA/EIR Presentation
11/20/20 Draft Minutes
12/8/20 Draft Minutes
12/6/20 Warrant Approvals
1/6/20 Warrant Approvals
Nantucket Regal Group, LLC Lease Amendment
A Taste of Nantucket Catering License Agreement
L3Harris Technologies, Inc. Contract
Infax, Inc. Contract
Passur Aerospace Contract
Water Filtration of New England Contract Amendment
PFAS Update
PFAS Groundwater Map (Handout)
Waterman Map (Handout)
Airport Lighting Policy
Declaration of Surplus Property 14 Airport Road Parcel- Concession Space
October 2020 Monthly Statistical Report
November 2020 Monthly Statistical Report
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Exhibit 1
Pending Leases/Contracts/Agreements
2/9/2021
Type

With

Amount

Other Information

Source of Funding

Extends Lease Term For Service through Jan 3, 2021

Lease Amendment

JetBlue Airways Corporation

$6,300

Tenant Shall Pay $3,150/month

Income

Deicing Services Language Added
Merger of Tenant into a Subsidiary of

Consent to Assignment

Fly Blade, Inc.

N/A

Experience Investment Corp., and

N/A

Name Change of Tenant to Blade Urban Air Mobility, Inc.
Terminal Airline Agreement

Operating Agreement

Southern Airways

$35,300

Plus $1500 Annual Business Fee & $960 Intercom Fee

Income

Plus Landing Fees
Office/Storage Space Sublease between Airport Gas Station and

Consent to Sublease

Airport Gas Station, Inc.

N/A

Kevin Dineen, LLC, DBA Nantucket Electrical Contractors Inc.

N/A

2 Year Sub-Lease
Amendment No. 1

Contract Amendment

Water Filtration of New England,
DBA Culligan

N/A

Expiration Date Extended to 9/30/21

Capital

POET Activation Delay Till Spring 2021 for Winterized Homes
Amendment No. 1

Contract Amendment

McFarland Johnson Inc.

($155,319)

MJ-PN-01 PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance
Expanded Investigation Support

Capital

New Contract Amount Including Amendment is $1,118,319.07
Amendment No. 1

Contract Amendment

McFarland Johnson Inc.

$101,933

MJ-PN-04 Nobadeer Way Study Area
Change in Project Deliverables from POET to Water Service

Capital

New Contract Amount Including Amendment is $423,810

Nantucket Memorial Airport
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Exhibit 1
Pending Leases/Contracts/Agreements
2/9/2021
Type

With

Amount

Other Information

Source of Funding

Supplemental Agreement No 2

Lease Amendment
Contract
Amendment

JetBlue
Airways Corporation
Jacobs
Engineering
Group, Inc.

$6,300
($97,841)

Reconstruct, Strengthen, Mark, Light, & Sign Taxiway E
Increase Residential Engineering Days

Income
Capital

New Contract Amount Including Amendment is 1,392,644.52
Change Order No. 1

Contract Amendment

Lawrence Lynch Corporation

($3,141,051)

Reconstruct, Strengthen, Mark, Light, & Sign Taxiway E
Addition to the Scope

Capital

New Contract Amount Including Amendment is $19,118,354.50
Task Order MJ-PN-09

Contract

McFarland Johnson Inc.

($72,553)

Continued PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance

Capital

Fuel Farm PFAS Investigation
Task Order

Contract

McFarland Johnson Inc.

TBD

Continued PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance

Capital

Plume Identification
Plume Identification

Pending
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CONSENT OF LANDLORD
The Town of Nantucket (“Town”) acting by and through the Nantucket Memorial
Airport Commission, a commission established pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws
Chapter 90, Section 51E, as amended (the “Landlord”), with a principal place of business at 14
Airport Road, Nantucket, MA 02554, as Landlord under the Lease and Operating Agreement
entered into with Fly Blade, Inc., as Tenant, having a mailing address of 499 East 34th Street,
New York, NY 10016, dated as of June 29, 2018 (the “Lease”), hereby approves pursuant to
Section 13.2 of the Lease the merger of Tenant into a subsidiary of Experience Investment
Corp., and name change of Tenant to Blade Urban Air Mobility, Inc. (the “Transfer”).
Landlord hereby confirms that the Lease is in full force and effect between the Landlord and the
Tenant. Landlord’s approval and consent hereunder shall not be deemed a waiver of any of the
Landlord’s rights to consent to any future assignments of the Tenant or subletting of the premises
demised thereby.
Dated:
LANDLORD:
NANTUCKET MEMORIAL AIRPORT
COMMISSION
By:
Name:
By:
Name:
By:
Name:

{A0619910.2 }
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Approval Date
MJ Project # 18691.01
Contract #___________
PO #________________
Vendor #_____________

TASK ORDER
AUTHORIZATION
NO. MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1
PROJECT:

PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance
Nantucket Memorial Airport

DATE OF ISSUANCE:

February 9, 2021

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The items of work to be accomplished under this Task Order include
the following and are further described on the attached Scope of
Work (6 pages):
The CONSULTANT will provide professional services for PFAS
program management and mitigation assistance at the Nantucket
Memorial Airport in Nantucket, Massachusetts, within the hours
listed in the attached fee proposal. The CONSULTANT’s work shall
be undertaken in accordance with the attached Scope of Work.

METHOD OF COMPENSATION:
Not to exceed fee based on actual cost plus fixed fee. See attached detail contained in the Scope
of Work and Fee Proposal.

AMOUNT OF COMPENSATION:
The original Task Order authorized for Nine Hundred Sixty-Three Thousand and Zero Cents
($963,000.00) will be increased by One Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand, Three Hundred Nineteen
Dollars and Seven Cents ($155,319.07) and maximum amount to be paid to the CONSULTANT by
the SPONSOR under this Task Order shall be One Million, One Hundred Eighteen Thousand, Three
Hundred Eighteen Dollars and Sixty-Six Cents ($1,118,319.07) unless this Task Order is amended
in writing and agreed to by the SPONSOR and CONSULTANT.

The Agreement Between the Town of Nantucket and McFarland-Johnson, Inc. for Airport On-Call
Planning & Architectural Services for Multiple Projects dated June 9, 2020, shall govern all TASK
ORDERS executed under this Assignment, unless modified in writing and agreed to by SPONSOR
and CONSULTANT.

Task Order No. MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1

Page 1 of 2

Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT) Aeronautics Division
Contract Approval
The MassDOT Aeronautics Division, on this ________ day of __________, 20___, hereby approves
Task Order MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1 between the Nantucket Memorial Airport and McFarlandJohnson, Inc. for the Engineering Services in connection with:

PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance
Nantucket Memorial Airport
Nantucket, Massachusetts
This Approval is granted in accordance with Section 51K, Chapter 90 of the General Laws of
Massachusetts, as amended, and in no way makes the MassDOT Aeronautics Division a party to the
Contractor and in no way interferes with the rights of either of the principals here above, and is not
to be considered as a commitment of funding unless a grant is issued by MassDOT Aeronautics
Division.

Dr. Jeffrey DeCarlo, Ed.D., PMP, ATP, Administrator
MassDOT Aeronautics Division

February 9, 2021
Nantucket Memorial Airport
Scope of Work
Task Order No.: MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1
PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance
Introduction
Nantucket Memorial Airport (SPONSOR) and McFarland Johnson (CONSULTANT)
entered into an agreement titles Task Order No.: MJ-PN-01 dated July 14, 2020 and Task
Order No.: MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1, dated September 2, 2020. This is Task Order No.:
MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1 (AMENDMENT 1) which revises the scope and fee on all seven
tasks in the original agreement due to additional services requested by the SPONSOR.
Text in bold describes modifications to the scope of work in the original agreement.
Section A. – Services
A1. The following services were included in the original task order and are further
updated below by AMENDMENT 1 and within the hours included in the attached
Amendment 1 Summary of Fees (Exhibit A):








Task 1 Design and Construction Services for POET System Installations
Task 2 Emergency POET System Waiver Support
Task 3 Continued Drinking Water Testing and Reporting
Task 4 Public Involvement and Communication Protocol
Task 5 Western Residential Drinking Water Sampling
Task 6 MCP Phase I and Tier Classification
Task 7 Source Area Investigation

1. Task 1 Design and Construction Services for POET System
Installations
This task assumed the design and bidding for POET systems.
The SPONSOR has requested that the CONSULTANT modify the
documents to rebid this project.
AMENDMENT 1 includes modifying the instructions to bidders, and
the invitation to bid; coordination with the airport regarding creating a
newspaper advertisement, coordinating with bid docs online,
scheduling, and attending an additional pre-bid meeting.
Weston’s scope and assumptions are described in further detail in Exhibit B.
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2. Task 2 Emergency POET System Waiver Support
This task assumed that the SPONSOR would prepare a Massachusetts
Division of Capital Asset Management (DCAM) bidding waiver request to
allow the selection of a contractor to install up to four POET systems without
complying with the public bid requirements of MGL Chapter 149. Seven
POET systems have been installed under a waiver and one system
partially installed. Of these, two were designed and installed under the
scope as planned although the plumbing fee for both fell into a higher
cost bracket due to difficult installation where only one installation
was assumed to fall within that category. The procurement of the
remaining three systems was completed directly through ACK with the
CONSULTANT support and the CONSULTANT provided oversight,
coordination and O&M visits.
Weston’s scope and assumptions are described in further detail in Exhibit B.
3. TASK 3 Continued Drinking Water Testing and Reporting
The CONSULTANT will assist the SPONSOR in management and oversite
of the continued drinking and ground water testing and reporting program
related to the MassDEP NOR. This will include the CONSULTANT using
Weston as a subconsultant to conduct groundwater sampling and reporting
for one year.
The scope and fee for this task has not changed.
.
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4. TASK 4 Public Involvement and Communication Protocol
The CONSULTANT will continue to assist the SPONSOR in the public
involvement activities. The following subtasks were updated as referenced
below:
•

•

•

•

Create a project website similar in style to the Nantucket
Memorial Airport (ACK) website that will serve as an information
portal for the public related to the PFAS releases and off-airport
contamination. The website will consist of a home page, one
subpage, and a contact page with a contact form and phone
number. The contact form submissions and phone calls from
members of the public will be received by CONSULTANT. The
website link will be provided to SPONSOR for posting on the
ACK website.
The website was expanded beyond the two pages. Contact
form is transmitted to CONSULTANT and SPONSOR.
CONSULTANT will keep the project website up-to-date with
information about the project, testing, and other appropriate
information such as MassDEP fact sheets, U.S. EPA
factsheets, site reports, milestones and public meetings.
Updates will occur every three weeks if needed. Updates and
maintenance to the website will be conducted for a one-year
period. The SPONSOR will provide any information that is
wished to be included in the website updates to the
CONSULTANT.
No change. Updates to website are completed as needed,
not on a three-week rotation.
CONSULTANT will prepare up to 10 press releases for
SPONSOR review and issuance by the SPONSOR to local
media. Press release support will be ongoing for a one-year
period. Two (2) rounds of revisions are assumed for each press
release.
No change.
CONSULTANT will serve as the point of contact to the general
public and CONSULTANT will respond to public inquiries and
comments in consultation with SPONSOR and SPONSOR’S
legal counsel.
SPONSOR has served as the point of contact and is
expected to stay the same. The CONSULTANT continues
to provide general input and guidance on public inquiries.
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•

•

•

CONSULTANT will maintain a log of public comments and
inquiries received and responses provided. The log will be
available for review by SPONSOR or SPONSOR’S legal
counsel.
CONSULTANT has assisted SPONSOR with this task;
however, SPONSOR has taken the lead, and this is
expected to stay the same.
CONSULTANT will set up, host and lead three public meetings
(virtual format). CONSULTANT will prepare presentation
materials in consultation with SPONSOR and will prepare
meeting summaries. SPONSOR will advertise the public
meeting.
This is expected to be the same.
CONSULTANT will develop up to three presentations
(estimated at 20 slides each) on the project progress and other
salient details for posting on the project website.
This is expected to be the same.

The following subtasks were added to this task at the request of
the SPONSOR and were not included in the original scope and
fee:
• Translation of public notices, presentation materials, and
website materials from English to Spanish
• NCTV public meeting coordination
• Creation of a Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) document
for public distribution
• Creation of an e:newsletter to facilitate public outreach on
project updates and announcements.
• Additional staff attendance at public meetings. It was
assumed that only the LSP (Weston) was requested to
attend meetings. The MJ PFAS Lead has also attended and
assisted with meeting preparation.
• Direct Expenses: DayBreak Nantucket and Inquirer and
Mirror legal notice and publishing fee for the three public
meetings
Weston’s scope and assumptions are described in further detail in Exhibit B.
5. TASK 5 Western Residential Drinking Water Sampling
This task assumed up to 22 properties adjacent to the airport property would
be sampled. To date, 35 properties have been sampled. All supply wells
(23 assumed) on each property would be sampled on properties
included in the sampling event. To date, a total of 40 drinking water
samples have been collected due to step out requirements and multiple
wells on several properties.
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Ongoing monthly sampling of POET systems is also required. This
includes 12 samples plus 3 quality control samples each month.
Weston’s scope and assumptions are described in further detail in Exhibit B.
6. TASK 6 MCP Phase I and Tier Classification
As required by 310 CMR 40.0480 and 40.0500 for classification of a
disposal site, a Phase I and Tier Classification was completed for the Site
and submitted to MassDEP in December 2020 (March 3, 2021 was
original date). The fee for the legal publication was three times the
estimated cost and additional labor was required for meetings, review,
and additional source area information.
Weston’s scope and fee, and assumptions are described in further detail in
Exhibit B.
7. TASK 7 Source Area Investigation
A source area investigation in the vicinity of historical releases of PFAS
compounds is required as part of the IRA Plan Modification written in a letter
by the MassDEP dated July 1, 2020. Five of eight known historical AFFF
usage or storage areas at Nantucket Memorial Airport were included in
the source soil investigation task. However, since approval, an
additional release area (NFD Drill Area) has been discovered and
additional soil samples (7) were collected in the proposed path of the
water line. In addition, the following tasks were added or modified from
the original task order.


The private utility location required two additional days of field
effort due to the additional source area and necessary
coordination.



Rather than collecting composite samples at each of the release
areas, discrete samples were collected from each location to better
define the areas of PFAS impact.



One additional groundwater monitoring well, ACK-10, previously
thought to have been destroyed was located and sampled.



Additional coordination and meetings with Jacobs, Weston, and
MassDEP to discuss impacts of the source area investigation on
capital projects.

Weston’s scope and assumptions are described in further detail in Exhibit B.
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A.2.

In conjunction with the performance of the foregoing SERVICES, CONSULTANT
shall provide the following submittals/deliverables (documents) to SPONSOR:
There is no change.

Section B. – Schedule
There is no change. Services included in this task order are included
through June 30, 2021.
Section C. – SPONSOR’s Responsibilities
There is no change.
Section D. – Assumptions
There is no change. Weston’s assumptions are included in Exhibit B.
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EXHIBIT A
CONSULTANTS SUMMARY OF FEES

Consultant's Fee Proposal

Appendix 'A' Summary of Fees
Task Order No. MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1
Nantucket Memorial Airport
Nantucket, MA
Professional Services For
Amendment to PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance

February 9, 2021

TASK
1.0
2.0
3.0
4.0
5.0
6.0
7.0

AMEND. 1 AMEND. 1 MJ
AMEND 1
MJ HOURS
Weston FEE
FEE

DESCRIPTION
Design and Constr. Services for POET
System Installation
POET System Waiver Support
Continued Drinking Water Testing and
Reporting
Public Involvement and Communications
Western Residential Drinking Water
Sampling
MCP Phase I and Tier Classification
Source Area Investigation
Total
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TOTAL
PREVIOUS
FEE

TOTAL
AMEND. 1

TOTAL FEE W/
AMEND. 1

164

$ 24,785.09

$ (38,083.64) $ (13,298.55) $ 116,500.00

$

103,201.45

94

$ 16,814.10

$

-

$ 16,814.10

$ 112,500.00

$

129,314.10

0

$

$

-

$

$ 474,500.00

$

474,500.00

-

-

171

$ 28,399.38

$

8,968.66

$ 37,368.04

$ 91,000.00

$

128,368.04

16

$

3,204.92

$ 54,746.21

$ 57,951.13

$ 97,500.00

$

155,451.12

4
100

$
901.07
$ 17,608.55

$ 1,556.91
$ 36,417.81

$ 2,457.98
$ 54,026.36

$ 18,000.00
$ 53,000.00

$
$

20,457.98
107,026.36

549

$ 91,713.12

$ 63,605.95

$ 155,319.07

$ 963,000.00

$

1,118,319.07
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Consultant's Fee Proposal
FEE SCHEDULE
Task Order No. MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1
Professional Services For
Amendment to PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance
Nantucket Memorial Airport
February 9, 2021
Task 1.0 Design and Constr. Services for POET System Installation
Sub
Project
Sr. Project
Description
Task
Principal
Manager
1.1
1.2
1.3

Reg.Environ.
Sr. Environ.
Director
Project Engineer

Scope of Work Preparation

12

Technical Proposal Review and
Submittal Reviews
Construction/Commissioning Quality
Assurance

Asst.
Engineer

Jr.
Engineer

Sr.
Technician

Admin.
Profess.

Subtotals

12

24
80

40

20

Total Hours

0

Hourly Rate $

70.06

Direct Cost $

-

40
$

12

12

100

73.10

$

67.40

$

65.00

$ 2,924.00

$

808.80

$

780.00

$

35.30

$ 3,530.00

0

0

0

164

$

-

$

-

$

21.00

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

TOTAL HOURS
Weston Solutions
TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS

$ (38,083.64)
$
$ (38,083.64)

164

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST

OVERHEAD @
Travel/Mileage/Rental Car/Gasoline
Hotel/per diem
Printing/Postage/Miscellaneous
TOTAL EXPENSES
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TOTAL LABOR COST
$

-

$

-

8,042.80

FEE @

$

8,042.80

180.15% $

14,489.10

$

22,531.90

10% $

2,253.19

SUBTOTAL

$

24,785.09

TOTAL EXPENSES

$

TOTAL OUTSIDE SERVICES

$ (38,083.64)

TOTAL TASK

$ (13,298.55)

-
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Consultant's Fee Proposal
FEE SCHEDULE
Task Order No. MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1
Professional Services For
Amendment to PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance
Nantucket Memorial Airport
February 9, 2021
Task 2.0 POET System Waiver Support
Sub
Description
Task
2.1

Review

2.2

Meetings/Correspondence

Project
Principal

Sr. Project
Manager

Reg.Environ.
Sr. Environ.
Director
Project Engineer

30

Asst.
Engineer

8

16

8

46

16

0

Hourly Rate $

70.06

$

73.10

$

67.40

$

65.00

$

35.30

Direct Cost $

-

$

3,362.60

$

1,078.40

$

-

$

847.20

TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS

$
$
$
$

Sr.
Technician

0

-

24

0
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4

66

4

28

8

94

$

-

$

-

$

21.00

$

-

$

-

$

168.00

5,456.20
94

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST

FEE @
-

$

TOTAL HOURS

TOTAL LABOR COST

Travel/Mileage/Rental Car/Gasoline
Hotel/per diem
Printing/Postage/Miscellaneous
$

Subtotals

0

OVERHEAD @

TOTAL EXPENSES

Admin.
Profess.

24

Total Hours

Weston Solutions

Jr.
Engineer

$

5,456.20

180.15% $

9,829.34

$

15,285.54

10% $

1,528.55

SUBTOTAL

$

16,814.10

TOTAL EXPENSES

$

-

TOTAL OUTSIDE SERVICES

$

-

TOTAL TASK

$

16,814.10
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Consultant's Fee Proposal
FEE SCHEDULE
Task Order No. MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1
Professional Services For
Amendment to PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance
Nantucket Memorial Airport
February 9, 2021
Task 3.0 Continued Drinking Water Testing and Reporting
Sub
Project
Sr. Project
Description
Task
Principal
Manager

Reg.Environ.
Sr. Environ.
Director
Project Engineer

Asst.
Engineer

Jr.
Engineer

Sr.
Technician

Admin.
Profess.

Subtotals

3.1

Document Review

0

3.2

Access Agreement/Site
Assessment Support

0

3.3

Meetings/Correspondence

0

Total Hours

0

Hourly Rate $

70.06

$

73.10

$

67.40

$

54.60

$

35.30

Direct Cost $

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$

-

$

-

$

21.00

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

TOTAL HOURS

0

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST
Weston Solutions

$

OVERHEAD @
TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS

$

$

-

180.15% $

-

$

-

10% $

-

$

-

-

-

TOTAL LABOR COST
FEE @

Travel/Mileage/Rental Car/Gasoline
SUBTOTAL
Hotel/per diem
Printing/Postage/Miscellaneous
TOTAL EXPENSES
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$

-

TOTAL EXPENSES

$

-

TOTAL OUTSIDE SERVICES

$

-

TOTAL TASK

$

-
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Consultant's Fee Proposal
FEE SCHEDULE
Task Order No. MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1
Professional Services For
Amendment to PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance
Nantucket Memorial Airport
February 9, 2021
Task 4.0 Public Involvement and Communications
Sub
Project
Description
Task
Principal
4.1
4.1.1
4.1.2
4.1.3
4.2
4.3
4.3.1
4.3.2
4.4

Sr. Project
Manager

Reg.Environ.
Sr Environ.
Director
Project Engineer

Sr. Environ.
Planner

Asst
Engineer

Sr.
Technician

Admin.
Profess.

Subtotals

Public Meetings (3)

0

Translation to Spanish (3)
NCTV Coordination (3)
Additional Staff at Mtgs (3)

12
3
12

2
3

14
6
12

Press Releases (up to 10)

0

Website/Electronic Media
Support (1 yr)
FAQ document
E:newsletter/distribution (6)

4

8

4

8

8

2

12
3

20

12
12

16

32
6
24

68
39

Stakeholder Contact (1 yr) &
Create Presentations (3)

0

Total Hours

0

Hourly Rate $

70.06

$

73.10

$

67.40

$

65.00

$

54.60

Direct Cost $

-

$

2,412.30

$

1,550.20

$

1,560.00

$

2,020.20

33

23

24

37

24

0

30

171

$

35.30

$

-

$

21.00

$

847.20

$

-

$

630.00

$

TOTAL HOURS
Weston Solutions
TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS

$
$
$

8,968.66
8,968.66

171

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST

OVERHEAD @

TOTAL EXPENSES
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603.21

$

603.21

9,019.90

16,249.35

$

25,269.25

10% $

2,526.92

SUBTOTAL

$

27,796.17

TOTAL EXPENSES

$

603.21

TOTAL OUTSIDE SERVICES

$

8,968.66

TOTAL TASK

$

37,368.04

FEE @
$

$

180.15% $

TOTAL LABOR COST

Public Notices

9,019.90
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Consultant's Fee Proposal
FEE SCHEDULE
Task Order No. MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1
Professional Services For
Amendment to PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance
Nantucket Memorial Airport
February 9, 2021
Task 5.0 Western Residential Drinking Water Sampling
Sub
Project
Sr. Project
Description
Task
Principal
Manager

Reg.Environ.
Sr. Environ.
Director
Project Engineer

Asst.
Engineer

Jr.
Engineer

Sr.
Technician

Admin.
Profess.

Subtotals

5.1

Document Review

8

8

5.2

Access Agreement/Site
Assessment Support

8

8

5.3

Meetings/Correspondence

0

Total Hours

0

Hourly Rate $

70.06

$

73.10

$

67.40

$

65.00

$

35.30

$

-

$

-

$

21.00

Direct Cost $

-

$

-

$

-

$

1,040.00

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

0

0

16

0

0

0

0

16

$

1,040.00

TOTAL HOURS

16

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST
Weston Solutions

$

$

1,040.00

180.15% $

1,873.56

$

2,913.56

10% $

291.36

SUBTOTAL

$

3,204.92

TOTAL EXPENSES

$

TOTAL OUTSIDE SERVICES

$

54,746.21

TOTAL TASK

$

57,951.13

54,746.21

OVERHEAD @
TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS

$

54,746.21

TOTAL LABOR COST
FEE @

Travel/Mileage/Rental Car/Gasoline
Hotel/per diem
Printing/Postage/Miscellaneous

TOTAL EXPENSES
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$

-

-
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Consultant's Fee Proposal
FEE SCHEDULE
Task Order No. MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1
Professional Services For
Amendment to PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance
Nantucket Memorial Airport
February 9, 2021
Task 6.0 MCP Phase I and Tier Classification
Sub
Project
Description
Task
Principal
6.1

Site Assessment

6.2

Records Review and Report

Sr. Project
Manager

Reg.Environ.
Director

Sr. Environ.
Planner

Asst.
Engineer

Jr.
Engineer

Sr.
Technician

Admin.
Profess.

Subtotals
0

4

4

Total Hours

0

Hourly Rate $

70.06

$

73.10

$

67.40

$

54.60

$

35.30

$

-

$

-

$

21.00

Direct Cost $

-

$

292.40

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

4

0

0

0

0

0

0

4

$

292.40

TOTAL HOURS

4

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST

$

292.40

180.15% $

526.76

$

819.16

10% $

81.92

SUBTOTAL

$

901.07

TOTAL EXPENSES

$

TOTAL OUTSIDE SERVICES

$

1,556.91

TOTAL TASK

$

2,457.98

Weston Solutions

$

1,556.91

OVERHEAD @

TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS

$

1,556.91

TOTAL LABOR COST
FEE @

Travel/Mileage/Rental Car/Gasoline
Hotel/per diem
Printing/Postage/Miscellaneous
TOTAL EXPENSES
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$

-

-

Work Order No. MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1

Consultant's Fee Proposal
FEE SCHEDULE
Task Order No. MJ-PN-01 Amendment 1
Professional Services For
Amendment to PFAS Management and Mitigation Assistance
Nantucket Memorial Airport
February 9, 2021
Task 7.0 Source Area Investigation
Sub
Description
Task

Project
Principal

Sr. Project
Manager

Reg.Environ.
Director

Sr Environ.
Project Engineer

Asst.
Engineer

7.1

Document Review

4

12

7.2

Access Agreement/Site Assessment
Support/Water line coord

12

16

24

7.3

Meetings/Correspondence

28

32

12

12

12

28

Jr.
Engineer

Sr.
Technician

Admin.
Profess.

Subtotals
16

52

8

Total Hours

0

Hourly Rate $

70.06

$

73.10

$

67.40

$

65.00

Direct Cost $

-

$

877.20

$

1,887.20

$

1,820.00

$

32
0

0

0

100

35.30

$

-

$

-

$

21.00

$ 1,129.60

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

TOTAL HOURS
TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST
Weston Solutions

$

$

36,417.81

TOTAL LABOR COST

Travel/Mileage/Rental Car/Gasoline
Hotel/per diem
Printing/Postage/Miscellaneous
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$

$

5,714.00

180.15% $

10,293.77

$

16,007.77

10% $

1,600.78

SUBTOTAL

$

17,608.55

TOTAL EXPENSES

$

TOTAL OUTSIDE SERVICES

$

36,417.81

TOTAL TASK

$

54,026.36

FEE @

TOTAL EXPENSES

100

36,417.81

OVERHEAD @
TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS

5,714.00

-

-
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EXHIBIT B
SUBCONSULTANTS SCOPE OF WORK

EXHIBIT B

PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services
Amendment 1 to MJ-PN-01 and 18691.01

Weston Solutions, Inc. (WESTON®) will provide Engineering and Licensed Site Professional
(LSP) services in support of ongoing assessment and mitigation activities resulting from the
detection of per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) in area groundwater and drinking water
supply wells located in the vicinity of the Nantucket Memorial Airport (ACK). This work was
previously approved under MJ-PN-01 and 18691.01. The following describes the original task and
any modifications applicable to this amendment are in italic font.
TASK 1

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR POET SYSTEM
INSTALLATIONS

Subtasks included in task 1 include preparation of technical specifications, technical proposal
review and submittal reviews, and construction/commissioning quality assurance. This task is
complete and under budget. However, per ACK the remainder of this task will be used for
ongoing waiver support and additional RFP support is also anticipated.
The fee has been adjusted down to reflect the change in scope.
TASK 2

EMERGENCY POET SYSTEMS WAIVER SUPPORT

Four POET systems were anticipated to be installed on Madequecham Valley Road with design,
procurement, and oversight by WESTON. Seven POET systems have been installed under a
waiver and one system partially installed. Of these, 2 were designed and installed under the scope
as planned although the plumbing fee for both fell into a higher cost bracket due to difficult
installation where only one installation was assumed to fall within that category. The procurement
of the remaining three systems was completed directly through ACK; however, WESTON has
provided oversight on all installations. WESTON also completed three unexpected O&M visits.
This task will continue to be used for additional waiver support and include POET installations
on the west side in the Monohansett Road/Skyline Drive area and others as needed.
The labor has been adjusted up and fee has been adjusted down to reflect procurement through
ACK.
TASK 3

CONTINUED DRINKING WATER TESTING AND REPORTING

This task included obtaining access agreements, site assessments for POET installations,
drinking water sampling (756 samples, provision of bottled water, and winterization/reopening
by WESTON. No changes to this scope of work are currently expected.
No change.
TASK 4

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT AND COMMUNICATION PROTOCOL

Community outreach was expected to include assisting MJ with organizing and disseminating the
results of the ongoing assessments to the public. It was requested by MJ that only WESTON’s
LSP attend these meetings; however, WESTON PFAS technical lead has also been asked to attend
the meetings. The effort involved in the preparation for these meetings has also exceeded estimates.
The fee has been adjusted up to reflect the additional effort associated with this task.
January 29, 2021

PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services
Amendment 1 to MJ-PN-01 and 18691.01

TASK 5

EXHIBIT B

WESTERN RESIDENTIAL DRINKING WATER

The following assumptions were made regarding sampling west of ACK:


Up to 22 properties located adjacent to the airport property would be sampled.
o To date, 35 properties have been sampled representing a net increase of 13
samples.



All supply wells on each property would be sampled on properties included in
this sampling event. It was estimated that 23 supply wells to be sampled.
o To date, 40 drinking water well samples have been collected representing
a net increase of 17 samples.



All properties were budgeted for bottled water and 12 are budgeted for ongoing
POET operation and maintenance activities outlined in Task 3.
o Bottled water is required to be provided in the near-term. Ongoing monthly
sampling of POET systems will be required. This will include 12 samples
plus 3 quality control samples each month. Monthly monitoring from
October 2020 through June 2021 is expected under this contract.

The fee has been adjusted up to reflect the additional effort and subcontracted costs associated
with this task.
TASK 6

MCP PHASE I AND TIER CLASSIFICATION

Additional labor and higher than average legal notice publication fee.
The fee has been adjusted up to reflect the additional effort and legal notice publication fee that
exceeded averages by more than three times.
TASK 7

SOURCE AREA INVESTIGATION

Five of eight known historical AFFF usage or storage areas at Nantucket Memorial Airport were
included in the source soil investigation task. However, since approval, an additional release area
has been discovered and additional investigation located in the proposed path of the water line
was requested. The source soil investigation scope of work for the newly identified release area is
consistent with the scope of work but requires additional labor and subcontractor fees.


Prior to intrusive activities, a private utility locator is required to clear all
drilling locations of potential utilities and other subsurface obstructions under
WESTON oversight. This requires a separate mobilization and equipment and
supplies. This added two days of field effort and expenses.



An additional release area identified as the ASRE Drill area was identified and
added to the scope.
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EXHIBIT B



Rather than collecting composite samples at each of the release areas, discrete
samples were collected from each location. This data will provide important
information to be used in the Phase 2 work whereas the composite data would
not have been admissible.



7 additional soil sampling locations in the path of the proposed waterline were
added to the scope. This added labor and fees including additional samples and
quality control samples.



One additional groundwater monitoring well, ACK-10, previously thought to
have been destroyed has been located and will require development and
sampling. Additional labor and fees are associated with the completion of this
work.



An additional field member was added to the program to assist in field activities
due to the increase workload and a fixed amount of time available to work.

The fee has been adjusted up to reflect the additional labor and fees associated with this task.
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WESTON SOLUTIONS INC. - FEE SCHEDULE
Amendment 1 to Phase 1 PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services MJ‐PN‐01 /MJ Project 18691.01
Professional Services for PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services Nantucket Memorial Airport January 29, 2021.

Task

1
2
3
4
5

6
7

Description

POET Site Evaluation, Design, Installation, and Monitoring
Emergency POET System Waiver Support
Drinking Water Testing, Bottled Water and Reporting
Homeowner Communication and Access Agreements
Drinking Water Testing, Bottled Water and Reporting Western Properties
MCP Phase I and Tier Classification
AFFF Source Area Investigation
TOTALS

Amendment 2 Net
Difference

Previously Approved
Total Fee

Total Fee with
Amendments 1 & 2

$
$
$
$

(38,083.64)
8,968.66

$
$
$
$

88,711.36
90,015.85
448,069.76
25,700.00

$
$
$
$

50,627.72
90,015.85
448,069.76
34,668.66

$

54,746.21

$

65,886.92

$

120,633.13

$
$
$

1,556.91
36,417.81
63,605.95

$
$
$

9,994.40
26,355.38
754,733.67

$
$
$

11,551.31
62,773.19
818,339.63

WESTON SOLUTIONS INC. - FEE SCHEDULE
Amendment 1 to Phase 1 PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services MJ‐PN‐01 /MJ Project 18691.01
Professional Services for PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services Nantucket Memorial Airport January 29, 2021.
Task 1 POET Site Evaluation, Design, Installation, and Monitoring
PFAS
Designer ‐ Designer ‐
Subcon.
Task Description
LSP
PM ‐ Sr
Eng ‐ Jr Eng ‐ Mid Eng ‐ Sr Geo ‐ Sr
Admin.
Specialist
Mid
Sr
Admin.
1
Technical Specs, RVW,
60
20
60
0
8
80
100
50
0
0
12
Total Hours
60
20
60
0
8
80
100
50
0
0
12
Average raw rate
73.87
61.59
54.60
29.94
40.13
25.59
31.52
49.97
39.00
27.81
32.84
4,432.20 1,231.80
3,276.00
0.00
321.04
2,047.20
3,152.00 2,498.50
0.00
0.00
394.08
Direct Cost
Total Expenses =
Total Outside Services = $
Subtotal = $

$0.00
-

Total Hours
Total Direct Labor Cost
Overhead @ 153.7%
Fixed Fee @ 15%
Labor Subtotal
Total Expenses
Total Outside Services
Total Task

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Totals

390.00
17,352.82
390
17,352.82
26,671.28
6,603.62
50,627.72
50,627.72

WESTON SOLUTIONS INC. - FEE SCHEDULE
Amendment 1 to Phase 1 PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services MJ‐PN‐01 /MJ Project 18691.01
Professional Services for PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services Nantucket Memorial Airport January 29, 2021.
Task 2 Emergency POET System Waiver Support
Task Description

2

Waiver Support
Total Hours
Average raw rate
Direct Cost

LSP

0
0
73.87
0.00

PFAS
Designer ‐ Designer ‐
Subcon.
Eng ‐ Jr Eng ‐ Mid Eng ‐ Sr Geo ‐ Sr
Admin.
Specialist
Mid
Sr
Admin.
30
60
0
0
160
200
56
0
4
6
30
60
0
0
160
200
56
0
4
6
61.59
54.60
29.94
40.13
25.59
31.52
49.97
39.00
27.81
32.84

PM ‐ Sr

1,847.70

3,276.00

Total Expenses = $
Total Outside Services = $
Subtotal = $

0.00

0.00

4,631.00
31,006.00
35,637.00

4,094.40

6,304.00

2,808.15

0.00

111.24

Total Hours
Total Direct Labor Cost
Overhead @ 153.7%
Fixed Fee @ 15%
Labor Subtotal
Total Expenses
Total Outside Services
Total Task

197.04

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Totals

516.20
18,638.53
516
18,638.53
28,647.43
7,092.89
54,378.85
4,631.00
31,006.00
90,015.85

WESTON SOLUTIONS INC. - FEE SCHEDULE
Amendment 1 to Phase 1 PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services MJ‐PN‐01 /MJ Project 18691.01
Professional Services for PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services Nantucket Memorial Airport January 29, 2021.
Task 3 Drinking Water Testing, Bottled Water and Reporting
Task Description

3

Drinking Water Testing, Bottled
Total Hours
Average raw rate
Direct Cost

LSP

80
80
73.87
5,909.60

PM ‐ Sr

PFAS
Designer Designer
Subcon.
Eng ‐ Jr Eng ‐ Mid Eng ‐ Sr Geo ‐ Sr
Admin.
Specialist
‐ Mid
‐ Sr
Admin.
80
219
0
98
567
847
52
0
0
86
80
219
0
98
567
847
52
0
0
86
61.59
54.60
29.94
40.13
25.59
31.52
49.97
39.00
27.81
32.84

4,927.20

11,962.62

Total Expenses = $
Total Outside Services = $
Subtotal = $

0.00

3,932.74 14,509.53

33,791.00
200,242.00
234,033.00

26,697.44

2,598.44

0.00

0.00

Total Hours
Total Direct Labor Cost
Overhead @ 153.7%
Fixed Fee @ 15%
Labor Subtotal
Total Expenses
Total Outside Services
Total Task

2,824.24

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Totals

2,029.10
73,361.81
2,029
73,361.81
112,757.11
27,917.84
214,036.76
33,791.00
200,242.00
448,069.76

WESTON SOLUTIONS INC. - FEE SCHEDULE
Amendment 1 to Phase 1 PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services MJ‐PN‐01 /MJ Project 18691.01
Professional Services for PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services Nantucket Memorial Airport January 29, 2021.
Task 4 Homeowner Communication and Access Agreements
Task Description

4

Homeowner Communication and
Total Hours
Average raw rate
Direct Cost

LSP

PFAS
Designer ‐ Designer
Subcon.
Eng ‐ Jr Eng ‐ Mid Eng ‐ Sr Geo ‐ Sr
Admin.
Specialist
Mid
‐ Sr
Admin.
0
80
0
40
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
80
0
40
0
0
0
0
0
0
61.59
54.60
29.94
40.13
25.59
31.52
49.97
39.00
27.81
32.84

PM ‐ Sr

80
80
73.87
5,909.60

0.00

4,368.00

Total Expenses = $
Total Outside Services = $
Subtotal = $

0.00

1,605.20

-

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Total Hours
Total Direct Labor Cost
Overhead @ 153.7%
Fixed Fee @ 15%
Labor Subtotal
Total Expenses
Total Outside Services
Total Task

0.00

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Totals

200.00
11,882.80
200
11,882.80
18,263.86
4,522.00
34,668.66
34,668.66

WESTON SOLUTIONS INC. - FEE SCHEDULE
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Professional Services for PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services Nantucket Memorial Airport January 29, 2021.
Task 5 Drinking Water Testing, Bottled Water and Reporting - Western Properties
PFAS
Designer ‐ Designer
Subcon.
Task Description
LSP
PM ‐ Sr
Eng ‐ Jr Eng ‐ Mid Eng ‐ Sr Geo ‐ Sr
Admin.
Specialist
Mid
‐ Sr
Admin.
5
Drinking Water Testing, Bottled
40
40
80
0
0
140
225
0
0
0
25
Total Hours
40
40
80
0
0
140
225
0
0
0
25
Average raw rate
73.87
61.59
54.60
29.94
40.13
25.59
31.52
49.97
39.00
27.81
32.84
Direct Cost
2,954.80 2,463.60
4,368.00
0.00
0.00 3,582.60 7,092.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
821.00
Total Expenses = $
Total Outside Services = $
Subtotal = $

5,033.00
53,508.84
58,541.84

Total Hours
Total Direct Labor Cost
Overhead @ 153.7%
Fixed Fee @ 15%
Labor Subtotal
Total Expenses
Total Outside Services
Total Task

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Totals

550.00
21,282.00
550
21,282.00
32,710.43
8,098.86
62,091.29
5,033.00
53,508.84
120,633.13

WESTON SOLUTIONS INC. - FEE SCHEDULE
Amendment 1 to Phase 1 PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services MJ‐PN‐01 /MJ Project 18691.01
Professional Services for PFAS Assessment and Mitigation Services Nantucket Memorial Airport January 29, 2021.
Task 6 MCP Phase I and Tier Classification
Task Description

6

MCP Phase I and Tier
Total Hours
Average raw rate
Direct Cost

LSP

PFAS
Designer ‐ Designer
Subcon.
Eng ‐ Jr Eng ‐ Mid Eng ‐ Sr Geo ‐ Sr
Admin.
Specialist
Mid
‐ Sr
Admin.
0
14
16
0
20
22
0
18
0
7
0
14
16
0
20
22
0
18
0
7
61.59
54.60
29.94
40.13
25.59
31.52
49.97
39.00
27.81
32.84

PM ‐ Sr

6
6
73.87
443.22

0.00

764.40

Total Expenses = $
Total Outside Services = $
Subtotal = $

479.04

0.00

438.09
438.09

511.80

693.44

0.00

702.00

0.00

Total Hours
Total Direct Labor Cost
Overhead @ 153.7%
Fixed Fee @ 15%
Labor Subtotal
Total Expenses
Total Outside Services
Total Task

215.19

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Totals

102.55
3,809.09
103
3,809.09
5,854.58
1,449.55
11,113.22
438.09
11,551.31
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Immediate Response Action Status Report No. 9
Nantucket Memorial Airport
Nantucket, Massachusetts

ASSESSMENT AND REMEDIAL ACTION STATUS

3.5

SIGNIFICANT NEW SITE INFORMATION

No significant new site information became available during this reporting period.
3.6

REQUEST TO CHANGE IRA STATUS REPORT FREQUENCY

At the time of this report, all investigation and mitigation measures identified in the amended IRA
Plan have been completed and only routine monitoring is ongoing. No additional step-out
residential sampling is required at this time. The source soil investigation has been completed, and
the results were provided in this Status Report. As a result, WESTON requests a reduction in the
IRA Status Report frequency from monthly to bi-annually beginning immediately, with the next
report covering 1 January 2021 through 30 June 2021 to be due within 60 days of the end of the
reporting period.
3.7

CONCLUSIONS AND LICENSED SITE PROFESSIONAL OPINION

This IRA is being conducted in response to the detection of PFAS6 in groundwater and drinking
water representing an imminent hazard (IH) condition at a Critical Exposure Pathway. Mitigation
measures for affected residences with total PFAS6 concentrations above 20 ng/L have been
completed and include provision of bottled water and installation of POET systems. As of the date
of this letter, 12 POET systems have been installed at 11 residences on Madequecham Valley
Road, which includes all residences that were deemed an IH due to PFAS6 concentrations above
200 ng/L. Additionally, four POET system have been installed at three properties on the West
Side. No additional POET systems are anticipated. Remaining residences located in the Nobadeer
Way Area that have concentrations greater than 20 ng/L will be connected to municipal water
within the coming months. Plans to extend the existing municipal water service to the impacted
residences on Monohansett Road, Skyline Drive, and Madequecham Valley Road is underway.
Bottled water is currently being provided to all residents with detectable concentrations of PFAS6
or those within 500 ft of an exceedance of PFAS6 in either a groundwater or drinking water well
unless declined by the property owner.
PFAS6 were detected above applicable soil criteria in all but one AFFF Application Area and at
the Leasehold Property. The highest concentrations of PFAS6 were detected in soil and/or
groundwater at the Fuel Farm, Sand Pit, and Runway 6 Run-Up areas. No exceedances were
detected at the Runway 24 Approach. Additional investigations will be implemented as part of a
3-13
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Town of Nantucket

NANTUCKET MEMORIAL AIRPORT
14 Airport Road
Nantucket Island, Massachusetts 02554
Thomas M. Rafter, Airport Manager
Phone: (508) 325-5300
Fax: (508) 325-5306

Commissioners
Daniel W. Drake, Chairman
Arthur D. Gasbarro, Vice Chair
Anthony G. Bouscaren
Andrea N. Planzer
Jeanette D. Topham

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:

Nantucket Memorial Airport Names Multi-District Litigation Counsel
[Nantucket, MA 2/3/2021] Nantucket Memorial Airport has retained Napoli Shkolnik PLLC to
represent the Airport in a consolidated Multi-District Litigation (MDL) effort. Mr. Paul Napoli of
Napoli Shkolnik is co-Lead Counsel in the litigation effort, which is currently underway in
Charleston, South Carolina. The Aqueous Film-Forming Foams (AFFF) Products Liability
Litigation (MDL No. 2873) is currently comprised of over 500 cases pending before the Court.
To date, Nantucket Memorial Airport has collected 251 samples from 71 residential wells to test
for Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) that are potentially resultant from historical
AFFF use at ACK. Point of Entry Treatment Systems have been installed by the Airport in 18 of
these homes, a municipal water service provision program is underway, and a water main
extension project is in the design and permitting stage. Additional soils impact and plume
identification work is also in process, with results updated monthly to the Airport’s PFAS
website, www.ack-PFAS.com (END)

For more information please contact Noah J. Karberg, Assistant Airport Manager. Phone: 508325-7531. Email: nkarberg@nantucketairport.com.

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs
100 Cambridge Street, Suite 900
Boston, MA 02114
Charles D. Baker
GOVERNOR

Tel: (617) 626-1000
Fax: (617) 626-1081

Karyn E. Polito

LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR

http://www.mass.gov/eea

Kathleen A.Theoharides
SECRETARY

February 5, 2021
CERTIFICATE OF THE SECRETARY OF ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS
ON THE
DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
PROJECT NAME
PROJECT MUNICIPALITY
PROJECT WATERSHED
EEA NUMBER
PROJECT PROPONENT
DATE NOTICED IN MONITOR

: Nantucket Memorial Airport Five-Year Capital
Improvement Plan Projects
: Nantucket
: Islands
: 16128
: Nantucket Airport Commission and Town of Nantucket
: December 23, 2020

Pursuant to the Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act (MEPA; M.G.L. c. 30, ss. 6162I) and Section 11.08 of the MEPA regulations (301 CMR 11.00), I have reviewed the Draft
Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) and hereby determine that it adequately and properly
complies with MEPA and its implementing regulations. The Proponent may prepare and submit
for review a Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR).
Project Description
As described in the DEIR, the Proponent has identified the following capital
improvement projects for implementation at the Nantucket Memorial Airport (Airport):
Project 1: Rehabilitate Runway 6-24 and Relocate Stub Taxiways B and C 1;
Project 2: Decommission Runway 12-30 and Convert it to Taxiway C;
Project 3: Replace Airfield Home-Run Cables;
Project 4: Construct Runway 24 High-Speed Taxiway;
Project 5: Expand the South Apron; 2
Project 6: Relocate Taxiway G;
Project 7: Relocate Perimeter Road and Fence;
1
2

A stub taxiway is a short taxiway connecting another taxiway to a runway.
An apron is a parking area for airplanes.

EEA# 16128

DEIR Certificate

February 5, 2021

Project 8: Construct Four Residential Units at Nobadeer Farm to Serve as Crew
Quarters;
Project 9: Construct Ground Service Equipment (GSE) Building; and,
Project 10: Expand Marine Storage Facility.
According to the DEIR, most of the proposed projects were identified in the Capital
Improvement Plan included in the Airport’s 2015 Master Plan Update. 3 Projects 1-7 and 9 are
proposed to be constructed at the Airport to improve safety and enhance operations at the
facility; the projects will not increase the capacity of the Airport or level of operations. Projects 8
and 10 will be constructed on land owned by the Airport Commission to provide housing for
Airport staff and marine storage for nearby boat yard. The DEIR also described the potential
construction of a noise berm along the west side of the South Apron to shield the adjacent
neighborhood from activities on the apron.
The projects will be constructed in accordance with the following schedule:
2022: Projects 2 and 6;
2023: Projects 5 and 10;
2024: Project 4;
2027: Projects 1, 3 and 7; and,
2028: Projects 7, 8 and 9.
An eleventh project involving the reconstruction of Taxiway E and relocation of Stub
Taxiway A was described in the Expanded Environmental Notification Form (EENF) filed in
December 2019. 4 The Proponent requested a Phase 1 Waiver to allow the Taxiway E/Stub
Taxiway A project to commence construction prior to the filing of the DEIR. The Phase 1
Waiver was granted in a Final Record of Decision (FROD) issued on February 7, 2020.
According to the DEIR, the Taxiway E/Stub Taxiway A work has commenced and will be
completed over a four-year period during the Airport’s off-peak seasons.
Project Site
The project site covers an area of 971.3 acres, including the Airport with associated
runways, buildings, structures, and parking lots; adjacent land with industrial and commercial
uses, including a boat yard storage facility; and other undeveloped land. The project site is
bounded to the south by the Atlantic Ocean and ocean-front residential properties; to the east by
New South Road and Waquoit Road; to the north by Milestone Road and to the west by
residential neighborhood. The proposed crew quarters at the Nobadeer Farm site (Project 8) and
the marine storage facility expansion (Project 10) will take place on undeveloped, wooded
Airport-owned lots approximately 0.5 miles from the terminal. The proposed crew quarters site
is a 1.37-acre lot located off Nobadeer Farm Road and the marine storage facility expansion is
proposed on a one-acre lot adjacent to Nantucket Marine on Sun Island Road.

See “Nantucket Airport Master Plan Update, January 2015, prepared by Jacobs Engineering,” available
at https://masterplan.nantucketairport.com/master-plan-elements/ (last accessed on February 3, 2021).
4
This project was referred to as Project 1 in the EENF.
3

2
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The Airport provides general aviation (GA) and passenger airline services. According to
the DEIR, Nantucket Airport is the second-busiest airport in Massachusetts (behind Boston’s
Logan Airport) in the months of July and August due to seasonal tourist traffic. It is classified in
the FAA’s National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems (NPIAS) as a “primary” airport, which is
defined as a public airport that receives scheduled airline passenger service with 10,000 or more
passengers per year. The airport hosts approximately 140,000 commercial enplanements
(boarding passengers) per year. According to the DEIR, the airport experienced a decrease in the
number of flights from 103,361 in 2016 to 76,349 in 2019. The number of flights is projected to
gradually increase to 89,108 in 2029.
The Airport terminal, administrative and maintenance buildings, hangars and aprons are
located on the west side of the site. The Airport includes three designated runways: Runway 6-24
is aligned in a northeast-southwest orientation and is 6,303 ft long by 150 ft wide; Runway 15-33
(which is not part of the development plan here) is aligned in a northwest -southeast orientation
and is 4,502 ft long and 100 ft wide; and Runway 12-30 is aligned in an east west orientation and
is 2,690 ft long and 50 ft wide. Runway 12-30 is connected to Runway 15-33 at its eastern end
and Runway 6-24 at its western end. Taxiway E runs parallel to and to the west of Runway 6-24;
they are connected by Taxiways A, B, C and D and by the western end of Runway 15-33.
Taxiway G is parallel to and to the west of a short section of the northeastern end of Runway 624 and is connected at its southern end to the terminal apron. Taxiway F connects the southern
end of the terminal apron to Taxiway D. Taxiway J connects Taxiway E to an apron south of the
terminal.
Approximately 85 percent (823 acres) of the Airport is located within Priority Habitat of
rare species as mapped in the 14th Edition of the Natural Heritage Atlas. According to the
Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program (NHESP) the site contains habitats that
support 23 state-listed rare species, including plants, moths and birds. According to the Federal
Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) number
25019C0152G (effective date June 9, 2014) the southern boundary of Airport property is located
within the 100-year floodplain (Zone AE) with a Base Flood Elevation (BFE) of 9 ft NAVD 88
and a coastal flood zone with velocity hazard (Zone VE) with a BFE of 10 ft NAVD 88.
Environmental Impacts and Mitigation
Potential environmental impacts of the projects, including the Taxiway E and relocation
of Stub Taxiway A components that were the subject of the Phase 1 Waiver, include alteration of
approximately 100 acres of land, including disturbance of 46.3 acres of existing impervious area;
creation of 10.51 acres of impervious area; and alteration of approximately 72 acres of Priority
Habitat, including 18 acres of existing impervious area. The impacts of the projects described in
the DEIR include alteration of 52.6 acres of land, including disturbance of 19.4 acres of existing
impervious area; creation of 9.8 acres of new impervious area; and alteration of 36.3 acres of
Priority Habitat, including disturbance of 11.8 acres of existing impervious area. The
construction and use of crew quarters will generate vehicle trips, increase water use, generate
wastewater and emit greenhouse gasses (GHG) associated with building energy use and vehicle
transportation.
The measures proposed in the DEIR to minimize and mitigate impacts include restoration
of 20.6 acres of grassland temporarily impacted during construction, including 14.3 acres within
3
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Priority Habitat; construction of a stormwater management system with Best Management
Practices (BMPs) to improve water quality, reduce flow rates and infiltrate runoff; and
construction-period measures to minimize noise, air and water quality impacts. The project will
mitigate GHG emissions by incorporating energy efficiency and resiliency measures into the
building and site design. Permits for the project issued by NHESP may require additional
mitigation, such as habitat restoration, monetary contributions and/or other measures to mitigate
impacts to rare species habitat.
Permitting and Jurisdiction
The projects are undergoing MEPA review and is subject to preparation of a mandatory
EIR pursuant to 301 CMR 11.03(1)(a)(1) and 11.03(1)(a)(2) because they require State Agency
Actions and collectively, will result in direct alteration of 50 or more acres of land and creation
of 10 or more acres of impervious area. They also exceed the ENF threshold at 11.03(2)(b)(2)
(greater than two acres of disturbance of designated priority habitat). The projects will require
one or more Conservation and Management Permits (CMPs) from NHESP and Federal
Consistency review by the Massachusetts Office of Coastal Zone Management (CZM). They are
subject to the MEPA GHG Emissions Policy and Protocol.
The projects will require an Order of Conditions from the Nantucket Conservation
Commission (or in the case of an appeal, a Superseding Order of Conditions (SOC) from the
Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP)). They will require review
by the Massachusetts Historical Commission (MHC) pursuant to Section 106 of the National
Historic Preservation Act of 1966. The projects will require the preparation and review of an
Environmental Assessment under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and may
require a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Stormwater General Permit
from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).
The Proponent has received and may seek additional Financial Assistance from the
Commonwealth through the Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT).
Therefore, MEPA jurisdiction is broad and extends to all aspects of the project that are likely,
directly or indirectly, to cause Damage to the Environment, as defined in the MEPA regulations.
Review of the DEIR
The DEIR was generally responsive to the Scope included in the EENF Certificate. It
provided an overview of the Airport’s operations and reviewed trends in passenger volumes and
usage by aircraft type. The DEIR included detailed descriptions and plans of the proposed capital
improvement projects, described potential environmental impacts, identified mitigation measures
and reviewed alternatives for each project.
Alternatives Analysis
For each project, the DEIR compared the environmental impacts of the Preferred
Alternative to those of an alternative design. Where relevant, the DEIR reviewed applicable FAA
guidelines and evaluated how each alternative addressed the guidelines.
Project 1: Rehabilitate Runway 6-24 and Relocate Stub Taxiways B and C
4
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Runway 6-24 is the Airport’s primary runway. It was last improved in 2004 and requires
rehabilitation to maintain its functionality, prevent deterioration of its surface and to upgrade the
runway profile, side and end slopes and geometry of taxiway connections to meet FAA design
criteria. The design criteria are intended to promote drainage of the runway surface and to meet
navigational requirements. The project will also address FAA guidelines that require the 200-ft
Runway Safety Areas (RSA) at both ends of the runway to be clear of obstacles and graded in a
manner to facilitate access to the runway by rescue and maintenance equipment and promote
drainage. In addition, this project will relocate the approximately 75-ft long sections of both Stub
Taxiways B and C between Taxiways E and F in order to correct existing unsafe conditions that
allow aircraft leaving the apron located near the Airport terminal to have direct access to
Runway 6-24.
The DEIR identified two alternatives for this project, including Alternatives 1A and the
Preferred Alternative (Alternative 1B). The alternatives are similar in most respects but differ in
the design of the RSAs. Alternative 1A would meet the FAA criteria for RSAs by clearing and
regrading the entire 200-ft area at the end of both runways. Alternative 1A would regrade
approximately 30 acres of land, including three acres of rare species habitat, and add 0.3 acres of
impervious area. The Preferred Alternative (Alternative 1B) will minimize impacts by limiting
the area to be regraded to that which is necessary to establish a level grade between the runway
ends and the RSAs and would not regrade the entire 200-ft RSA. This alternative will require the
FAA’s approval of a Modification to Standards request, which has been submitted to the FAA by
the Proponent. The Preferred Alternative will regrade 9.2 acres of land, including 1.6 acres of
rare species habitat, and add 0.2 acres of impervious area.
Project 2: Decommission Runway 12-30 and Convert it to Taxiway C
Runway 12-30 is 50 ft wide and connects the southern end of Runway 15-33 and the
midpoint of Runway 6-24. It can accommodate small aircraft but is currently used as a taxiway
for Runway 15-33 and is no longer categorized by the FAA as a runway. To meet FAA
requirements, a new taxiway for Runway 15-33 would have to be constructed in order for
Runway 12-30 to be used as a runway; during the review period, the Airport provided additional
information that indicated that a new taxiway would require over 3.5 acres of new impervious
area. The Preferred Alternative will formally convert Runway 12-30 to a taxiway (Taxiway C)
by removing existing runway pavement markings and adding taxiway pavement markings. The
Preferred Alternative will not require any new land alteration or impervious pavement.
Project 3: Replace Airfield Home-Run Cables
The home-run cables are electrical circuits for lights along Runway 6-24, Runway 12-30
(Taxiway C) and Taxiway E. The cables originate in an electrical vault east of the Terminal, pass
under the Terminal and Terminal Apron to a manhole on the west side of the Terminal Apron
and extend underground to the lighting arrays at the airfield. The cables are over 10 years old and
are beyond their serviceable life. The Preferred Alternative will replace the cable segments under
the Terminal with cables installed in a new 987-ft long duct bank from the electrical vault to a
new manhole in the Terminal Apron, where the new cables will be connected to existing cables
serving the lighting arrays. The new duct bank will be installed entirely within existing paved
areas. The No Build Alternative would maintain the use of the existing cables, which is not a
5
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feasible option because failure of the cables would pose a safety hazard due to inadequate
lighting of the airfield.
Project 4: Construct Runway 24 High-Speed Taxiway
Airplanes approaching the Airport from the north and landing on Runway 6-24 must
access the Terminal using either Taxiway E at the end of the runway (approximately 6,000 ft
from the beginning of the runway) or Taxiway D, which intersects the runway 3,980 ft from the
beginning of the runway. Taxiway D is located closer to the terminal and its use to exit the
runway avoids the need for aircraft to travel the additional 2,000 ft to the end of the runway and
double back on Taxiway E. According to the DEIR, the longer an airplane is on a runway, the
greater the likelihood of a safety incident during busy periods. However, larger aircraft have a
landing distance that exceeds 3,980 ft and cannot use Taxiway D to access the Terminal; this
increases the taxiing time for passengers, the amount of time the airplane occupies the runway
and the noise and air emissions associated with the longer route to the Terminal.
The Preferred Alternative involves the construction of a 600-ft long and 50-ft wide
taxiway located 930 ft south of Taxiway D that would provide an approximately 4,910 ft landing
distance to accommodate larger planes. The new taxiway will be constructed at a 30-degree
angle and will allow aircraft to exit the runway approximately 10.5 seconds sooner than they can
under existing conditions. Furthermore, under dry conditions, approximately 76 percent of large
aircraft will be able to use the proposed taxiway to exit the runway, compared to only eight
percent of large airplanes that are able to use the existing Taxiway D. The Preferred Alternative
would add 1.1 acres of impervious area, all of which is located within Priority habitat. The DEIR
also evaluated a Right-Angle Taxiway Alternative that would construct a 300-ft long and 50-ft
wide perpendicular taxiway approximately 1,430 ft from Taxiway D to provide a landing
distance of 5,410 ft. The longer landing distance is necessary due to the right angle turn that
aircraft would be required to make to exit the runway. This alternative would add only 0.6 acres
of impervious area in Priority Habitat and would have similar usage by large aircraft as the
Preferred Alternative; however, aircraft would save only 6.7 seconds of travel time on the
runway.
Project 5: Expand the South Apron
The Airport has three parking areas for airplanes, including the Terminal Apron adjacent
to the east and south sides of the Terminal, the Commercial Apron north of the Terminal and the
South Apron south of the Terminal Apron. According to the DEIR, there are severe shortages of
airplane parking spaces at the Airport during the summer. To accommodate airplane parking
needs on some weekends during the peak season, the Airport has closed Runway 15-33 and used
it as a parking area, which is discouraged by the FAA. In addition to the shortage of parking
spaces, the congested conditions and physical configuration of the existing aprons create
operational and safety concerns.
The DEIR evaluated two alternatives that would expand the South Apron to provide
sufficient space for 10 jet engine planes to park, with paved connections to the existing South
Apron and Taxiway E. Alternative 5B would expand the paved area by 8.3 acres, including 7.3
acres of new impervious area in Priority Habitat, and require regrading of an additional 3.6 acres
of rare species Priority Habitat. The Preferred Alternative (Alternative 5A) will also
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accommodate 10 jet engine planes, but in a smaller paved area that is approximately 35 feet
further away from the adjacent residential area than Alternative 5B. The Preferred Alternative
will add 7.3 acres of impervious area, including seven acres of Priority Habitat, and regrade 3.6
acres of Priority Habitat.
Both alternatives could accommodate a vegetated noise berm between the expanded
South Apron and the adjacent residential area. The berm would be 15 ft high, 10 ft wide at the
top and 100-ft wide at its base and occupy an area of 4.4 acres, including 0.3 acres of Priority
Habitat. According to the DEIR, the berm is not included in the Capital Improvement Plan, is not
required based on the FAA’s noise mitigation guidelines and would require a local funding
source for its construction. Many commenters stressed the need for the berm to minimize noise
and air quality impacts to nearby residences associated with Airport operations in general and the
increased activity in this area if the South Apron is expanded. As detailed below, the Airport
should provide additional information regarding potential noise and air quality mitigation
measures for this project.
Project 6: Relocate Taxiway G
Taxiway G is 1,168 ft long and 50 ft wide and extends from the Terminal Apron to the
north end of Runway 6-24. It parallels the northernmost section of Taxiway E and the taxiways
are separated by a distance of 125 ft. According to the DEIR, the separation is 27 ft less than the
FAA recommended distance of 152 ft needed to provide a safe distance between wingtips of
airplanes on adjacent taxiways. The Preferred Alternative will shift Taxiway G to the northwest
(away from Taxiway E) by 27 feet. Because the dimensions of the taxiway will not change and
pavement will be removed from the current footprint of Taxiway G, the project will add only 0.1
acres of impervious area to make minor adjustments to the geometry of the taxiway. The project
will temporarily impact 0.8 acres, including 0.6 acres of Priority Habitat, which will be restored
and vegetated upon completion of the project. The No Build Alternative is not a feasible
alternative because it would not address the substandard separation distance between the
taxiways.
Project 7: Relocate Perimeter Road and Fence
A 20-ft wide gravel road and security fence run along the perimeter of the Airport. At the
southern end of the site, the perimeter road and fence are located adjacent to the Atlantic Ocean
shoreline. The continued erosion along the shoreline is anticipated to impact the perimeter road
within the next few years. The Preferred Alternative will reconstruct a 1,665-ft long section of
the roadway 150 ft inland of its current location. Construction of the road in the proposed
location will temporarily impact 0.6 acres of Priority Habitat, but there will be no net increase in
impervious area. An alternative was evaluated that would move an additional 375-ft long section
of the road and fence in a landward direction; however, this alternative was not selected because
it would impact a cluster of New England Blazing Star, a plant species identified by NHESP as a
Species of Special Concern, and pass through the Localizer Critical Area, which is located
between the shoreline and runway end and must be clear of all physical obstructions.
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Project 8: Construct Four Residential Units at Nobadeer Farm to Serve as Crew
Quarters
According to the DEIR, the high cost and lack of year-round housing on Nantucket have
made it difficult for the Airport to meet its staffing needs, including emergency responders. To
address this need, four dwelling units will be constructed at the 1.37-acre Nobadeer Farm site
approximately 0.25 miles from the Airport. The Preferred Alternative (Alternative 8A) includes
the construction of two 1,320-sf buildings with a total of eight parking spaces, a 100-ft long
driveway and sidewalks connecting the site to the Nobadeer Farm Road bicycle path. The
Preferred Alternative will add 0.3 acres of impervious area and convert 0.5 acres of Priority
Habitat from a tree and shrub cover to lawn and other landscaping. Alternative 8B would
construct four dwelling units in a single 2,642-sf building with eight parking spaces, sidewalks
and a 100-ft long driveway. Alternative 8B would have similar impacts to the Preferred
Alternative. The Preferred Alternative was selected to provide the flexibility of constructing two
units (one building) at a time rather than all four units at once.
Project 9: Construct Ground Service Equipment (GSE) Building
According to the DEIR, the Airport lacks sufficient space to store its ground service
equipment. A 3,200-sf GSE Building is proposed to be constructed in a mostly paved area west
of the Terminal and adjacent to Monohansett Road. The DEIR reviewed two alternative layouts
of the building. The Preferred Alternative would construct the building as close to Monohansett
Road as possible to minimize interference with Airport-related on paved areas closer to the
Terminal and would add 0.01 acres of impervious area. Alternative 9B would construct the GSE
Building approximately 25 ft to the east of the proposed location. Alternative 9B would add 0.05
acres of impervious area.
Project 10: Expand Marine Storage Facility
This project involves the construction of a boat storage area adjacent to an existing boat
yard storage facility on Airport-owned land. This project would not affect Airport operations, but
would provide additional space for off-season boat storage and generate revenue for the Airport.
The Preferred Alternative would involve clearing a narrow, one-acre wooded lot adjacent to the
north side of the boat yard. This alternative would add approximately one acre of impervious
area, all of which is located within Priority Habitat. The DEIR also reviewed the use of a 4.6acre wooded parcel adjacent to the west side of the boat yard, which is located in Priority
Habitat. According to the DEIR, the one-acre lot was selected because its location and narrow
dimension limits other potential uses of the lot, and the rare species habitat at the site is less
significant because it is already segmented.
Rare Species
Approximately 85 percent (823 acres) of the land area at the Airport is located within
Priority Habitat for rare species. The ten projects described in the DEIR will cumulatively alter
36.3 acres of Priority Habitat, including temporary impacts to 14.3 acres of vegetated land which
will be regraded and restored as habitat; 0.4 acres of impervious area that will be converted to
vegetated habitat; 9.8 acres of vegetated habitat that will be converted to impervious area and
11.8 acres of impervious area that will remain impervious. I note that the Preferred Alternative
8
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identified in the EENF for Project 1: Rehabilitate Runway 6-24 and Relocate Stub Taxiways B
and C anticipated the need for changes to the elevation of the runway and taxiways that would in
itself result in temporary impacts to 26.7 acres of Priority Habitat; this impact has been reduced
by approximately 19 acres as a result of the selection of a new Preferred Alternative that does not
propose to significantly change the elevation of these areas.
The Airport is subject to a CMP (# 008-123.DFW) issued by NHESP that was amended
in May 2020 to reflect the Taxiway E/Stub Taxiway A project. According to NHESP, a new
CMP will be required to permit the proposed changes described in the DEIR. Potential
mitigation measures identified in the DEIR include a financial contribution for off-site habitat
enhancement or protection and construction-period measures such as delineation of work areas,
training of contractors, transplanting of rare plants, preservation of seed bank and monitoring.
Comments from NHESP indicate that it anticipates that a combination of these measures will
likely result in a long-term net benefit to rare species, as required by the MESA regulations. As
detailed below, the FEIR should identify potential mitigation measures on-site and at other
locations on Nantucket.
Stormwater Management
Seven of the ten projects described in the DEIR will add impervious area for a
cumulative net increase of 9.8 acres of impervious area. Stormwater runoff from paved surfaces
at the Airport is directed to Best Management Practices (BMPs) such as swales, infiltration
basins and vegetated filter strips and is infiltrated on site. All stormwater will continue to be
infiltrated under proposed conditions; there will be no discharges to surface water bodies and the
Airport is not required to obtain an NPDES Multi-Sector General Permit for Stormwater
Discharges Associated with Industrial Activity (MSGP). In addition to the BMPs currently used,
the proposed projects will include the use of deep-sump hooded catch basins, leaching catch
basins and subsurface infiltration structures to capture, treat and infiltrate runoff from new paved
areas as required by the Massachusetts Stormwater Management Standards (SMS).
Approximately 75 percent (7.3 acres) of new impervious area will be constructed for Project 5:
Expand the South Apron. According to the DEIR, stormwater from the expanded South Apron
will be treated with two sets of BMPs operating in sequence that will remove over 96 percent of
the Total Suspended Solids (TSS) from the runoff prior to infiltration. I note that the proposed
drainage systems appear to be sized for modeled storms under existing climate conditions. The
FEIR should evaluate designs of the stormwater management system that can accommodate
increased precipitation and higher-intensity storm events projected under future climate
conditions.
Water and Wastewater
The Airport is located over a Sole Source Aquifer that is a source of drinking water for
Nantucket. According to the DEIR, groundwater flows south across the Airport site to the
Atlantic Ocean. Potential impacts to groundwater quality by the projects described in the DEIR
are associated with infiltration of runoff containing pollutants from new paved areas. As
described above, groundwater impacts will be minimized by the construction of stormwater
management systems meeting the SMS, including removal of at least 80 percent of TSS in runoff
prior to discharge. The projects will not affect existing Airport operations involving fuel, oil,
firefighting foam and other hazardous substances that could impact groundwater if released
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accidentally. The Airport will continue to implement its existing Spill Prevention, Control and
Countermeasure Plan to contain and remediate spills and leaks from aircraft and other vehicles
and equipment. The EPA has the authority to review projects within Sole Source Aquifers in
accordance with the federal Safe Drinking Water Act. During the review period, the Proponent
provided a copy of a letter from the EPA that indicated that the projects are not anticipated to
pose a significant threat of groundwater contamination that could pose a health hazard. As
described below, the Airport is actively sampling groundwater and soil to determine the scope of
groundwater contamination involving per- and poly-fluoralkyl substances (PFAS) originating
from Airport activities and measures to mitigate these impacts. 5
Project 8: Construct Four Residential Units at Nobadeer Farm to Serve as Crew Quarters,
is the only proposed project that will increase water use and wastewater generation. Because
only four residential units will be constructed, the project will not have significant impacts on the
capacity of the drinking water or wastewater systems serving the area. Water conservation
measures such as low-flow plumbing fixtures will be installed in the crew quarters to minimize
water use.
Hazardous Waste
According to the DEIR, there are 11 documented releases of oil and hazardous material at
the Airport that are regulated under M.G.L. c. 21E, the Massachusetts Contingency Plan (MCP)
and have been assigned Release Tracking Numbers (RTNs). Four of the releases are located in
sites to be disturbed by projects proposed in the DEIR. As summarized below, the DEIR
provided additional information concerning RTN 4-28219, which applies to releases of PFAS
associated with the use of firefighting foam in emergencies and during training exercises. The
three other releases, for which remediation activities have been completed, were reviewed in
detail in the EENF and the EENF Certificate; soil disturbed in these areas will be tested for any
remaining contamination to determine the need for construction-period mitigation measures and
handling and disposal requirements.
In March 2019, MassDEP requested information from the Airport regarding past and
present use of firefighting foam at the site, which is associated with PFAS contamination. In
response to information provided by the Airport, MassDEP issued a Notice of Response Action
(NORA) that required sampling of groundwater from wells downgradient (south) of the Airport
in the direction of groundwater flow. Samples collected from a drinking water supply well
downgradient of the Airport in February 2020 detected PFAS at concentrations exceeding the
MCP standard of 20 parts per trillion (ppt). As a result, MassDEP required the Airport to
conduct an Immediate Response Action (IRA), which included sampling of drinking water
supply wells downgradient (south) of the Airport, provision of bottled water and point-of-entry
(POET) water filtration systems at properties where the concentration of PFAS exceeded 20 ppt
and soil sampling. The Airport is continuing to implement the IRA, including sampling of
drinking water and supply wells in the residential areas west of the Airport and of soil in areas
where firefighting foam had been used. According to the DEIR, the Airport has conducted three
PFAS is comprised of six compounds, collectively known as the “PFAS6”, including
perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS), perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA), perfluorohexane sulfonic acid
(PFHxS), perfluorononanoic acid (PFNA), perfluoroheptanoic acid (PFHpA) and perfluorodecanoic acid
(PFDA).
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public meetings regarding PFAS and is working with the Town of Nantucket and the
Wannacomet Water Company to extend water service to areas where the groundwater supply has
been impacted by PFAS.
According to MassDEP, recently completed tests at the site have detected PFAS at
concentrations exceeding the MCP S-1 soil limits of 0.3 to 2.0 micrograms per kilogram. 6 Based
on records of where firefighting foam has been used at the site, one or more PFAS compounds
are likely to be encountered in soil and/or groundwater during construction of Project 1:
Rehabilitate Runway 6-24 and Relocate Stub Taxiways B; Project 5: Expand the South Apron;
and Project 9: Construct GSE Building. The Airport is continuing its PFAS sampling program.
Prior to construction of the projects, a Release Abatement Measure (RAM) plan will be
developed in accordance with the MCP and submitted to MassDEP. The RAM Plan will specify
remediation activities and mitigation measures for contaminated soil disturbed by the projects.
According to the DEIR, firefighting foam will continue to be used in emergencies; however,
during annual testing and training exercises, firefighting foam is retained within the firefighting
vehicles and is not discharged to the ground.
Noise and Air Quality
The DEIR reviewed Airport noise levels and air emissions under existing and proposed
conditions, described existing noise abatement and air quality mitigation measures implemented
at the Airport and reviewed potential additional mitigation measures. According to the DEIR,
Nantucket is in compliance with the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for all
air pollutants. Because the projects will not significantly increase the capacity of the Airport, the
air quality analysis was limited to potential GHG emissions associated with building energy use
and land alteration, which are addressed below.
According to the DEIR, the Airport has periodically conducted noise measurement
studies to produce contour maps identifying noise levels within the Airport property and adjacent
areas. The DEIR included a contour map showing the area around the Airport that is subject to
an average 24-hour noise level of 65 decibels (dBA), which corresponds to the FAA’s threshold
for significant adverse noise impact. 7 The contour map shows that the area affected by an
average noise level of 65 dBA is almost entirely confined to the Airport property, except for a
total of seven properties northwest and south of the airfield and several commercial properties
northwest of Runway 6-24. The Airport currently implements a Noise Compatibility Program
that includes flight and landing procedures intended to minimize noise, a noise complaint
reporting and follow-up system and providing noise exposure maps to realtors that can be
incorporated into real estate agreements. The Airport also administers voluntary programs that
encourage flight procedures that minimize noise impacts, provide rebates of landing fees based
on the use of selected flight corridors, and discourage the prolonged use of auxiliary power units
(APU), which are generating systems on airplanes that provide power while the main engines are
off.
According to the DEIR, the S-1 soil limit varies depending on the individual PFAS compound.
In computing the average noise levels over a 24-hour period, noise events occurring between 10:00 PM
and 7:00 AM are increased by 10 dB to account for the more intrusive nature of noise at night. The sound
level is measured using the “A-weighted” system (expressed as dBA), which accounts for the sensitivity
of human hearing to certain frequencies.
6
7
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According to the DEIR, the proposed projects will not increase the number of flights and
are not anticipated to significantly increase noise levels in general. The project most likely to
have a negative impact on noise levels is Project 5: Expand the South Apron, which is proposed
along the west side of the Airport close to a residential area. The DEIR included a summary of a
noise study that evaluated noise impacts and potential mitigation measures associated with the
use of the proposed expanded South Apron. The study determined that the maximum
instantaneous A-weighted sound level (Lmax) would increase by 6 to 8 dBA. According to the
DEIR, this increase is not significant because it does not represent prolonged exposure to
elevated noise levels and will occur during the day, when background noise levels are high and
the increased noise would be less noticeable. However, the DEIR reviewed potential mitigation
measures to minimize noise impacts of the expanded South Apron on nearby residential areas.
Requiring airplanes on the South Apron to use ground power units (GPU), which are land-based
generators, rather than APUs would result in an increase of only 1 to 2 dBA Lmax compared to
existing conditions; a 2,600-ft long, 15-ft tall noise barrier would reduce noise levels by 3 to 6
dBA Lmax compared to existing conditions in some locations but increase noise levels by 3 dBA
Lmax at a few receptors; and a 1,500-ft long, 15-ft tall earthen berm would decrease noise levels
by 3 to 4 dBA Lmax at receptors behind the berm but cause an increase of 1 to 2 dBA Lmax at a
few receptors south of the berm.
As noted above, residents have expressed concern about noise impacts and air emissions
from airplanes at the Airport in general and specifically from idling airplanes. According to
MassDEP, the Air Quality regulations (310 CMR 7.11(3) Aircraft) prohibit operation of aircraft
while on the ground that contribute to off-site air pollution. As detailed in the Scope below, the
FEIR should provide additional information on potential noise and air impacts from the
expanded South Apron and review potential mitigation measures.
Climate Change
The DEIR provided an analysis of stationary-source GHG emissions associated with
Project 8: Construct Four Residential Units at Nobadeer Farm to Serve as Crew Quarters and
reviewed energy efficiency measures implemented by the Airport. It reviewed existing and
future site conditions and described design features to improve resiliency to the effects of climate
change.
Adaptation and Resiliency
The southern end of the Airport property, including a perimeter road and security fence,
borders a section of the Atlantic Ocean shoreline that has eroded at an average rate of 7.5 feet per
year over the last 163 years. According to CZM, erosion rates in this area are dynamic and can
vary from year to year depending on changes in offshore bathymetry and seasonal storm
frequency. Furthermore, costal erosion is anticipated to increase as sea levels rise; climate
change projections prepared by the Northeast Climate Science Center at the University of
Massachusetts at Amherst indicate that sea level on Nantucket is expected to rise by 4.2 to 10.5
ft by the end of the century. 8 Project 7: Relocate Perimeter Road and Fence will relocate the
This data is available through the Climate Change Clearinghouse for the Commonwealth at
www.resilientMA.org.
8
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section of the road closest to the shoreline 150 ft in an inland direction to avoid damage from
erosion. This project is anticipated to be constructed in 2027; however, the Airport will monitor
shoreline conditions and relocate the road and fence when further erosion poses a direct threat to
the structures. The southern end of the paved portion of Runway 6-24 is currently approximately
900 feet north of the shoreline and the RSA and navigation structures are located between the
runway and shoreline. According to the DEIR, it is anticipated that based on shoreline
monitoring, it may be necessary in the future to relocate Runway 6-24 and associated structures,
including navigational aids, to the northeast to avoid damage from erosion and coastal storms. As
detailed in the Scope below, the FEIR should estimate when the runway and associated
structures may require relocation based on current erosion rates and identify potential measures
to increase the facility’s resiliency.
Greenhouse Gas Emissions
The DEIR included a GHG analysis based on the MEPA GHG Policy. The GHG Policy
requires projects to quantify carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions and identify measures to avoid,
minimize or mitigate such emissions. The analysis quantified the direct and indirect CO2
emissions associated with the energy use of the proposed crew quarters and GSE buildings
(stationary sources), identified measures to minimize vehicle -related emissions (mobile sources)
and evaluated carbon emissions and lost carbon sequestration potential associated with tree
clearing for the South Apron expansion. The DEIR also provided an inventory of the energy use
and GHG emissions of existing buildings and reviewed energy efficiency initiatives undertaken
by the Airport to minimize GHG emissions.
Airport GHG Inventory
In response to the Scope included in the EENF Certificate, the DEIR provided an
inventory of energy consumption (based on 2019 utility bills), energy use intensity (EUI) and
GHG emissions for each of the Airport’s eight existing buildings with conditioned space. In
total, the buildings used 9,567 Million British Thermal Units (MMBtu) and emitted 908 tons of
GHG in 2019. Approximately 74 percent of the energy was supplied by electricity, 23 percent by
oil and three percent by propane. I commend the Airport for developing this inventory as a
framework for evaluating the effectiveness of its ongoing efforts to minimize energy use at the
facility.
The Airport has implemented energy efficiency measures including a geothermal
heating/cooling unit, LED lighting and low flow plumbing in the Terminal, high-efficiency
lighting and occupancy sensors in the hangars, LED lighting in parking areas, and three electric
vehicle (EV) charging stations. Recent energy audits have recommended additional measures,
including replacement of interior and exterior lighting systems with LED lighting, programmable
thermostats, replacement of existing boilers with high-efficiency condensing boilers,
replacement of air condensers and air handling units with more efficient units and replacement of
shower heads and kitchen spray valves with water-conserving plumbing fixtures. The Airport has
evaluated the feasibility of constructing solar photovoltaic systems on the site; however, the
analysis found that rooftops of existing buildings are not angled appropriately and posed
concerns about the glare associated with PV systems.
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According to the Department of Energy Resources (DOER), the energy use by the
existing buildings appears to be relatively high based on the building types and size. In addition,
the buildings rely on fossil fuels, which are expensive and result in high GHG emissions
compared to electric heating systems such as air source heat pumps (ASHP). I encourage the
Airport to incorporate electrification of heating and cooling systems and improvements to
building envelopes into its Capital Improvement Plan to reduce costs and minimize GHG
emissions.
Stationary Source Emissions from Proposed Support Buildings
The DEIR included a stationary source GHG analysis of the proposed crew quarters
buildings. It evaluated CO2 emissions for a Base Case design that meets the minimum energy
requirements of the 9th Edition of the Massachusetts Building Code and a Design Case that
incorporates additional energy efficiency measures. Nantucket has adopted the Stretch Energy
Code (SC) which requires residential buildings with four stories or less to meet one of three
energy pathways: Section R406:Energy Rating Index, Energy Star Homes 3.1 or Passivehouse.
The Base Case was designed to achieve a Home Energy Rating Index (HERS) of 55. The Design
Case was designed to use less energy consistent with a HERS 45 rating.
The GHG analysis used the Ekotrope RATER modelling software to quantify energy use
and GHG emissions of the Base Case and Design Case alternatives. Under the Base Case, the
crew quarters buildings would emit 12.2 tons per year (tpy) of CO2. According to the DEIR, the
mitigation measures included in the Design Case will reduce GHG emissions to 9.7 tpy, a
reduction of 2.5 tpy (20.6 percent). Key energy efficiency measures incorporated into the
Design Case include triple pane windows and roof and wall insulation exceeding baseline
requirements, including continuous insulation to minimize air infiltration. I note that the Design
Case includes the use of a propane furnace. As noted by DOER, the electrification of the heating
system with ASHPs would not only minimize GHG emissions and lower heating and cooling
costs for tenants, but would result in overall savings because it would avoid the need for a
separate air conditioning system.
The DEIR evaluated a Passivehouse design for the crew quarters buildings that includes
additional insulation, improved windows and energy recovery and reduced infiltration and plug
loads. The Passivehouse design alternative would reduce GHG emissions by 50.2 percent (6.1
tpy) compared to the Preferred Alternative (Design Case) and would result in utility savings of
$1,248 per year. Financial incentives offered through the MassSave program, DOER and the
Massachusetts Clean Energy Center (MassCEC) would reduce construction costs by
approximately $11,000 per building.
The DEIR also included a review of stationary source emissions from the proposed GSE
Building. Because the building will not be conditioned, the analysis was limited to electricity
use associated with lighting. The Design Case for the GSE Building includes LED lighting,
reduced lighting power density (LPD), occupancy controls and daylight harvesting controls to
minimize energy consumption and GHG emissions. Compared to a Base Case design with a
baseline lighting system, the Design Case will result in GHG emissions of 0.5 tpy, an 86 percent
reduction in emissions from the Base Case (3.3 tpy).
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Mobile Source Emissions
The proposed projects will not generate significant vehicle trips and the DEIR did not
provide a quantitative analysis of GHG emissions associated with vehicles. According to the
DEIR, the construction of crew quarters close to the Airport may minimize GHG emissions by
reducing the commuting distance for some Airport staff members. To reduce single occupancy
vehicle (SOV) trips by Airport customers, the Airport promotes the use of the Nantucket
Regional Transit Authority’s shuttle service (“The WAVE”), which provides service between the
Airport and downtown Nantucket every 20 minutes. The Airport has installed three EV charging
stations and has plans to install additional charging stations. I encourage the Airport to install
bicycle racks and provide locker and shower facilities to promote walking and bicycling by its
employees.
Land Alteration
The GHG Policy requires EIR projects altering significant land area to quantify GHG
emissions resulting from tree cutting and soil disturbance and the associated long-term loss of
carbon sequestration potential. The proposed land disturbance will primarily affect paved areas
and grassland; therefore, the analysis was limited to GHG emissions and lost carbon
sequestration potential caused by the clearing a total of 7.3 acres of trees for Project 5: Expand
the South Apron, Project 8: Construct Four Residential Units at Nobadeer Farm to Serve as Crew
Quarters and Project 10: Expand Marine Storage Facility. Based on estimates developed by the
EPA, cutting the trees will cause a loss of 637 metric tons of carbon (85 metric tons per acre) or
approximately 2,502 metric tons of CO2, and an ongoing loss of sequestration potential of 5.6 tpy
(0.77 metric tons of CO2 per acre per year). I note that the estimated emissions from tree clearing
alone (not including lost sequestration) far exceeds the emissions from the crew quarters and
GSE building combined. The FEIR should review GHG mitigation measures, such as a
commitment to constructing the crew quarters to Passivehouse standards and contributions to
tree planting programs or carbon registries, to offset the carbon emissions of the project.
Construction
The DEIR identified construction-period measures to mitigate impacts to rare species
habitat, water quality, traffic, noise and air quality. Stormwater management measures will be
used to minimize sedimentation and erosion. Construction contractors will be required to use
Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel fuel, minimize idling and follow designated truck routes. As noted
above, excavated soil and groundwater will be tested for contamination, including PFAS;
contaminated material will be handled in accordance with the MCP. Asphalt removed from
existing taxiways and other paved areas will be reused on site or recycled.
Conclusion
The DEIR described the project and associated environmental impacts and mitigation
measures consistent with the Scope included in the EENF Certificate. The Proponent should
submit an FEIR that provides the additional analyses of rare species mitigation, noise and air
quality impacts of the South Apron expansion, PFAS remediation and GHG emissions as
specified in the Scope below.
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SCOPE
General
The FEIR should follow Section 11.07 of the MEPA regulations for outline and content
and additional information and analyses required by this Scope. It should clearly demonstrate
that project includes all feasible measures to avoid Damage to the Environment, or to the extent
Damage to the Environment cannot be avoided, that it includes measures to minimize and
mitigate Damage to the Environment to the maximum extent feasible.
Project Description and Permitting
The FEIR should provide an updated description, if necessary, of the proposed projects. It
should include plans of existing and proposed conditions at a legible scale, including buildings,
uses within buildings, roadways, public areas, impervious areas, subsurface utilities, surface
elevations, wetland resource areas, rare species habitat and stormwater and utility infrastructure.
The FEIR should identify and describe applicable State, federal and local statutory and
regulatory standards and requirements and review how the projects will meet those standards. It
should identify any changes to the projects, including changes in proposed phasing or additional
proposed activities, since the filing of the DEIR.
Rare Species
The Proponent has proposed to mitigate impacts to rare species habitat by providing
funding for off-site habitat enhancement or protection. The FEIR should include a
comprehensive review of mitigation opportunities on Nantucket that the Airport could fund to
provide a net benefit to the species affected by the projects. I encourage the Airport to consult
with NHESP and the Nantucket Land Council prior to filing the FEIR.
Noise and Air Quality
According to MassDEP, aircraft on the ground should cease operating their engines until
they are ready to depart and meet their energy requirements using GPUs in order to minimize
noise and air emissions. The FEIR should provide a more detailed description of aircraft
operations on the proposed expanded South Apron and evaluate air emissions and noise
generated by these activities. At a minimum, the FEIR should review the noise mitigation
alternatives for the South Apron identified in the DEIR, including a noise wall, a noise berm and
use of GPUs, with respect to their potential to offer dual benefits for minimizing air emissions
and noise. It should evaluate the feasibility of an alternate location for airplane parking that is
farther away from residential areas, such as the area north of the Terminal building. The Airport
should also consider suggestions offered in comment letters.
Hazardous Waste
The FEIR should provide an update on the Proponent’s sampling and analysis of PFAS,
including sampling results, additional analyses to be conducted and measures to address
impacted drinking water wells. It should provide an overview of the anticipated MCP process for
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this site, including requirements for sampling, analysis and remediation, and a conceptual
timeframe for completion of these requirements. The FEIR should address potential requirements
for testing of soil and groundwater within the project sites. The Airport is likely to seek to
commence construction of the projects before remediation of the site is completed; therefore, the
FEIR should review the process by which that could be allowed under the MCP and identify
potential measures for handling, storage, disposal and treatment of contaminated soil and/or
groundwater. If possible, the FEIR should identify potential changes in the design of the project
or construction schedule associated with PFAS remediation.
Climate Change
The DEIR acknowledged that Runway 6-24 may require relocation in the future as the
shoreline at the south end of the site continues to erode. Using sea level rise projections available
from the Climate Change Clearinghouse for the Commonwealth, the FEIR should describe the
planning process for the potential runway relocation, including specific monitoring protocols,
erosion setback limits and triggers for further analysis. To the extent available, the most updated
data from the Massachusetts Coastal Flood Risk Model (MC-FRM) should be consulted. The
FEIR should clearly identify the useful life (planning horizon) of the project and how project
components, including runways, will be designed to meet future climate conditions within that
planning horizon, based on sea level rise and inundation projections. If the project will not be
resilient to climate conditions within the planning horizon, the FEIR should identify how the
project will engage in future planning to improve resiliency over time. Given the criticality of the
airport as a means of transportation for the public, careful planning is needed to ensure that this
asset is preserved and can adapt to climate conditions. I encourage the Airport to consult with
CZM in developing this protocol.
The stormwater management systems proposed in the DEIR appear to be designed to
accommodate storm events under current conditions. As critical transportation infrastructure for
the island, the Airport should design its drainage systems with sufficient capacity to ensure that
runoff can be collected and managed under more frequent and intense storm events anticipated in
the future. The FEIR should review the performance of the drainage systems using the best
available climate projections and data; at a minimum, rainfall data from the NOAA Atlas 14
should be consulted and increased by a factor that takes into account the effects of climate
change. If the project (including supporting infrastructure) will not be designed to meet
specifications based on climate projections, the FEIR should provide an explanation of the
reasons and a description of whether and how the project will be able to take further steps to
adapt to climate conditions at a later stage. The Airport should review reports of flooding near its
gate on Monohansett Road identified in the comment letter from the Surfside Association and
identify any additional drainage improvements that may be necessary.
The proposed design of the crew quarters has a HERS rating of 45 and in many respects
is consistent with Passivehouse design standards. I encourage the Airport to commit to
constructing the residential buildings to Passivehouse standards with electric ASHP for heating
and cooling as a significant GHG mitigation measure. The FEIR should provide an update on
mitigation commitments relative to the 7.3 acres of tree clearing to be undertaken by the project,
including potential tree plantings or contributions to tree planting programs or carbon registries
and measures to reduce building energy use, that would mitigate direct emissions and loss of
carbon sequestration potential.
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Mitigation and Draft Section 61 Findings
The FEIR should include a separate chapter summarizing proposed mitigation measures,
including construction-period measures. This chapter should also include detailed draft Section
61 Findings for each State Agency Action, including permits and funding. The FEIR should
contain clear commitments to implement these mitigation measures, estimate the individual costs
of each proposed measure, identify the parties responsible for implementation, and a schedule for
implementation.
The FEIR should include a commitment to provide a GHG self-certification to the MEPA
Office at the completion of the project and prior to issuance of building permits. It should be
signed by an appropriate professional (e.g. engineer, architect, transportation planner, general
contractor) indicating that all of the GHG mitigation measures, or equivalent measures that are
designed to collectively achieve identified reductions in stationary source GHG emission and
transportation-related measures, have been incorporated into the project. To the extent the project
will take equivalent measures to achieve the identified reductions, I encourage the Proponent to
commit to achieving the same level of GHG emissions identified in the mitigated (design)
case expressed in volumetric terms (e.g., tpy). The GHG self-certification should provide a
narrative description of any changes made to building design or TDM measures since the FEIR.
The FEIR should describe an approach for providing self-certifications to the MEPA Office
based on project phasing or completion of individual buildings.
Responses to Comments
The FEIR should contain a copy of this Certificate and a copy of each comment letter
received. It should include a separate chapter that fully and specifically responds to each DEIR
comment letter without merely referencing a chapter of the FEIR. Failure to provide substantive
responses may result in a supplemental review. This directive is not intended to, and shall not be
construed to, enlarge the Scope of the FEIR beyond what has been expressly identified in this
certificate.
Circulation
The Proponent should circulate the FEIR to those parties who commented on the ENF
and/or DEIR, to any State Agencies from which the Proponent will seek permits or approvals,
and to any parties specified in section 11.16 of the MEPA regulations. Per 301 CMR 11.16(5),
the Proponent may circulate copies of the FEIR to commenters in CD-ROM format or by
directing commenters to a project website address. However, the Proponent must make a
reasonable number of hard copies available to accommodate those without convenient access to
a computer and distribute these upon request on a first-come, first-served basis. The Proponent
should send correspondence accompanying the CD-ROM or website address indicating that hard
copies are available upon request, noting relevant comment deadlines, and appropriate addresses
for submission of comments. The FEIR submitted to the MEPA office should include a digital
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copy of the complete document. A copy of the FEIR should be made available for review
through the Nantucket Public Library (if open). 9

February 5, 2021
Date

_____________________________
Kathleen A. Theoharides

Comments received:
12/23/2020
12/24/2020
12/24/2020
01/24/2021
01/24/2021
01/24/2021
01/24/2021
01/24/2021
01/24/2021
01/25/2021
01/25/2021
01/25/2021
01/26/2021
01/26/2021
01/26/2021
01/27/2021
01/27/2021
01/28/2021
01/28/2021
01/29/2021
01/29/2021
01/29/2021
01/30/2021
02/05/2021

George Riethof
George Riethof
Jared Smith
Surfside Association
Pat Callaghan
Ann C. Stader
Lucille and Mara Weiner
Claudia and Graham Kilvert
Bob Bettacchi
Steven Gerard
Barbara and Mark White
Division of Marine Fisheries (DMF)
Bob Thomas
Catherine Pierson
Reese Shepard
Kent Jarrell
Massachusetts Office of Coastal Zone Management (CZM)
Paul C. Shepard
Spencer Goldsmith
Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program (NHESP)
Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP)/Southeast
Regional Office (SERO)
Nantucket Land Council
Alison Townsend
Department of Energy Resources (DOER)

KAT/AJS/ajs

Requirements for hard copy distribution or mailings will be suspended during the Commonwealth’s
COVID-19 response, to the extent public facilities are closed. Please consult the MEPA website for
further details on interim procedures during this emergency period:
https://www.mass.gov/orgs/massachusetts-environmental-policy-act-office.
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From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Wixon, Josephine (EEA) on behalf of MEPA (EEA)
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
FW: Nantucket Airport Capital Improvement Plan comments
Thursday, December 24, 2020 12:34:31 PM

From: George Riethof <george@riethof.net>
Sent: Wednesday, December 23, 2020 9:39 AM
To: MEPA (EEA) <mepa@mass.gov>
Subject: Nantucket Airport Capital Improvement Plan comments
CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts mail system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

This is a comment regarding the Nantucket Airport Capital Improvement Plan.
I wish to comment on aspects of the plan, particularly the proposed closure of Runway 12/30.
In the DEIR/EA, the intent of this provision of the plan is noted as:
"No longer needed as a runway and requires extensive cost and impact to maintain as a runway"
I strongly disagree with this aspect of the plan.
First of all, Runway 30 is used regularly, mostly on busy summer traffic days, as a reliever runway to
facilitate greater landing density. This runway is used mostly by smaller planes (up to the size of a
Cessna 402, to include single engine aircraft). The runway is particularly useful as it is not an intersecting
runway with Runway 24 (which typically carries the bulk of the airport traffic when winds are from the
northwest to southwest, the predominant prevailing winds on mostly good-weather days). Given that it is
non-intersecting, there is no substantial concern about Land and Hold Short (LAHSO) operations (i.e.
some commercial carriers are not able to accept LAHSO clearances; the transmittal of information
regarding LAHSO distances clutters the radio frequencies, etc). So, Runway 30 is often used in
preference to the longer, wider, and more suitable Runway 33 predominantly because it is nonintersecting.  
The alternative to use of Runway 30 would be either use of 33 with LAHSO, which as noted, is
substantially less convenient and in some cases, unworkable.  
The other alternative is to concentrate all traffic on 24. This would result in considerably more air traffic
mostly along the northern tier of the island, over the heavily populated areas of Shawkemo, Polpis,
Pocomo, Quaise, Wauwinet, Pocomo, Squam, and Quidnet, as aircraft would be required to extend
downwind operations to accommodate a longer final approach. Naturally, this is less safe than having a
smaller final approach with less aircraft. For single engine aircraft, this would also entail more operation
more distant from the airport and over water: which are safety concerns for single engine aircraft.  
More traffic landing on Runway 30 would introduce very minor noise impacts: there are only a few
occupied residences near the final approach of Runway 30, and in fact, there are only about a half dozen
which are reasonably impacted, and all of these homes were built well after the airport was developed,
so the airport has not encroached on any of these properties. Most of the land to the south and southeast
of the runway is either aiport land or open space.  

Runway 12 is rarely used, although it is useful in cases where winds strongly favor Runway 12, for
departures. Runway 12 is rarely used for arrivals although I have seen it used in cases where winds
called for it.  
Runway 30 is rarely used for departures, although when Island Air operated Cessna Caravans on a
regular basis, the runway was sometimes used for departure i.e. taxi via Taxiway C , turn around and
depart 30. This was used due to the fact that the Caravan is somewhat critical on crosswinds, particularly
on takeoff, and some pilots found that winds required use of 30 for departure due to crosswind limitation
exceedance. This was utilized surprisingly often, in fact.
Additionally, not only should Runway 12/30 remain as an operational runway, widening the runway to say,
75 feet in width, and addition of a runup area turnout toward the end of Taxiway C, short of the Runway
33 hold short line, for departures on Runway 33, would further enhance safety and efficiency which would
enhance the utility of Runway 33 for departures as well.  
So, given the foregoing i.e.
1. Considerable benefit derived from frequent Runway 30 operations to reduce arriving air traffic density
over the island and improve operational efficiency on busy days,
2. Little to no adverse noise or environmental impact of arrivals to Runway 30, and
3. Critical secondary operational and safety benefits of availability of Runway 12 for arrivals and
departures, and Runway 30 for departures, particularly when adverse weather conditions demand it,
I believe that continuing to operate Runway 12/30 is strongly beneficial in light of all of the priorities set
forth in the Capital Improvement Plan.
Thank you for your consideration,
George Riethof
Commercial Pilot
Airport tenant (N36GR, Cessna 172)
Captain, Allies Air (Cessna 402/414) Part 135 Air Taxi operator

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Wixon, Josephine (EEA) on behalf of MEPA (EEA)
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
FW: Nantucket Airport Capital Improvement Plan comments
Thursday, December 24, 2020 12:35:07 PM

From: George Riethof <george@riethof.net>
Sent: Wednesday, December 23, 2020 9:55 AM
To: MEPA (EEA) <mepa@mass.gov>
Subject: Fw: Nantucket Airport Capital Improvement Plan comments
CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts mail system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

And an addendum to this comment:
Regarding decommissioning of 12-30:
In the DEIR/EA, it is noted that a parallel taxiway would be needed to meet FAA guidelines.
I am sure there is a waiver available for this 'guideline', as it might be prohibitive, costwise, to construct
this taxiway for the limited use the runway receives.  
It is noted that due to day-only use etc, the runway only handles less than 3% of the airport's traffic. This
is under 3% on the margin, and to move that 3% to Runway 24 or the far less useful intersecting Runway
33, would have the adverse impacts I discuss below.
That runways 12-30 and 15-33 cannot be used simultaneously is not only moot, but not necessarily true.
Aircraft can arrive Runway 30 and 33 sequentially, not that this is often done or desirable, but there is no
substantial adverse impact of this configuration issue.  
The "no-build" alternative notes that the runway would continue to be used "infrequently...and would
continue to be a potential cause of conflicts between aircraft". On the contrary, the runway strongly
contributes to deconfliction of air traffic and reduction of air traffic density.
thank you.
------ Forwarded Message -------From: George Riethof <george@riethof.net>
Date: 12/23/2020 9:39:26 AM
Subject: Nantucket Airport Capital Improvement Plan comments
To: mepa@mass.gov
This is a comment regarding the Nantucket Airport Capital Improvement Plan.
I wish to comment on aspects of the plan, particularly the proposed closure of Runway 12/30.
In the DEIR/EA, the intent of this provision of the plan is noted as:
"No longer needed as a runway and requires extensive cost and impact to maintain as a runway"

I strongly disagree with this aspect of the plan.
First of all, Runway 30 is used regularly, mostly on busy summer traffic days, as a reliever runway to
facilitate greater landing density. This runway is used mostly by smaller planes (up to the size of a
Cessna 402, to include single engine aircraft). The runway is particularly useful as it is not an intersecting
runway with Runway 24 (which typically carries the bulk of the airport traffic when winds are from the
northwest to southwest, the predominant prevailing winds on mostly good-weather days). Given that it is
non-intersecting, there is no substantial concern about Land and Hold Short (LAHSO) operations (i.e.
some commercial carriers are not able to accept LAHSO clearances; the transmittal of information
regarding LAHSO distances clutters the radio frequencies, etc). So, Runway 30 is often used in
preference to the longer, wider, and more suitable Runway 33 predominantly because it is nonintersecting.  
The alternative to use of Runway 30 would be either use of 33 with LAHSO, which as noted, is
substantially less convenient and in some cases, unworkable.  
The other alternative is to concentrate all traffic on 24. This would result in considerably more air traffic
mostly along the northern tier of the island, over the heavily populated areas of Shawkemo, Polpis,
Pocomo, Quaise, Wauwinet, Pocomo, Squam, and Quidnet, as aircraft would be required to extend
downwind operations to accommodate a longer final approach. Naturally, this is less safe than having a
smaller final approach with less aircraft. For single engine aircraft, this would also entail more operation
more distant from the airport and over water: which are safety concerns for single engine aircraft.  
More traffic landing on Runway 30 would introduce very minor noise impacts: there are only a few
occupied residences near the final approach of Runway 30, and in fact, there are only about a half dozen
which are reasonably impacted, and all of these homes were built well after the airport was developed,
so the airport has not encroached on any of these properties. Most of the land to the south and southeast
of the runway is either aiport land or open space.  
Runway 12 is rarely used, although it is useful in cases where winds strongly favor Runway 12, for
departures. Runway 12 is rarely used for arrivals although I have seen it used in cases where winds
called for it.  
Runway 30 is rarely used for departures, although when Island Air operated Cessna Caravans on a
regular basis, the runway was sometimes used for departure i.e. taxi via Taxiway C , turn around and
depart 30. This was used due to the fact that the Caravan is somewhat critical on crosswinds, particularly
on takeoff, and some pilots found that winds required use of 30 for departure due to crosswind limitation
exceedance. This was utilized surprisingly often, in fact.
Additionally, not only should Runway 12/30 remain as an operational runway, widening the runway to say,
75 feet in width, and addition of a runup area turnout toward the end of Taxiway C, short of the Runway
33 hold short line, for departures on Runway 33, would further enhance safety and efficiency which would
enhance the utility of Runway 33 for departures as well.  
So, given the foregoing i.e.
1. Considerable benefit derived from frequent Runway 30 operations to reduce arriving air traffic density
over the island and improve operational efficiency on busy days,
2. Little to no adverse noise or environmental impact of arrivals to Runway 30, and
3. Critical secondary operational and safety benefits of availability of Runway 12 for arrivals and
departures, and Runway 30 for departures, particularly when adverse weather conditions demand it,
I believe that continuing to operate Runway 12/30 is strongly beneficial in light of all of the priorities set
forth in the Capital Improvement Plan.
Thank you for your consideration,

George Riethof
Commercial Pilot
Airport tenant (N36GR, Cessna 172)
Captain, Allies Air (Cessna 402/414) Part 135 Air Taxi operator

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Wixon, Josephine (EEA) on behalf of MEPA (EEA)
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
FW: Nantucket Airport DEIR Comments
Thursday, December 24, 2020 12:35:29 PM

From: Jared Smith <jared978@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, December 23, 2020 11:27 AM
To: MEPA (EEA) <mepa@mass.gov>
Subject: Nantucket Airport DEIR Comments
CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts mail system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

I have been an air traffic controller at Nantucket Memorial Airport since 2009. From my perspective I
see both positives and negatives from this report. The first positive I see is constructing a high-speed
taxiway for Runway 24. This is a good idea and is long overdue. Currently, aircraft either need to turn
off at Taxiway Delta (which isn't always possible, especially with larger aircraft), or turn off at the
end, which takes extra time. This extra time could mean the difference between getting a departure
out between Runway 24 arrivals or having to wait. The high-speed turnoff would allow for more
opportunities for departures and increase overall efficiency.
Next, as much as I hate paving over acres and acres of land, expanding the southwest apron is a
must. Airplanes being flown to Nantucket are getting larger and larger, and it doesn't take many
Gulfstreams and Globals to fill up the current apron. This leads to aircraft being parked in the runup
areas at both ends of Taxiway Echo, and, multiple times, closing Runway 15/33 for aircraft parking.
Our workload increases as aircraft need to be tugged back and forth from the runup areas. Also,
when airplanes are parked on Runway 15/33, runway crossings are increased while the possibility of
using Runway 15 for departures is completely eliminated. Expanding the southwest ramp would
hopefully eliminate ever having to close a runway for overflow parking.
Now for the negative: decommissioning Runway 12/30 is a bad idea and should be reconsidered.
Despite its short length, that runway is very important to us. While it may be true that only 3% of
traffic uses this runway, this 3% mostly occurs in the summer during times of peak traffic. We use
Runway 30 as a "reliever" non-intersecting arrival runway for small (less than 12,500 pounds) VFR
aircraft when also landing and departing Runway 24. Not having a second runway to use would
cause significant airborne and ground delays, as inbound VFR aircraft would have to circle until they
can be worked into the arrival flow. Compression on final and go-arounds would likely increase as
well, since mixing aircraft with very different performance characteristics on the same runway is very
difficult to do. We could try land and hold short operations (LAHSO) on Runway 33, but this is
problematic. The only runway exit after landing on Runway 33 is after crossing Runway 24, so only
one airplane at a time could LAHSO. That plane would have to wait on the runway until there is a gap
in the arrival traffic. If there was a parallel taxiway to Runway 33 with a turn-off prior to Runway 24,

LAHSO might work, but I don't see that anywhere in the report. I understand the reason for
eliminating a mid-runway crossing, but does this result in a safer operation? I really don't think so.
Eliminating Runway 12/30 would severely limit our options during the busiest times of traffic. Please
reconsider decommissioning Runway 12/30 without also building a true parallel runway for Runway
15/33.
Thank you,
Jared Smith

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

ANN STADER
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
Airport encroachment
Sunday, January 24, 2021 1:19:32 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system. Do
not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Please think of one of the reasons people love Nantucket. Clean air and water. There is no need to cater to the 1%
as you appear to be doing. For hundreds of years people came to ACK by boat. It is part of the experience. Why is
it necessary to pollute? It is not. Expanding the airport does nothing positive for the majority who know and love
this special place, 30 miles at sea. Legitimate concerns about global warming make this plan even more absurd.
Are you trying to make something easily accessible for jet owners while at the same time eliminate this island?
Sounds like a ridiculous waste of resources.
Ann C. Stader
9 Uncatena St.
ACK TAX
Sent from my iPhone

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Robert Bettacchi
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
South Apron expansion
Sunday, January 24, 2021 6:55:15 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system. Do
not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

I write to express my support for the inclusion of a sound suppression berm when the south apron extension is
approved. I am a neighbor of the airport living on an Okorwaw Avenue and the sound suppression berm is
extremely important to the quality of life in this area.
Take care, Be safe, Stay well
Bob Bettacchi
1 Okorwaw Avenue
Nantucket, MA 02554
P: 508.228.9104
C: 617.877.2777

From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:

graham kilvert
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
surfsideassociationbeach@gmail.com; Claudia Kilvert
Nantucket Airport expansion of the parking apron.
Sunday, January 24, 2021 6:36:41 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system. Do
not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Mr. Strysky,
My name is Graham Kilvert. My wife and I reside on Skyline Drive, near the Nantucket Airport. Throughout the
year, any time there is a breeze from the east, or southeast, our neighborhood is bathed in jet exhaust from jets
entering and leaving the parking apron. We are continually dealing with jet exhaust fumes, especially in the summer
when the air traffic increases to levels surpassing Logan Airport. The airports proposed expansion of the parking
apron will significantly increase the environmental risks to the residences that abut the airport. We are totally
against any further expansion of the apron in the proposed location. Alternatively, the airport has many other areas
that it could expand into If they need to increase the parking apron. If they need to expand the apron they should
be required to expand on the other side of the runways, in the area that abuts the commercial industrial park where
there is no residential housing.
The airport has already put the health of this neighborhood at risk as a result of introducing PFAS into our water
table. Now, the proposed expansion of the parking apron closer to the abutting residential neighborhood with the
clear impact to air quality is unacceptable and should not be allowed.
Furthermore, for the airport management to say they are unable to finance the cost of a berm because of the cost of
dealing with PFAS, is absurd. If they can not afford a berm to protect the abutting neighborhood, they should not be
permitted to expand their apron.
Most of us who reside in this neighborhood built our homes when the airport was a small operation. Over the years,
the airport has continued to expand both in terms of runways and passenger volume. The airport has many acres of
land and can expand their parking apron in any number of areas on their campus. There is no need to expand in the
proposed location which will only create more noise, and air pollution for the many abutters to the west of the
airport. We respectively request that the airport be denied the right to expand the parking apron as proposed .
Sincerely,
Claudia and Graham Kilvert

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Luci
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
ACK Airport Capitol Project
Sunday, January 24, 2021 1:22:13 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system. Do
not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Alexander Strysky,
Before proceeding with the above mentioned project we ask that you require a berm.
Also to explain that we at 5 Nobadeer Ave are affected by noise and odors from airplanes sitting on the apron with
their engines running. We are one mile away from this airport.
Please consider these requests before making any final decisions.
Best Regards,
Lucille and Mara Weiner
Sent from my iPhone

From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:

Pat Rossin Callaghan
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
Tom Szydlowski
noise abatement
Sunday, January 24, 2021 12:20:15 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system. Do
not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello,
   I am a resident of Surfside. While I appreciate the concerns of the airport, I think it is important to mitigate the
sound of additional noise on our peaceful island. Surely the landscaping and planting of a berm are a small addition
to your overall project. I hope you will consider it.
Best,
Pat Callaghan

From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:

Tom Szydlowski
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
Noah Karberg
Public Comments on Nantucket Airport Capital Improvements
Sunday, January 24, 2021 10:39:43 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts mail system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
The Surfside Association has the following comments on the Draft Environmental Impact
Report and Environmental Assessment (DEIR/EA) Public Meeting held by the Nantucket
Airport Commission.
The Surfside Association represents over 150 homeowners in an area abutting the airport to
the west.
Before I make my comments on the EA, I would like to say that it was unfortunate that the
airport chose to change its method for participating in the meeting for this meeting. I found it
very difficult to understand how to speak at this public meeting. I'm sure others were
deterred by the confusion.
Members of the Surfside Association feel that the expansion of the South Apron will affect us
and have not been adequately addressed in the EA.  
We are affected by the airport in the following ways.
1. Noise and Odor - There are two types of noise and odor issues that could be better
addressed in the report. First, There is a lot of noise and odor currently from planes that are
parked on the existing apron. These planes run their engines to air condition the plane while
awaiting the arrival of the passengers. Expanding the apron will double this nuisance. The
EA seems to conclude that the apron expansion will not have environmental effects on our
neighborhood. This is entirely untrue. We are extremely concerned that the noise berm is not
actually included in the project, although hyped in the materials. As a "possible enhancement"
and with comments by the board chair it appears that this is unlikely.
We also don't see plans for either Ground Power Units or mobile units to provide power to
parked planes.
We recommend that planes be required to park with their noses to the west so that fumes
would move towards the airport and be dissipated
by the prevailing southwest wind.
We also have noise pollution from the airport's practice of sending slower, louder planes over
our homes. We are constantly told that this is the FAA's doing, but see no significant efforts
by the airport to take action. We essentially have an ineffective noise abatement plan and feel
that expansion of the South Apron will increase airport activity, especially as the Nantucket
Airport is handling more and more private landings and departures as a percentage of its
overall activity.
2. We are also affected by water runoff. Currently, Monohansett floods by the back gate from

airport runoff. The South Apron comprises over 70% of the new paved area for all the
proposed projects. We would like to see more specific plans for the airport to keep its water to
its grounds,
Lastly, light pollution has been a problem. We hope that the airport has plans to focus its
lighting on its own property and to do everything possible to avoid light spillage to the
neighborhood.
We thank you for your consideration of our comments.
Tom Szydlowski, President
-Surfside Association

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

barbara white
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
Nantucket Airport
Monday, January 25, 2021 12:31:18 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts mail system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
We are writing as concerned neighbors of Nantucket Airport who live at 73-75 Pochick
Avenue year round. We have lived here since 1978 when we were full time teachers in the
Nantucket Public Schools. (now retired)
As such, we have watched changes in the airport for over forty years. When we first moved in,
the vast majority of traffic was made up of small aircraft. As time has gone by, the planes have
gotten bigger and there are FAR more jets, both private and commercial, than there used to be.
As the jet traffic increased, so has the time period of smelling jet fuel. Some days it is hard to
sit outside because of it.
And, we have also been concerned about how much traffic goes directly overhead at low
altitudes. The helicopters which do this are especially very noisy and disruptive. Sometimes
they are so loud that we instinctively duck inside the house! There have been time periods
when the traffic has not gone overhead after the neighbors complained about the noise. But the
last 2 years we have seen an increase in planes that go directly over our heads in perfectly
clear and calm weather. We do take the time to use the Noise Abatement Line on occasion, but
the flyovers become so routine that, frankly, we have mostly given up on that. And, as the
overhead aircraft is often from the same airline company, it really does get annoying to
continually be reporting the same aircraft. Noise Abatement seems to have been dropped from
the airport's agenda.
PFAS pollution is, of course, of even more concern. We have two wells; one tested at 0 and
one at 6 ppm, both far below the levels of concern. However, that test was a snapshot in time
and we have asked the airport commission to commit to a regular schedule of retesting. We
don't know what a reasonable timeframe would be, but would think that it would be every few
years. So far, they have failed to commit to that.
The airport is going to expand toward us. We are concerned that the "noise berm" has been
eliminated from the project and we are writing to request that it be put back into the plan.
Noise and pollution from our busy airport has grown. The neighbors deserve to have the berm.
We look forward to your response.
Sincerely,
Barbara and Mark White

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Division of Marine Fisheries
251 Causeway Street, Suite 400, Boston, MA 02114
p: (617) 626-1520 | f: (617) 626-1509
www.mass.gov/marinefisheries

CHARLES D. BAKER
Governor

KARYN E. POLITO
Lt. Governor

KATHLEEN A. THEOHARIDES
Secretary

RONALD S. AMIDON
Commissioner

DANIEL J. MCKIERNAN
Director

January 25, 2021
Secretary Kathleen Theoharides
Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs (EEA)
Attn: MEPA Office
Alex Strysky, EEA No. 16128
100 Cambridge Street, Suite 900
Boston, MA 02114
Dear Secretary Theoharides:
The Division of Marine Fisheries (MA DMF) has reviewed the Draft Environmental Impact
Report/Environmental Assessment (DEIR/EA) for the Nantucket Memorial Airport Five-Year
Capital Improvement Plan. Proposed capital improvements includes a variety of construction,
rehabilitation, relocation, and upgrades to the existing airport property divided into eleven subprojects: 1) Relocate Stub Taxiways and Rehabilitate Runway 6-24, 2) Decommission Runway
12-30 and Convert to Taxiway C, 3) Replace Airfield Lighting Home-Run Cables, 4) Construct
High-Speed Taxiway, 5) Construct South Apron Expansion, 6) Construct South Apron Noise
Berm, 7) Relocate Taxiway G, 8) Relocate Perimeter Road and Fence, 9) Construct Nobadeer
Farm Crew Quarters, 10) Construct Ground Service Equipment Building, and 11) Expand
Marine Storage Facility. Existing marine fisheries resources and habitat in the project vicinity
and potential project impacts to those resources are outlined in the following paragraphs.
The waters offshore of the project site are mapped as shellfish habitat for surf clam (Spisula
solidissima). Land containing shellfish is deemed significant to the interest of the Wetlands
Protection Act (310 CMR 10.34) and the protection of marine fisheries.
The area offshore of the project site also provides habitat for a variety of finfish species of
commercial and recreational importance, including striped bass (Morone saxatlis), bluefish
(Pomatomus saltatrix) and summer flounder (Paralichthys dentatus). The project shoreline
supports a seasonal recreational surfcast fishery for these species.
MA DMF offers the following comments for your consideration:
•

MA DMF did not identify any resource concerns in reviewing the Expanded
Environmental Notification Form (EENF) previously for this project due to the fact that
all project work was proposed to occur landward of MLW and no avoidable indirect
impacts were identified at the time of that review. The DEIR/EA provides new
information on PFAS (per- and poly-fluoralkyl substances) contamination at the site not
included in the EENF that could impact nearby marine resources. The DEIR concludes

that “no direct or indirect impacts to coastal resources are anticipated” (DEIR Table 2-2).
However, based on the project’s proximity to coastal resources, identification of PFAS
contamination at the site, and groundwater flow direction towards the bordering coastal
zone (DEIR Figure 6-8), the project appears to present potential indirect impacts through
the transfer of PFAS to marine food webs. High PFAS concentrations in fish have been
associated with airports and military bases with a history of aqueous-film forming foam
(AFFF) use (Stahl et al., 2014). The DEIR identifies project components “Relocate Stub
Taxiways and Rehabilitate Runway 6-24”, “Construct South Apron Expansion”, and
“Construct Ground Service Equipment Building” as being in the vicinity of aqueous film
forming release areas and having the potential to include PFAS-contaminated soil and/or
groundwater in the construction zones. As stated in the DEIR/EA, MA DMF
recommends close coordination with MassDEP in managing the appropriate handling of
any PFAS-contaminated material encountered in the construction process. The EA/DEIR
also notes that the Airport is currently locating, mapping, and monitoring PFAS in
groundwater comprehensively around the project site. MA DMF recommends that the
final EA/EIR include monitoring and estimates of transfer of PFAS contamination to the
bordering marine environment.
Questions regarding this review may be directed to John Logan in our New Bedford office at
john.logan@mass.gov.
Sincerely,

Daniel J. McKiernan
Director
cc:

Nantucket Conservation Commission
Jed Merrow, McFarland-Johnson, Inc.
Kaitlyn Shaw, NMFS
Robert Boeri, CZM
Ed Reiner, EPA
Bev Vucson, DFG
Eileen Feeney, Kathryn Ford, Holly Williams, Tom Shields, DMF
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From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Gerard, Steven
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
Berm at Nantucket Airport
Monday, January 25, 2021 9:19:22 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts mail system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
As a 40 year resident of Nantucket with a home adjacent to the Nantucket Airport I strongly urge the
installation of a berm as part of the proposed extension of the south runway. The constant noise
and foul odor emanating from the idling aircraft is both a major nuisance and is clearly unhealthy. It
is critical that the construction is done poroperly and all efforts made to insure that that those of us
who live near the airport are properly protected. Thank you for your consideration
Steven Gerard 69 Pochick Avenue Nantucket Mass 02554

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

rmkthomas@gmail.com
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
Airport Capital Projects
Tuesday, January 26, 2021 12:49:00 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts mail system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
Mr. Strysky,
I am writing to strongly encourage that the proposed improvements at the Nantucket Airport
include a noise mitigation berm.
With the exponential increase in private jets at the airport, residents of Nobadeer and Surfside now
suffer through a huge about of jet engine noise (and maybe worse, fumes) coming from the jets
idling at the airport. To expand the airports capacity and not address this issue would a huge
disservice to area residents.
Thanks you for taking note of this comment.
Yours,
Bob Thomas
48 Nobadeer Ave
617-513-2704

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Catherine Pierson
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
Nantucket Airport Expansion Plans/Impacts
Tuesday, January 26, 2021 2:03:47 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts mail system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
Good morning. I am a summer resident, with a home very close to the airport, at 61 Nobadeer.
Having owned our house since the early 70s, we’ve gone from living in a remote part of the
island to one of the loudest and most congested places imaginable.
The amount of traffic at the airport is something we’ll never get used to. The number of jets,
the planes buzzing overhead way too close to our house, and the smells and pollution are
incredible. And to think all that is about to increase with the airport expansion is just very
discouraging, esp. now that we know that several wells in the area are tainted with PFAs, a
lethal pollutant.
One of the really awful things that seems well within the airport’s ability to control is idling
planes. We might be woken up at about 4:30 am because a plane that’s leaving at 6:00 am has
decided to turn on its engines and just sit there. We are told that’s allowed. The only rule
adhered to controls what time the plane actually takes off, with no attention paid to idling.
Idling is terrible. Aside from the sound, if the wind is out of the north, we are inhaling
kerosine fumes until the winds shift. We are constantly cleaning the black dust that
accumulates in our cottage, from the fumes no doubt. No one wants this.
The degradation of the dunes in front of the runway, where the airport allows vehicles to drive
onto the beach, is another very discouraging thing to see. I’ve often thought we are one of the
few places left in the world that doesn’t respect the fragile eco-system of an oceanfront beach
and appreciate the many protections a dune and its grasses affords.
We've had to live with these things. And now I read about an expansion project. A few people
at hearings are asking about reducing traffic noise and pollution, and limiting volume, such as
this, printed in the Master Plan Update:
B. Is the airport allowed to cap the number of planes flying in and out at any given time for safety
and envi- ronmental reasons? Could it limit not only takeoffs and landings during the day but
impose a different standard at night, again for safety reasons?

Naturally, the airport has to put restrictions on numbers and types of planes in place if it has
any consideration at all for the neighborhood and the environment, but the response to such a
question seems to be that we have to make it easy for travelers from the big East Coast cities
to get here. But you don’t have to fly to Nantucket. There are other choices that people
regularly use. My son lives in Manhattan and takes the ferry from New York to Nantucket. It’s
a great way to get to the island. We should use the ferries more and the planes less. There’s no
other way to accomplish noise and pollution abatement. More planes equals more noise and
more flammable fuel to be transported and stored (hence the need for fire drills and PFA
leaching), more airport construction, more impervious coverage, more fossil fuels being
burned and contributing to global warming, more dangerous chemicals in the water and the
air, more congestion. At some point you have to say no more and focus on making Nantucket
a livable place. That should be the priority.
Please listen to us, as you consider the expansion project. I hope the hearings aren’t just a

formality to get final approvals. I saw a very complicated answer to question B. above, but it
all comes back to Nantucket wanting to make it easier for people to arrive in greater numbers.
I'm told the building of a berm, to create a noise and pollution barrier, is too expensive to
consider. For a project of this magnitude, that doesn’t sound right. The berm is not a luxury for
the neighbors, it’s a necessity. Really, it’s too expensive to build a berm?
As residents who are greatly impacted by the airport — who have owned their home long
before the airport traffic grew to such an unworkable volume for the neighborhood and for the
environment — I would like the berm to be considered an essential part of the expansion
project. No berm, no expansion. Honestly, I can’t imagine we need an expansion at all, but
that ship has probably sailed.
I hope you consider the voices of the residents if you do in fact go forward with the project.
Sincerely, Catherine Pierson and the Pierson Family
Catherine Pierson
krpierson@icloud.com
c 201-230-5427

From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:

Reese Shepard
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
Paul Shepard; Wendy & John Chisholm; Ted & DM Shepard
Noise Berm at Nantucket Airport
Tuesday, January 26, 2021 7:03:53 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system. Do
not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Mr Strysky, Please require a noise berm on the Southwest portion of the airport. My grandmother (Margaret
Polk Yates) built a house at Surfside in the 1940s, and my mother (Betty Shepard) built another one in the mid1950s. My siblings and i have built a third one three years ago. We spent every summer at Surfside growing up,
and share the two houses we still own, each of us trying to be there at least one month each year. We are quite
familiar with the noise that the airport generates, which has become far worse over the past several decades. We
appreciate the need for the airport expansion, but would hate to see the quality of life on the South Shore deteriorate
because of it. We would appreciate anything you can do to ensure that due consideration will be given to budgeting
and building an attractive, vegetated berm. Thank you for your consideration. Sincerely, Reese A Shepard,
Cc Paul C Shepard, Wendy Shepard Chisholm, Edward M Shepard III.
(41 and 43 Nonantum Ave, Surfside, Nantucket, MA. 02554)
Sent from my iPad

MEMORANDUM
TO:
ATTN:
FROM:
DATE:
RE:

Kathleen Theoharides, Secretary, EEA
Alex Strysky, MEPA Office
Lisa Berry Engler, Director, CZM
January 27, 2021
EEA-16128, Nantucket Airport Capital Improvement Plan DEIR

The Massachusetts Office of Coastal Zone Management (CZM) has completed its review of
the above-referenced Draft Environmental Impact Report and Environmental Assessment
(DEIR/EA), noticed in the Environmental Monitor dated December 23, 2020 and offers the following
comments.
Project Description
The work proposed in the 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan includes eleven projects to be
implemented as part of this project, and these include:
Project 1: Reconstruct Taxiway E and Relocate Stub Taxiway A
Project 2: Decommission Runway 12-30 and Convert it to Taxiway C;
Project 3: Rehabilitate Runway 6-24 and Relocate Stub Taxiways B, C and D;
Project 4: Replace Airfield Home-Run Cables;
Project 5: Construct Runway 24 High-Speed Taxiway;
Project 6: Expand the South Apron by approximately 6.75 acres and construct a berm along
its west side;
Project 7: Relocate Taxiway G;
Project 8: Relocate Perimeter Road and Fence;
Project 9: Construct four residential units at the Nobadeer Farm site to serve as crew quarters;
Project 10: Construct Ground Service Equipment Building; and,
Project 11: Expand Marine Storage Facility.
These eleven projects will be constructed in the following five phases:
Phase 1 (2020): Project 1;
Phase 2 (2021): Project 2;
Phase 3 (2023): Projects 3, 4 and 5;
Phase 4 (2024): Project 6;
Phase 5 (2025 or later): Projects 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11.
The projects were identified in the Capital Improvement Plan and are included in the airport's 2015
Master Plan Update. Projects 1, 2 and 3 are intended to meet safety guidelines prepared by the Federal
Aviation Authority (FAA).

The project site covers an area of 971.3 acres, including the airport with associated runways,
buildings, structures, and parking lots; adjacent land with industrial and commercial uses, including a
marina storage facility; and other undeveloped land. The project site is bounded to the south by the
Atlantic Ocean and ocean-front residential properties; to the east by New South Road and Waquoit
Road; to the north by Milestone Road and to the west by a residential neighborhood. The crew
quarters at the Nobadeer Farm site (Project 9) and the marine storage facility expansion (Project 11)
will take place on undeveloped, wooded airport-owned lots approximately 0.5 miles from the terminal.
The proposed crew quarters site is a 1.37-acre lot located off Nobadeer Farm Road and the marine
storage facility expansion is proposed on a 1-acre lot adjacent to Nantucket Marine on Sun Island
Road.
Approximately 823 acres of the site is located within Priority Habitat of rare species as mapped
in the 14th Edition of the Natural Heritage Atlas. According to the Natural Heritage and Endangered
Species Program (NHESP) the site contains habitats that support 23 state-listed rare species, including
plants, moths, and birds.
Project Comments
The work proposed and analyzed in the DEIR/EA is extensive, and much of it is required to
meet specific safety guidelines established through the FAA. Other proposed improvements are
intended to improve airport operations, and better address current and future needs of the airport.
With approximately 85% of the project site mapped as Priority Habitat of rare species, the project
must balance operational and safety needs of the airport while minimizing and mitigating any
unavoidable impacts. The NHESP has determined that the project will likely result in a Take of rare
species pursuant to the Massachusetts Endangered Species Act and would require a new
Comprehensive Management Plan. The proponent should work closely with NHESP to assess and
evaluate these potential impacts, mitigation, and the proposed alternatives identified in the DEIR/EA.
Only one portion of the proposed project, Project 8 – Relocation of the Perimeter Road and
Fence, is within the buffer area to Coastal Resources Areas (Beach and Dune), and therefore CZM’s
review and comments are limited to this portion of the proposed work. Currently, a portion of the
20-foot wide perimeter roadway and fence south of the Runway 6 approach area is directly adjacent
to coastal dune and coastal beach. This portion of the roadway and fence are threatened by coastal
erosion, and at the narrowest point the roadway is separated from the beach by approximately 20 to
30 feet of dune.
In section 5.1.7 of the DEIR/EA, three alternatives for relocation of the perimeter are
presented, including a No Build Alternative; Alternative 7A: Relocation within the Localizer Critical
Area; and Alterative 7B: Avoid Localizer Critical Area (Preferred). The preferred alternative (7B)
relocates a portion of the roadway and fence landward approximately 150 feet, while avoiding a cluster
of Blazing Star, a state listed rare plant species, and avoids an incursion into the Localizer Critical Area.
The Localizer Critical Area is an area containing sensitive navigational instruments. Although CZM
supports this preferred alternative, it appears that the western portion of the road (shown in Figure 515) may be vulnerable to coastal erosion in less than seven years if erosion rates do not increase and
a large coastal storm does not cause a rapid shift in the shoreline.
The DEIR/EA identifies Project 8 construction as scheduled for 2027. The long-term erosion
rate for this section of shoreline is -7.5 ft/year, based on the CZM Historic Shoreline Change map
(Transect N-0550). However, annual erosion rates in this area are dynamic and can dramatically change

on an annual basis due to changes in offshore bathymetry and seasonal storm frequency. The longterm rate of change averages out the changes that have occurred over last 163 years, particularly the
episodic changes that occur in coastal storm events. In addition, coastal erosion rates are expected to
increase as the rates of sea level rise are increasing. The DEIR/EA notes the need to monitor erosion
in this area but does not identify any specific erosion setback limit or a specific scenario that will trigger
the need to start planning for alternatives, including shifting runway 24 further to the east, as
mentioned in the DEIR. Based on the predictions regarding accelerating rates of sea level rise
presented on resilientma.org, the FEIR/EA should include specific monitoring protocols, erosion
setback limits and triggers for further analysis to ensure the relocation of this roadway does not
become an emergency operation due to unanticipated erosion in a major coastal storm or accelerated
erosion rates. The FEIR/EA should also include estimates regarding the time needed to plan for
relocation of runway 24 to help inform these triggers. CZM is available to assist in this effort.
Federal Consistency
The proposed project may be subject to CZM federal consistency review. For further
information on this process, please contact, Robert Boeri, Project Review Coordinator, at
Robert.boeri@mass.gov or visit the CZM web site at https://www.mass.gov/federal-consistencyreview-program.
LBE/SM/RH
cc:

Jed Merrow, McFarland Johnson
Jeff Carlson, Natural Resources Director, Nantucket
Dan Gilmore, DEP, Southeast Regional Office
Stephen McKenna, CZM Cape & Islands Regional Coordinator

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Jarrell, Kent
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
RE: Capital Improvement Plan for ACK EEA File 16128. Public comment from Homeowner at 62 Nobadeer Ave
Nantucket
Wednesday, January 27, 2021 11:42:13 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts mail system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
I am a Trustee for the Susan Jarrell Trust, which owns 62 Nobadeer Ave. Nantucket. The property
and house are a couple of hundred yards from the southern end of Runway 6-24. Additionally, the
aircraft taxi/parking area at the southern end of the runway is clearly visible from the house.
I write to oppose part of the Capital Improvement Plan.
I notice that the plan calls for, “Construct South Apron Expansion There is an aircraft parking capacity
problem which leads to inefficient practices and safety concerns. Extend South Apron south to
accommodate ten additional jet engine aircraft; 7.3 acres of new impervious.”
I also notice that plans to “Construct South Apron Noise Berm. There is local interest in a berm to
reduce airport noise in the local residential neighborhood. New berm 15 feet high with 3:1 slopes; 4.4
acre footprint in tree/shrub area,” have been cancelled because of cost issues.
To add to air and noise pollution by expanding the South Apron WITHOUT adding a mitigating berm
is an irresponsible act. Even now, on numerous and repeated occasions, the smell of jet fuel and
noise from engines is a major issue at our house that forces us to keep all windows closed and does
not allow us to use our deck. With the expansion of the apron, without the berm, the situation will
become even more intolerable and will harm the value of our property.

Best Regards:
Kent Jarrell
Cell-202.230.1883
Home: 860.554.3613

From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:

Paul Shepard
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
Tom Szydlowski; Reese; Wendy Shepard; EMSIII SHEPARD
Nantucket runway expansion/earthen berm
Thursday, January 28, 2021 9:09:39 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts mail system. Do
not click on links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
Dear Mr. Strysky:
I have been a Surfside summer resident for the last 70 years. My siblings and I inherited the cottage at 41
Nonantum Avenue and built another one next door at 43 Nonantum Avenue. We have, of course, noticed the
changes over these many years. The airport has always been our neighbor, and we, together with other members of
the Surfside Association, have been very supportive of capital improvements, not only the paving of roads to the
airport from our neighborhood, but also at the airport itself. I am concerned, however, with the plan to expand the
runway without mitigating its effect upon its neighbors by constructing an earthen berm as a noise buffer. Already
today the noise generated by the jets at the airport is deafening. Unless there are sufficient funds to build an earthen
berm, I ask that the project be delayed until there are adequate funds. Thank you for your consideration.
Paul C. Shepard, 41 and 43 Nonantum Ave
Cc. Tom Sydzlowski, Surfside Association
        Reese A. Shepard
        Wendy Shepard Chisholm
         Edward M. Shepard, III
Sent from my iPhone

January 28, 2021
Dear Mr. Strysky;
Thank you for your recent presentation of plans for the Nantucket Airport south apron expansion to the
Nantucket Airport Commission on January 12. First let me introduce myself as a long-time resident of
the Surfside neighborhood. As a resident of this neighborhood, we understand that the community
includes an airport that accommodates its usual business and air traffic. Your presentation illustrated
the steady increase in air traffic at the airport and the size and weight of those planes using the airport.
This of course has resulted in a significant increase in the noise pollution not only to our neighborhood
but the entire island. There is a noise abatement corridor intended to channel the preponderance of
traffic out over the water to minimize noise pollution in our neighborhood. I understand that this
corridor is “voluntary”. It seems that the FAA does not seem to recognize this growing noise problem to
the neighborhood as it regularly directs air traffic directly over the neighborhood at low altitude in order
to allow for greater airport traffic.
As the FAA makes increasing demands upon our community, there have been no concessions that I am
aware of that truly look to mitigate the growing pollution issues (noise and pollution of the ground
water) that have increased as traffic increases. To just shrug our shoulders and say that these are
required by FAA is to overlook their responsibility that they have to our community that has a unique
character (single source aquifer and unique coastal habitat).
For me to be in support of any airport expansion, I would need to see meaningful steps to address the
noise and ground water pollution issues caused by such expansion. The fact that such a token design as
a noise berm would not be a requirement of the project under consideration is insulting. The Airport
Commission together with the FAA must explore and offer meaningful noise pollution reductions. Such
mitigation options should include limiting traffic to our airport, eliminating aircraft takeoff during offhours and most importantly to eliminate the direction of low flying aircraft directly over the rooftops in
our neighborhood.
Thanks for your consideration of these concerns and I look forward to your response.
Sincerely;
J. Spencer Goldsmith
1 White St.
Nantucket
Cc; Noah Karlberg, Tom Szydlowski

Charles D. Baker
Governor

Kathleen A. Theoharides
Secretary

Karyn E. Polito
Lieutenant Governor

Martin Suuberg
Commissioner

January 29, 2021
Kathleen A. Theoharides
Secretary of Environment and Energy
Executive Office of Energy and
Environmental Affairs
ATTN: MEPA Office
100 Cambridge Street, Suite 900
Boston, MA 02114

RE: DEIR Review. EOEEA 16128
NANTUCKET. Nantucket Memorial
Airport 5-year Capital Improvement Plan
Projects at 14 Airport Road

Dear Secretary Theoharides,
The Southeast Regional Office of the Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) has
reviewed the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the Nantucket Memorial Airport 5year Capital Improvement Plan Projects at 14 Airport Road, Nantucket, Massachusetts (EOEEA
#16128). The Project Proponent provides the following information for the Project:
The purpose of the proposed projects is to safely accommodate current and anticipated aviation demand,
provide adequate facilities in support of aviation, and provide needed revenue at Nantucket Memorial
Airport. The need is detailed in Section 4.2. The proposed Projects, the majority of which are part of the
Nantucket Airport’s Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan, would provide needed infrastructure improvements
to enhance the safety and efficiency of aircraft and Airport operations. They would also utilize development
potential within nonaeronautical parcels under Airport ownership to support Airport operations and increase
Airport revenues. The proposed Projects are not expected to affect aircraft flight patterns or increase Airport
capacity but may decrease runway occupancy and reduce approach airspace congestion.

Bureau of Water Resources Comments:
The Proponent’s DEIR has addressed the Bureau of Water Resources’ comments.
Bureau of Waste Site Cleanup Comments
In response to the Request for Information (RFI) to the Nantucket Airport, and as required by the
Bureau of Waste Site Cleanup (BWSC), Nantucket Airport sampled and analyzed a drinking water
sample from a residence downgradient of the airport. Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS),
specifically perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS), perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA), perfluorohexane
sulfonic acid (PFHxS), perfluorononanoic acid (PFNA), perfluoroheptanoic acid (PFHpA), and
perfluorodecanoic acid (PFDA), known as the PFAS6. was detected in the sample from the drinking

This information is available in alternate format. Contact Michelle Waters-Ekanem, Director of Diversity/Civil Rights at 617-292-5751.
TTY# MassRelay Service 1-800-439-2370
MassDEP Website: www.mass.gov/dep
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water supply well at concentrations exceeding RCGW-1 Reportable Concentration established in
the Massachusetts Contingency Plan (MCP – 310 CMR 40.0000). BWSC issued a Notice of
Responsibility (NOR) to Nantucket Municipal Airport on April 28, 2020 due to the detection of
known as the PFAS6 in the sample form a private drinking water supply well owned by the Airport
and downgradient of a known aqueous film forming foam (AFFF) application area. BWSC
required the initiation of an Immediate Response Action (IRA) that included sampling and analysis
of private drinking water supply wells downgradient of the Airport, the installation of point of entry
treatment systems (POET) where PFAS6 exceeded the GW-1 standard of 20 ppt and the sampling
and analysis of soil in suspected source areas.
Soil sampling was recently completed, and PFAS6 have been detected greater than the MCP
Method 1 S-1 cleanup standards in the in areas where the runway reconstruction, and in particular,
Taxiway Echo, will occur.
BWSC is working with the airport and the consultant completing the runway work to evaluate how
PFAS contaminated soils will be managed in accordance with the MCP. Airport personnel and
their consultants have agreed not to initiate work in this area until it can be determined how best to
manage the soil. BWSC recommends that construction in this area not be initiated until a soil
management plan is finalized.
As part of the work required by the MCP Comprehensive Response Actions will be conducted to
determine the full extent of contamination from the airport and will include a risk characterization
to identify all human and ecological exposures to PFAS6.
Bureau of Air and Waste (BAW) Comments
Air Quality. The Proponent is advised that the Department's Air Quality regulations (310 CMR
7.11(3) Aircraft) specifies that “No person owning or operating an airport shall cause, suffer, allow,
or permit routine warmups, testing, or other operation of aircraft while on the ground, in such a
manner as to cause or contribute to a condition of air pollution, outside of the property lines of the
airport, that in the opinion of the Department are unreasonable and feasibly preventable.” To
further clarify, this means that all aircraft, once on the ground, should cease to operate its engines
until such time when departure is warranted. Alternatively, to running these engines on idle, when
warranted to maintain comfort within these aircraft during the warm summer months, plug in
stations should be provided by the airport as an alternative to the greenhouse gas emissions, air
pollutant emissions and noise that are emitted while these engines continue to operate while on the
ground to keep onboard systems (refrigeration, air conditioning, etc.) running.
In fulfillment of the requirements of 301 CMR 11.07(6) and the Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions
Policy and Protocols (https://www.mass.gov/doc/greehouse-gas-emissions-policy-andprotocol/download), the Proponent is required to provide the Department with an analysis of
alternatives to idling (plug in stations) to address GHG, air quality in general and noise, and the
proposed mitigation measures to reduce those emissions. In view of the incoming comments that
were shared with the Department, the exhaust emissions and noise generated from the idling of the
aircraft engines during the summer months when the airport is busiest appears to be an ongoing
public health concern when those engines are on idle - hours prior to departure for the operation of
onboard systems that provide air conditioning comfort to its passengers.
Solid Waste Management. The Proponent’s DEIR has addressed the Solid Waste Management
program’s comments.
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Industrial Wastewater. Nantucket Memorial Airport is required to demonstrate the ability to apply
extinguishing agent as part of its FAA Part 139 safety certification. The capital improvements to
the airport should include provisions to collect the wastewater containing the extinguishing agents
generated during these demonstrations and/or training events so that proper treatment and/or
disposal can occur in conformance with Massachusetts requirements.
Other Comments/Guidance
The MassDEP Southeast Regional Office appreciates the opportunity to comment on this EENF. If
you have any questions regarding these comments, please contact George Zoto at (508) 946-2820.

Very truly yours,

Jonathan E. Hobill,
Regional Engineer,
Bureau of Water Resources
JH/GZ
Cc: DEP/SERO
ATTN: Millie Garcia-Serrano, Regional Director
David Johnston, Deputy Regional Director, BWR
Gerard Martin, Deputy Regional Director, BWSC
Seth Pickering, Deputy Regional Director, BAW
Jennifer Viveiros, Deputy Regional Director, ADMIN
Dan Gilmore, Chief, Wetlands and Waterways, BWR
Joseph Cerutti, Underground Injection Control, BWR/Boston
Mark Dakers, Chief, Solid Waste, BAW
Alison Cochrane, Solid Waste, BAW
Tom Cushing, Chief, Air Quality, BAW
John Handrahan, Chief, Compliance and Enforcement, Brownfields, BWSC
Angela Gallagher, Compliance and Enforcement, Brownfields, BWSC
Allen Hemberger, Site Management, BWSC

January 29, 2021
Kathleen A. Theoharides, Secretary
Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs
Attention: MEPA Office
Alex Strysky, EEA No. 16128
100 Cambridge St.
Boston, Massachusetts 02114
Richard P. Doucette
Federal Aviation Administration
1200 District Avenue
Burlington MA 01803
Project Name:
Proponent:
Location:
Document Reviewed:
EEA No.:
NHESP No.:

Nantucket Memorial Airport 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan Projects
Nantucket Airport Commission & Town of Nantucket
14 Airport Road, Nantucket
Draft Environmental Impact Report / Environmental Assessment
16128
19-38957

Dear Secretary Theoharides and Mr. Doucette:
The Natural Heritage & Endangered Species Program of the Massachusetts Division of Fisheries &
Wildlife (the “Division”) has reviewed the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment
(“DEIR/EA”) for the proposed Nantucket Memorial Airport 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan (the
“Project”) and would like to offer the following comments regarding state-listed species and their
habitats.
Nantucket Memorial Airport is delineated as Priority Habitat for state-listed species, as depicted in the
Massachusetts Natural Heritage Atlas (14th Edition). State-listed species and their habitats are protected
pursuant to the Massachusetts Endangered Species Act (MGL c.131A) and its implementing regulations
(321 CMR 10.00; MESA). The Nantucket Airport property contains important natural communities
including Pitch Pine-Scrub Oak Woodland, Sandplain Grassland, and Sandplain Heathland, and also
supports at least 23 state-listed species: plants, invertebrates, and avian species. Portions of Nantucket
Airport are currently managed to maintain habitat for state-listed species in accordance with the
provisions of a MESA Conservation and Management Permit issued in 2008 (CMP; 008-123.DFW).
The MESA is administered by the Division and prohibits the Take of state-listed species, which is defined
as “in reference to animals…harm…kill…disrupt the nesting, breeding, feeding or migratory activity…and
in reference to plants…collect, pick, kill, transplant, cut or process…Disruption of nesting, breeding,
feeding, or migratory activity may result from, but is not limited to, the modification, degradation, or
destruction of Habitat” of state-listed species (321 CMR 10.02).
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In May 2020, the Division amended the existing Nantucket Airport CMP (008-123.DFW) to address statelisted species impacts associated with the Taxiway E Reconstruction project. The Taxiway E
Reconstruction was formerly included in the Nantucket Memorial Airport 5-Year Capital Improvement
Plan and advanced due to safety concerns. The DEIR/EA consists of 10 capital improvement projects
proposed over the next several years.
The Projects detailed within the DEIR/EA are beyond the scope of the 2008 CMP and will therefore
require a direct filing with the Division for compliance with the MESA and its implementing regulations
(321 CMR 10.18 and 10.23) unless otherwise exempt pursuant to 321 CMR 10.14.
As detailed in Section 2.6, the Proponent has engaged in pre-filing consultations with the Division for
projects that occur at Nantucket Memorial Airport (e.g. the water line extension, pg. 5-1) and those
identified within the Nantucket Memorial Airport 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan. Based on
consultations to date, it appears the Proponent has incorporated alternatives that reduce impacts to
state-listed species and their habitats. Notably, the proposed Runway 6-24 Rehabilitation Project
Alternative 1B (Preferred) would partially retain the existing topography resulting in a reduction of ±19
acres of disturbance to state-listed species habitat and reduce direct impacts to Sandplain Blue-eyed
Grass over Alternative 1A: Address Non-Standard Topography.
Nevertheless, based on the information provided in the DEIR/EA and ongoing consultations with the
Proponent - and in advance of a formal MESA filing - the Division anticipates that the Project will result
in a Take of state-listed species and their habitats and will require a CMP to proceed. Projects resulting
in a Take of state-listed species may only be permitted if the performance standards for a CMP are met.
For a project to qualify for a CMP, the applicant must demonstrate that the project has avoided,
minimized and mitigated impacts to state-listed species consistent with the following performance
standards: (a) adequately assess alternatives to both temporary and permanent impacts to the statelisted species, (b) demonstrate that an insignificant portion of the local population will be impacted, and
(c) develop and agree to carry out a conservation and management plan that provides a long-term Net
Benefit to the conservation of the state-listed species.
The Proponent has engaged the Division in preliminary discussions regarding the development of a
conservation and management plan for the long-term net benefit of state-listed species associated with
the Project and has outlined concepts within the DEIR/EA. At this time, the details of a long-term Net
Benefit plan (321 CMR 10.23) have not been finalized. However, the Division anticipates that a suitable
long-term Net Benefit may be achieved through, the permanent protection and management of
suitable, high quality habitat, habitat enhancement, habitat restoration, or conservation and research
funding. Based on these preliminary discussions, the Division anticipates that the Project will likely be
able to meet the performance standards of a CMP.
We recommend that the Proponent continue to proactively consult with the Division on a pre-filing
basis to evaluate and address concerns related to state-listed species and their habitats and to further
develop a detailed long-term net benefit plan for unavoidable impacts to state-listed species and their
habitats.
The Division will not render a final decision until the MEPA / NEPA review processes and their associated
public and agency comment periods are complete. We recommend that the Proponent continue to
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proactively consult with the Division on a pre-filing basis to evaluate and address concerns related to
state-listed species and their habitats.
No alteration to the soil, surface, or vegetation associated with the Project shall occur until the MESA
review process is complete. If you have any questions about this letter, please contact Amy Hoenig,
Endangered Species Review Biologist, at amy.hoenig@mass.gov or 508-389-6364. We appreciate the
opportunity to comment on the Project.

Sincerely,

Everose Schlüter, Ph.D.
Assistant Director

cc:

Jed Merrow, McFarland Johnson
Nantucket Airport Commission
Tom Rafter, Airport Manager
Noah Karberg, Assistant Airport Manager
Town of Nantucket Board of Selectmen
Town of Nantucket Planning Board
Town of Nantucket Conservation Commission

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Alison Townsend
Strysky, Alexander (EEA)
possible airport expansion and need for noise abatement
Saturday, January 30, 2021 5:20:46 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts mail system. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
Dear Mr. Strysky,
I am the owner of three properties on Clifford STreet, Nantucket, MA. I am aware that the airport is
considering an expansion of the South Apron by 1000 feet.
If this does happen, I believe it is critical to create a berm which would help keep the noise of the
airplane/jet engines controlled as well as keeping the odors from the engines contained.
At this point, we in the Surfside area have to hear a great deal of noise from the airplanes/jets when
they are getting ready for takeoff and often the aircraft fly right over our homes rather than flying out
over the ocean.
If the runway is expanded, the noise and fumes will increase significantly and it is important that
controls are put in place to control the impact.
Sincerely,
Alison Townsend
8 Clifford St.

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF
ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY RESOURCES
100 CAMBRIDGE ST., SUITE 1020
BOSTON, MA 02114
Telephone: 617-626-7300
Facsimile: 617-727-0030
Charles D. Baker
Governor

Kathleen A. Theoharides
Secretary

Karyn E. Polito
Lt. Governor

Patrick C. Woodcock
Commissioner

5 February 2021
Kathleen Theoharides, Secretary
Executive Office of Energy & Environmental Affairs
100 Cambridge Street
Boston, Massachusetts 02114
Attn: MEPA Unit
RE:

Nantucket Capital Improvement Plan, DEIR, Nantucket, Massachusetts, EEA #16128

Cc:

Maggie McCarey, Director of Energy Efficiency, Department of Energy Resources
Patrick Woodcock, Commissioner, Department of Energy Resources

Dear Secretary Theoharides:
We’ve reviewed the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for Nantucket Airport’s FiveYear Capital Improvement Plan. The plan includes potential construction of two new buildings: a
two-unit crew quarters; and a 3,200-sf, unconditioned, ground equipment storage building.
At the DOER’s request, the plan also examined energy use of existing buildings so that a baseline
for future improvements can be established.
Executive Summary
The project is currently committing to build the crew quarters to a HERs rating of 45 and using
propane for space heating and hot water. The analysis, however, shows that a scenario built to
HERs 35 and using efficient electric (heat pumps) for heating and hot water would cost less up
front, cost less to operate, and have about 40% less emissions. We recommend the project commit
to HER 35 with efficient electric space and water heating based on these findings.
With respect to the existing buildings, the reported energy use shows buildings with relatively high
total energy use and relatively high heating energy use. In addition, many buildings are using
expensive and emissions-intensive delivered fossil fuels (oil and propane). Capital improvements
should consider addressing energy use and transitioning to efficient electrification.

Nantucket Capital Improvement Plan, EEA #16128
Nantucket, Massachusetts
Proposed Buildings: Crew Quarters and Equipment Storage Facility
The capital improvement plan includes the construction of 2 new buildings: an approximately
2,200-sf two-unit crew quarters building; and an approximately 3,200-sf, unconditioned,
equipment storage facility.
During the previous CIP/EENF filing, the DOER recommended the review of several GHG
mitigation strategies. Recommended mitigation measures for the crew quarters included envelope
improvements, efficient electrification, energy recovery, Passivehouse, and solar PV.
Recommendations for the unconditioned equipment storage facility focused on lighting
improvements.
DOER commends the project for not only reviewing these mitigation measures but incorporating
many of them. In particular, the project is committing to many above-code envelope measures.
Current commitments are as follows:
Crew Quarters:
HERS 45
Roof Insulation: R38+R20c.i.
Vertical Insulation: R20+R21c.i.
Window to Wall Ratio: 14%
Window: Triple Pane U.19/SHGC.20
Air Infiltration: 1.5 ACH50
Energy Recovery: 66% energy recovery

Equipment Storage Facility (unconditioned)
LPD: .225 W/sf
Occupancy Sensors

Further Improvements to Crew Quarters
While the project has committed to the above envelope improvements and energy recovery, the
proposed crew quarters is nevertheless planning to use propane for space and water heating, rather
than efficient electric (heat pumps). In addition, analyses show additional benefits of committing
to HERs 35.
The project analyzed alternative scenarios with efficient electric (air source heat pumps) built to
both HERs 45 and HERs 35, summarized in the table below. The results presented in the DEIR
show that the HERs 35 scenario with efficient electric (heat pumps) has the lowest up front cost,
the lowest operating cost, and the lowest emissions. Based on these results, we recommend that
the project pursue this scenario.
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Nantucket Capital Improvement Plan, EEA #16128
Nantucket, Massachusetts

Scenario

Heating

Base Case (HERS 55)
Proposed (HERS 45)
Alt Elec (HERS 45)
Alt Elec (HERS 35)

Propane
Propane
Heat Pump
Heat Pump

Annual
GHG
Emissions
(tpy)
6.2
4.9
3.6
2.9

Annual
GHG
Reduction
(%)
0%
21%
42%
54%

Annual
Annual
Utility
Utility Cost
Savings
($/yr)
($)
(2,414)
0
(1,957)
457
(1,715) 699
(1,393)
1,021

Upfront
System
Cost
($)
11,220
12,620
12,000
12,000

There appears to be an error in the submission which would lead to the conclusion that the
currently-proposed propane would cost less up-front than the efficient electric (heat pump)
scenarios. In fact, the submission results show the reverse is true.
On pages 7-27 and 7-28, the proponent presented a cost comparison of the proposed propane case
compared to the efficient electric (heat pump) alternative. This comparison showed the cost of a
propane furnace and hot water system ($3,110) compared to a heat pump heating and hot water
system ($6,000), concluding that the efficient electric (heat pump) system costs more.
However, this comparison did not include the cost of an air conditioner that would be required for
the propane system. (Because a heat pump does both heating and cooling, an air conditioner is not
required). An air conditioner would add $3,200 to the cost of a propane system, bringing the total
cost to $6,310. Therefore, when total heating/cooling costs are compared, the proposed propane
system costs more.
Existing Buildings
The plan documents a total of eight buildings, as follows:

Building
Administration
Air Rescue and Firefighting
Flattop Building
Hanger 2
Hanger 3
Snow Removal Equip Bldg
Terminal Building
Thompson House

Area
(sf)

Total
EUI
(kBtu/sf-yr)

3,825
9,420
1,717
7,200
4,800
17,535
33,203
1,415

237
252
1
37
11
52
151
37

Fuel oil
or
propane
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

% of EUI
from
fossil fuels
0
48
0
91
0
74
8
0

Heating
EUI
(kBtu/sf-yr)
120
33
38
12

The table above summarizes the building areas and total energy use (total EUI) as reported in the
DEIR. The table above also estimates the heating energy use (heating EUI) for some of the
buildings.
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Nantucket Capital Improvement Plan, EEA #16128
Nantucket, Massachusetts
We observe three issues which a capital plan should consider addressing:
1. Relatively high total energy use;
2. Relatively high heating energy use; and
3. Significant dependence on fossil fuels.
For example:
•

The Administration building, which is presumably an office use, has total EUI of 230
kBtu/sf-yr. This is a relatively high total energy use for this kind of building.

•

Similarly, the Terminal building also has a relatively large total EUI (150 kBtu/sf-yr) for
its use, though the report explains this EUI also includes airport lighting (the building and
the lighting are on the same meter). Airport lighting power consumption can be estimated
and deducted from the building energy consumption in order to better assess this building.

•

The Air Rescue and Firefighting Building, which is presumably an office, garage, and
dormitory, has a total EUI of over 250 kBtu/sf-yr and heating end use of 120 kBtu/sf-yr.
We would expect a building with these uses to have lower total energy and lower heating
energy.

•

Hanger 2 and the Snow Equipment Building have heating end use between 33 to 38
kBtu/sf-yr. We would expect heating end use to be less than this for these building types.

•

Four of the buildings use fuel oil and propane for heating. Oil and propane cost more and
have higher emissions than efficient electric systems (heat pumps).

We recommend that any capital improvement plan consider assessing, and addressing, the high
total energy use of these buildings. Consider, in particular, a focus on reducing high heating use
in order to facilitate transitioning the buildings from high-cost, high-emission delivered fuels (oil
and propane) to efficient electrification (cold climate air source heat pumps/VRF; or, geothermal
heat pumps).
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Recommendations for Future Submissions
Recommendations for the next submission are as follows:
1. Commit to the HERS 35 with efficient electric (air source heat pump) for the crew quarters.
Consider also including in the capital plan measures which would reduce total energy use of the
existing buildings. Such measures should have a particular focus on heating end use reduction in
order to facilitate transition off fossil fuels and toward efficient electrification.
Sincerely,

Paul F. Ormond, P.E.
Energy Efficiency Engineer
Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources

Brendan Place
Clean Energy Engineer
Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources
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TOWN OF NANTUCKET
NANTUCKET MEMORIAL AIRPORT
Declaration of Surplus Property
66 Bunker Road, Map 78 Parcel 117

The Town of Nantucket, acting by and through its Airport Commission, hereby makes
the following findings:
1. The Nantucket Memorial Airport owns approximately 43,560+ acres at 66 Bunker Road,
Map 78 Portion of Parcel 117 of real estate in what is known as the “Bunker Area” of the
Airport, Nantucket, MA. (the “Property”) as depicted on the attached Exhibit A highlighted
in green.
2. The Property depicted is not currently being used for any purpose.
3. The interests of the Airport would be best served by leasing the Property as depicted on
Exhibit A, which is also in the best interest of the Town of Nantucket to have Locally
Undesirable Land Use (LULU) business located there as required under MCD Permit #2-98.
4. The Property has recently received a fair market rental opinion of $2.10 (Two dollars and ten
cents) per square foot.
5. Any proposed leasing of the Property must be approved by a vote of the Airport Commission.
WHEREFORE, the Nantucket Memorial Airport Commission hereby makes the following
declarations,
1. The Property be, and hereby is, declared to be surplus Airport property.
2. The Property be, and hereby is, made available for leasing as a LULU sight, in conjunction
with the Airport Fee Structure, for no less than two dollars and ten cents ($2.10) per square
foot, subject to change or approval by the Nantucket Airport Commission.
3. The Airport Manager be, and hereby is, authorized and directed to take all appropriate actions
in accordance with the provisions of M.G.L. c. 30B §16 to prepare and advertise Request for
Proposals for the leasing of the property; and, together with the Town of Nantucket Chief
Procurement Office, evaluate all such proposals when received; and to make a
recommendation to the Nantucket Memorial Airport Commission of the appropriate course of
action to be taken by the Airport in connection with the anticipated leasing of all or a portion
of the Property.
Approved as of ___________________2021 by the
NANTUCKET AIRPORT COMMISSION

_______________________
Daniel W. Drake, Chairman

________________________
Arthur D. Gasbarro, Vice Chair

_______________________
Anthony G. Bouscaren

________________________
Andrea N. Planzer

_______________________
Jeanette D. Topham

Exhibit A

Nantucket Memorial
Airport
Joint Land
Acquisition

Nantucket Memorial Airport – Joint Land
Acquisition Opportunity
• This presentation is designed to highlight the many possible benefits to the Airport and the
residents and visitors to the Town of Nantucket of the Airport acquiring an abutting property
presently for sale
• Brooks & DeRensis, PC does not represent the Seller of the property and is not a Broker, but is
seeking to bring this potential opportunity to the attention of interested stakeholders who may
share in the benefits of acquiring the property for sale
• As usually the acquisition of avigation easements is about safety of the traveling public, such
easements can be acquired by eminent domain if necessary, without the consent of the sellers
• This presentation will highlight existing avigation easement information of parcels surrounding the
property presently for sale, and detail specifics of the possible benefits, including expansion of
such easements, with respect to the Airport and other interested stakeholders

Background – Existing Avigation
Easements
• Present Avigation Easements in favor of the Airport encompass 65 Nobadeer Ave and 69 Nobadeer Ave
• Both properties are subject to existing Avigation Easements on record with the Nantucket registry of Deeds at
134 Page 618 (Block 213 on Land Court Plan 17745A), Book 132 Page 468 (Block 212 and Block 213 on Land
Court Plan 17745A), and Book 20 Page 162 (Block 234 Lot 22A and Block 212 Lot 21 on Land Court Plan
17745A)
• Existing Avigation Easements include, in part, air rights securing unobstructed passage of aircraft over the
burdened properties, referred to as the “Glidepath,” which is a “fan shaped” zone beginning at the
Southwesterly end of the Southwest-Northeast runway
• Existing Avigation Easements also include rights in favor of the Airport to prevent erection on the burdened
properties of any building, structures, or trees which may adversely impact the Airport’s air rights

Background – Existing Avigation
Easements Continued
• Existing Avigation Easements themselves currently do not directly
burden/encompass the subject property at 68 Nobadeer Avenue
• Acquiring this property for the Airport would serve to benefit the Airport
by “closing the gap” in terms of expanding the existing avigation
easement areas encompassing surrounding properties at 65 and 69
Nobadeer Ave
• Presently, 68 Nobadeer remains a vacant lot, which would not require any
demolition of structures at the expense of the Airport

68 Nobadeer Avenue Location Abutting Airport Property

65 & 69 Nobadeer Avenue Location In Proximity to Airport Property

New Land Acquisition – Possible
Expansions and Benefits
• Existing Avigation Easements encompassing 65 Nobadeer Ave and 69 Nobadeer ave surround abut the subject
property 68 Nobadeer Avenue, located directly appurtenant to Airport at the Southwesterly end of Airport property
• The parcel is situated directly opposite land owned by the Airport including at the main runway and “taxi” area
• Possible benefits to the Airport may include opportunities to increase its footprint in property ownership such that the
runway and/or taxi areas may be expanded, the ability for “safety” or “crash zones” to be enlarged, opportunities for
additional commercial parking, and broadening of existing avigation easement coverage areas
• Additional benefits include enhancing the safety of the traveling public, air traffic, and all users of the Airport
• Possible opportunity to engage in a joint acquisition with other interested stakeholders in keeping with their desire to
acquire, hold and manage key open spaces, provide waterfront access, preserve scenic views, protect ecological
resources, promote local agriculture and create outdoor recreational opportunities for residents and visitors

Existing Avigation Easement Areas

68 Nobadeer Ave

Existing
Airport
Property
Existing
Easement
Area

Land Acquisition Opportunity
68 Nobadeer Ave
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Nantucket Memorial Airport Commission
Nantucket Memorial Airport
Nantucket, Massachusetts
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Nantucket Memorial Airport (the
“Airport”), an enterprise fund of the Town of Nantucket, Massachusetts (the “Town”), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Airport’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Airport as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in financial position and, cash
flows thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis, the schedules of the Airport’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
and its contributions to pension plans as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or
historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Reporting Required By Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 31,
2020 on our consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters.
That report was issued in conjunction with the audit of the Airport, which is an enterprise fund of the
Town. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Roselli, Clark & Associates
Certified Public Accountants
Woburn, Massachusetts
December 31, 2020

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Our discussion and analysis of the Nantucket Memorial Airport’s (the “Airport”) financial performance
provides an overview of the Airport’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The
Airport is an enterprise fund of the Town of Nantucket, Massachusetts (the “Town”). We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with their review of the basic financial
statements, notes to the basic financial statements and required supplementary information.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
•

The Airport reported a nearly $272,000 net loss from operations on a statutory basis in fiscal
year 2020 versus net income of over $1.8 million on a statutory basis in 2019 primarily due to
an approximate $1.1 million decline in operating revenues. Fuel sales declined approximately
$825,000, or 10%, in fiscal year 2020 as commercial air traffic decline significantly subsequent
to the declaration of COVID-19 as a pandemic in March 2020 and subsequent travel restrictions
imposed throughout the United States.

•

The assets and deferred outflows or resources of the Airport exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by approximately $51.6 million
(total net position).

•

The Airport’s total net position at June 30, 2020 increased approximately $986,000, or 2.0%,
from June 30, 2019.

•

The Airport reported a net loss from operations of approximately $1.7 million in 2020 versus
$0.5 million in 2019. The fiscal year 2020 operating losses were offset by capital grants
primarily from the Federal Aviation Administration, or FAA, of approximately $2.3 million.
Additionally, the Airport received over $658,000 in operating assistance from federal and state
agencies to supplement its 2020 operations.

•

The Airport’s cash flows from operating activities exceeded $1.6 million in 2020 versus $3.0
million in 2019.

•

The Airport’s general obligation bonds decreased $680,000 at June 30, 2020 to $7,690,000.

•

The Airport received authorizations of approximately $6.2 million in Coronavirus Aid, Relief
and Economic Security Act (the “CARES Act”) funds to assist it in funding its operations
during the pandemic. The Airport drew approximately $560,000 in CARES Act funding in
fiscal year 2020, which was included in the Airport’s nonoperating revenues in the statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This report consists of three parts: (1) management’s discussion and analysis, (2) the basic financial
statements, and (3) required supplementary information. The financial statements also include notes
that explain information in the financial statements in more detail.
As an enterprise fund of the Town, the financial statements are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Enterprise fund statements offer short-term and
long-term financial information about the activities and operations of the Airport. These statements are

presented in a manner similar to a private business.
The statement of net position presents information on all of the Airport’s assets and deferred outflows of
resources and its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial condition of the Airport is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing how the
Airport’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected receivables and earned but unused
vacation leave.)
The statement of cash flows presents information on the Airport’s cash receipts, cash payments and
changes in cash resulting from operations, investments and financing activities.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
The following table summarizes the condensed comparative financial data for the Airport’s net position
for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:
Dollar
Change

Percent
Change

1,606,930
1,222,658

13.4%
1.9%

2,829,588

3.7%

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2019

$ 13,612,753
66,182,146

$ 12,005,823
64,959,488

79,794,899

76,965,311

1,658,660

1,673,560

(14,900)

-0.9%

Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities
Other liabilities

21,940,500
6,901,838

22,430,137
4,792,560

(489,637)
2,109,278

-2.2%
44.0%

Total Liabilities

28,842,338

27,222,697

1,619,641

5.9%

1,066,360

857,662

208,698

24.3%

(807,888)
1,794,237

-1.5%
-45.5%

986,349

2.0%

Assets:
Current and other assets
Capital assets, net
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

53,691,175
(2,146,314)
$ 51,544,861

$

54,499,063
(3,940,551)
$ 50,558,512

$

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Airport’s financial
condition. In the case of the Airport, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources by approximately $51.6 million at June 30, 2020.
The Airport’s net position is categorized as either net investment in capital assets or unrestricted. The
vast majority of the Airport’s net position is classified as net investment in capital assets. This includes
the historical cost or donated value of land, buildings, infrastructure, vehicles, machinery and equipment

less any related debt used to acquire those assets outstanding at year end. The Airport uses these assets
to serve its customers and consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
Airport’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
The Airport continues to report a deficit in its unrestricted net position. The accounting and reporting of
the Airport’s net pension and net OPEB liabilities resulted in an approximate $11.8 million burden on
unrestricted net position.
The following table summarizes the condensed comparative financial data for the Airport’s changes in
net position for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:
Years Ended June 30,
2020
2019
Operating revenues

Dollar
Change

Percent
Change

$ 14,945,341

$ 16,052,955

$ (1,107,614)

-6.9%

5,563,348
8,158,543
2,921,155

5,630,834
8,093,218
2,798,544

(67,486)
65,325
122,611

-1.2%
0.8%
4.4%

Total Expenses

16,643,046

16,522,596

120,450

0.7%

Operating Income

(1,697,705)

(469,641)

429,450
2,254,604

(136,540)
1,586,387

Expenses:
Payroll and personnel costs
Operating expenses
Depreciation

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), net
Capital Contributions and Transfers, net
Change in Net Position
Net Position:
Beginning of year
End of year

(1,228,064)
565,990
668,217

261.5%
-414.5%
42.1%

986,349

980,206

6,143

0.6%

50,558,512

49,578,306

674,360

1.4%

$ 51,544,861

$ 50,558,512

674,360

1.3%

$

The Airport’s operating revenues decreased approximately $1.1 million year-over-year. The majority of
this decrease was attributable to an approximate $825,000 decrease in fuel sales. Commercial air traffic
declined significantly subsequent to the declaration of COVID-19 as a pandemic in March 2020.
Federal, state and local travel and business restrictions greatly affected air travel to Nantucket
subsequent to this declaration.
Normal operating expenses, excluding depreciation expense, were relatively consistent year-over-year.
The Airport implemented a number of cost-saving initiatives in response to the steep decline in air
traffic including the reduction, deferral and/or elimination of many budgeted but discretionary spending
items.
Depreciation expense (a non-cash item) increased nearly $123,000 in 2020 as several construction
projects were placed in service in the past several fiscal years.

The Airport’s operations are subject to annual appropriations by Town Meeting. Statutory accounting
differs greatly from accounting generally accepted in the United States of America, or GAAP. On a
statutory basis, the Airport reported a net loss of $271,678 in 2020 versus net income of $1,835,942 in
2019. The primary contributors to the difference between the Airport’s statutory operating loss and its
increase in net position (i.e., net income) on a GAAP basis include:
2020
Net (loss) income on a statutory basis
Adjustments to convert statutory records to GAAP:
Repayment of bonds
Depreciation expense
Capital additions
Revenue recognition
Other postemployment benefits accounting
Pension accounting
Other items

$

(271,678) $
680,000
(2,921,155)
4,143,813
(272,368)
(242,758)
(341,884)
212,379

Total adjustments to statutory net income
Increase in net position on a GAAP basis

2019

800,000
(2,798,544)
1,410,695
208,266
(342,989)
(345,588)
212,424

1,258,027
$

986,349

1,835,942

(855,736)
$

980,206

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
The Airport’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation totaled nearly $66.2 million at June 30,
2020. This was approximately $1.2 million greater than the June 30, 2019 balance as fiscal year 2020
capital additions exceeded depreciation expense. Note E to the financial statements presents a detailed
analysis of the Airport’s capital assets.
General obligations bonds payable, net of unamortized premiums, totaled approximately $7.8 million at
June 30, 2020, which was approximately $0.7 million lower than the balance at June 30, 2019.
Temporary borrowings in the form of bond anticipation notes totaled nearly $4.7 million at June 30,
2020, which was an increase of nearly $2.4 million over the prior year. Notes G and H to the financial
statements present detailed analyses of long-term and short-term debt.
FACTORS AFFECTING FISCAL YEAR 2021 OPERATIONS
Restrictions to air traffic to Nantucket became more relaxed at the conclusion of fiscal year 2020. The
Airport expects that its fiscal year 2021 revenues will be adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic
and its associated travel-related restrictions. While the disruption to the Airport’s air traffic is currently
expected to be temporary, there is uncertainty to its duration. The Airport intends to use CARES Act
funds to supplement its operations and will continue to closely monitor its costs.
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Airport’s finances for all those
with an interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Nantucket Memorial Airport, 14
Airport Road, Nantucket, Massachusetts 02554 or to the Town of Nantucket’s Finance Department, 16
Broad Street, Nantucket, Massachusetts 02554.

NANTUCKET MEMORIAL AIRPORT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020
Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
User charges and other
Intergovernmental
Inventories

$

11,477,442
1,104,394
248,563
462,849
319,505

Total Current Assets

13,612,753

Noncurrent Assets:
Land
Construction in-progress
Depreciable capital assets, net

2,379,769
4,497,397
59,304,980

Total Noncurrent Assets

66,182,146

Total Assets

79,794,899

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Other postemployment benefits
Pensions

567,472
1,091,188

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

1,658,660

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Warrants and accounts payable
Accrued payroll and withholdings
Due to Town of Nantucket
Security deposits
Accrued interest
Compensated absences
Short-term notes payable
Current portion of long-term debt

352,794
179,992
235,621
480,243
72,362
302,100
4,656,200
622,526

Total Current Liabilities

6,901,838

Noncurrent liabilities:
Due to Town of Nantucket
Compensated absences
Net other postemployment benefits liability
Net pension liability
Long-term debt

2,641,983
302,100
4,546,320
7,285,975
7,164,122

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

21,940,500

Total Liabilities

28,842,338

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Other postemployment benefits
Pensions

506,681
559,679

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

1,066,360

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

53,691,175
(2,146,314)
$

51,544,861

NANTUCKET MEMORIAL AIRPORT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Other operating revenues

$

Total Operating Revenues

14,800,260
145,081
14,945,341

Operating Expenses:
Payroll and personnel costs
Employee benefits
Operating costs
Depreciation

3,377,167
2,186,181
8,158,543
2,921,155

Total Operating Expenses

16,643,046

Operating Loss

(1,697,705)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Interest expenses

658,259
100,642
(329,451)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

429,450

Loss Before Capital Contributions

(1,268,255)

Capital Contributions:
Intergovernmental capital contributions

2,254,604

Total Capital Contributions

2,254,604

Net Change in Net Position

986,349

Net Position:
Beginning of the year
End of the year
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

50,558,512
$

51,544,861

NANTUCKET MEMORIAL AIRPORT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from user charges
Receipts from other operating revenues
Payments to employees
Payments to vendors

$

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

15,021,026
145,081
(4,946,749)
(8,585,704)
1,633,654

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financial Activities:
Proceeds from operating grants

658,259

Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Financing Activities

658,259

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from capital grants
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal repayments on long-term debt
Repayments on short-term debt
Interest payments

2,313,816
(4,143,813)
(699,377)
2,392,831
(339,239)

Net Cash Used In Capital and Related Financing Activities

(475,782)

Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Investment income
Investment of operating cash

100,642
(413,951)

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities

(313,309)

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

1,502,822

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Beginning of the year
End of the year

9,974,620
$

11,477,442

$

(1,697,705)

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities:
Operating Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided By
Operating Activities:
Depreciation expense
Changes in assets, deferred outflows (inflows) of
resources and liabilities:
Receivables and other current assets
Warrants payable and other current liabilities
Accrued and deferred benefits payable
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

2,921,155

250,631
(440,001)
599,574
$

1,633,654

NANTUCKET MEMORIAL AIRPORT

AN ENTERPRISE FUND OF THE TOWN OF NANTUCKET, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
NOTE A – REPORTING ENTITY
The Nantucket Memorial Airport (the “Airport”) is an enterprise fund of the Town of Nantucket,
Massachusetts (the “Town”). The Airport operates three runways and is the second busiest airport in
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Airport’s operations are governed by the Nantucket
Memorial Airport Commission (the “Commission”), which is a five-person board appointed by the
Town’s Board of Selectmen.
NOTE B – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies of the Airport conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, or GAAP, as applicable to governmental units. The Airport’s financial
statements are not intended and do not present fairly the financial position of the Town.
Following are the significant accounting and reporting policies of the Airport:
Basis of Presentation – The Airport’s financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as specified by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board’s (“GASB”) requirements for an enterprise fund. The Airport’s operations are
accounted for as an enterprise fund, which is a proprietary fund type. Proprietary funds distinguish
operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues and
expenses result from the day-to-day operation of the Airport. All other revenues and expenses are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
Use of Estimates – The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure for contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements,
and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could
vary from estimates that were used.
Revenue Recognition – Revenues from the Airport’s operations are recorded when earned, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Grants are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Taxes – The Airport is exempt from all local property taxes as well as federal and state income taxes.
Cash and Cash Equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less. Investments are carried at fair
value.

Fair Value of Investments – The Airport reports its investments at fair value. When actively quoted
observable prices are not available, the Airport generally uses either implied pricing from similar
investments or valuation models based on net present values of estimated future cash flows (adjusted
as appropriate for liquidity, credit, market and/or other risk factors).
The Airport categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
GAAP. This hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset or
liability. The three levels of the hierarchy are as follows:
•

Level 1 – Inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical investments at the
measurement date.

•

Level 2 – Inputs (other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either directly or indirectly
observable for the investment through correlation with market data at the measurement date
and for the duration of the instrument’s anticipated life.

•

Level 3 – Inputs reflect the Town’s best estimate of what market participants would use in
pricing the investment at the measurement date.

The following table presents the Airport’s investments carried at fair value on a recurring basis in the
statement of net position at June 30, 2020:
June 30,
2020

Investments by Fair Value Level
Debt securities:
U.S. Treasury notes

$

402,344

Total investments by fair value level

402,344

Investments measured at amortized cost
MMDT

702,050

Total investments at fair value

Fair Value Measurements Using
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
$

402,344

$

-

$

-

$ 1,104,394

Accounts Receivable – Accounts receivable are presented net of an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. An allowance for uncollectible accounts is maintained for estimated losses resulting from
the Airport’s inability to collect payments from customers. This allowance is established using
estimates based on factors such as the composition of the accounts receivable aging, historical bad
debts, changes in payment patterns, changes to customer creditworthiness and current economic
trends. The Airport did not report an allowance for uncollectible accounts at June 30, 2020.
Inventory – Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined on the firstin, first-out method. Inventory consisted of aviation fuel at June 30, 2020.
Capital Assets – Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased
or constructed. All purchases and construction costs in excess of $10,000 and with useful lives
exceeding one year are capitalized at the date of acquisition or construction. The costs of normal
repairs and maintenance that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are
not capitalized.

Capital assets (excluding land) are depreciated by the Airport on a straight-line-basis. The estimated
useful lives (in years) of capital assets by major asset class are as follows:
Infrastructure
Buildings
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and computer equipment

40 to 70
33 to 50
5
10 to 15
5 to 10

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources – In addition to assets, the statement of net position may
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
The Airport reports deferred outflows and inflows of resources relative to its net pension and other
postemployment liabilities at June 30, 2020, as more fully described in Notes I and J.
Compensated Absences – Employees earn vacation and sick time as they provide services to the
Airport. Employees may accumulate (subject to certain limitations) unused sick time earned and,
upon retirement, termination or death, be compensated for unused portions of the time earned.
Unused vacation time may be carried for six months, then, it reverts to a use-it or lose-it policy.
These vested and accumulated benefits are reported as a liability in these financial statements.
NOTE C – CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
As required by state law, the Airport’s cash is in the control of the Town’s treasurer. State laws and
regulations require the treasurer to invest funds only in preapproved investment instruments, which
include, but are not necessarily limited to, bank deposits, money markets, certificates of deposit, U.S.
obligations, repurchase agreements, and the State Treasurer’s investment pool. In addition, the
statutes impose various limitations on the amount and length of investments and deposits.
Repurchase agreements cannot be for a period of over ninety days, and the underlying security must
be a United States obligation. The State Treasurer’s investment pool meets the criteria of an external
investment pool and is administered by the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust, or MMDT,
which was established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth who serves as Trustee. The fair value
of the position in the MMDT is the same as the value of the MMDT shares.
The Board of Selectmen has adopted policies related to risk for the Town, its enterprise funds, all
departments and the County of Nantucket (the “County”). These policies may be reviewed at the
Town’s website, under the Finance Department. Those policies that apply to the Airport are
summarized below:

Custodial Credit Risk: Deposits and Investments – In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in
the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Town’s
current deposit requires that the Treasurer review each bank doing business with the Town on a
quarterly basis. The policy does not restrict the value of uninsured or uncollateralized
investments held at any time.
In the case of investments, this is the risk that in the event of the invested party not being able to
provide required payments to investors, ceasing to exist, or filing of bankruptcy, the Town may
not be able to recover the full amount of its principal investment and/or investment earnings. The
Town’s current policy requires all securities not held directly by the Treasurer must be held by a
third-party custodian approved by the Treasurer in the Town/County’s name and tax
identification number.
Concentration of Credit Risk – The Town does not place a limit on the amount that may be
invested in any one issuer. All the Airport’s investments were in the form of pooled investments
with the MMDT and in a single U.S. Treasury note.
Interest Rate Risk – The Town limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure
to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The policy limits investments of
operating funds to one year or less and limits investment maturities of trust funds and other
special funds to periods no longer that seven years, maintaining an average maturity no greater
than three years for the investment portfolio. The Airport’s investment in U.S. Treasury notes is
set to mature on November 30, 2020.
NOTE D – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:
Gross
Amount

Allowance for
Uncollectible
Accounts

Net
Amount

Airport fees
Passenger facility charges
Intergovernmental

$

215,572
32,991
462,849

$

-

$

215,572
32,991
462,849

Totals

$

711,412

$

-

$

711,412

NOTE E – CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the Airport for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in-progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

$

2,379,769
2,170,189

$

3,650,879

Ending
Balance

Decreases

Increases
$

- $
(1,323,671)

2,379,769
4,497,397

4,549,958

3,650,879

(1,323,671)

6,877,166

41,031,145
52,592,137
5,264,851
2,578,972

816,197
794,362
134,237
71,809

(12,373)

41,847,342
53,386,499
5,399,088
2,638,408

Total capital assets being depreciated

101,467,105

1,816,605

(12,373)

103,271,337

Less accumulated depreciation

(41,057,575)

(2,921,155)

12,373

(43,966,357)

60,409,530

(1,104,550)

-

Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Capital assets, net

$ 64,959,488

$

2,546,329

59,304,980

$ (1,323,671) $ 66,182,146

NOTE F – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS
During fiscal years 2012 to 2014, the Town subsidized the Airport’s general operations. These
subsidies were approved by the Town’s governing body with the stipulation that the Airport would
repay the Town. In May 2019, the Airport and Town executed an eighteen-year repayment
agreement to return these subsidies to the Town, which totaled $3,955,088.
The Airport is scheduled to make annual repayments of $235,621 under the agreement to the Town
with an expected final payment of $50,154 on or about June 30, 2033. The agreement permits the
Airport to offset the value of any in-kind goods or services it provides the Town against its annual
required payments, which the parties agree to determine the value of these in-kind goods or services
each December. The agreement also permits the Airport to repay this obligation in advance of its
scheduled maturity.
In 2020, the Airport repaid $228,011 to the Town and offset its remaining minimum annual
repayment by $7,610 based on the agreed-upon in-kind goods and services provided by the Airport to
the Town). At June 30, 2020, the remaining obligation due to the Town was $2,877,604.

NOTE G – TEMPORARY DEBT
The Airport is authorized to borrow on a temporary basis to fund the following:
Current Operating Costs – Prior to the collection of revenues, expenditures may be financed through
the issuance of tax anticipation notes (“TANS”) or revenue anticipation notes (“RANS”).
Capital Projects and Other Approved Costs – Projects may be temporarily funded through the
issuance of bond anticipation notes (“BANS”) or grant anticipation notes (“GANS”). In certain
cases, prior to the issuance of these temporary notes, the governing body must take the necessary
legal steps to authorize the issuance of the general obligation bonds. Temporary notes may not
exceed the aggregate amount of bonds authorized or the grant award amount.
Details related to temporary debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 were as follows:
Type

Interest
Rate

BAN
BAN
BAN
GAN
BAN
BAN

2.50%
2.75%
3.25%
2.70%
1.25%
1.50%

Maturity
Date

Beginning
Balance

matured
$ 1,136,000
matured
769,447
matured
146,000
matured
211,922
11/13/2020
6/26/2020
-

Total Short-Term Notes Payable

$ 2,263,369

Additions
$

Retirements

Ending
Balance

4,189,000
467,200

$ (1,136,000) $
(769,447)
(146,000)
(211,922)
4,189,000
467,200

$ 4,656,200

$ (2,263,369) $ 4,656,200

Temporary notes are general obligations of the Airport, carry maturity dates of one year or less, are
interest-bearing and will be paid through future issuance of general obligation bonds. The BANs
were issued for a variety of construction projects to the Airport’s equipment, runways, aprons and
security systems.

NOTE H – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
The following reflects the activity in the Airport’s long-term liability accounts during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020:
Beginning
Balance

Description of Issue
General obligation bonds
Unamortized premiums

$ 8,370,000
116,025

Additions
$

Ending
Balance

Deletions
-

$

(680,000) $ 7,690,000
(19,377)
96,648

Due Within
One Year
$

605,000
17,526

General obligation bonds, net

8,486,025

-

(699,377)

7,786,648

622,526

Due to Town of Nantucket
Compensated absences
Net OPEB liability
Net pension liability

3,113,225
589,268
3,869,632
7,601,619

14,932
1,336,888
2,074,864

(235,621)
(660,200)
(2,390,508)

2,877,604
604,200
4,546,320
7,285,975

235,621
302,100
-

$ 23,659,769

$ 3,426,684

$ (3,985,706) $ 23,100,747

$ 1,160,247

Totals

Bond and Note Indebtedness – The Airport, through the Town, issues general obligation bonds and
notes to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. State law
permits the Town to authorize indebtedness up to a limit of 5% of its equalized valuation. Debt
issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as being “inside the debt limit.” In
addition, the Town may authorize debt in excess of that limit for specific purposes. Such debt, when
issued, is designated as being “outside the debt limit.”
The Airport did not have any direct borrowings or placements of its long-term debt. All Airport longterm debt was in the form of general obligation bonds. General obligation bonds outstanding at June
30, 2020 were as follows:
Description
General obligation bonds - February 2011
General obligation bonds - June 2012
General obligation bonds - June 2013
General obligation bonds - June 2014
General obligation bonds - October 2015
General obligation bonds - November 2016

Interest
Rate
2.00 - 5.00%
2.00 - 5.00%
2.00 - 3.00%
2.00 - 3.35%
2.00 - 3.00%
2.00 - 5.00%

Beginning
Balance
$

Total General Obligation Bonds
Unamortized premiums on June 2012 bonds
Total General Obligation Bonds, Net

$

3,765,000
1,740,000
500,000
2,250,000
35,000
80,000

Additions

Ending
Balance

- $
-

(175,000) $
(140,000)
(125,000)
(150,000)
(35,000)
(55,000)

3,590,000
1,600,000
375,000
2,100,000
25,000

8,370,000

-

(680,000)

7,690,000

116,025

-

(19,377)

96,648

8,486,025

$

Maturities

$

-

$

(699,377) $

7,786,648

Debt service requirements on long-term debt at June 30, 2020 are as follows:
Year Ending
June 30,

Total

Interest

Principal

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026 - 2030
2031 - 2035
2036

$

605,000
610,000
625,000
505,000
505,000
2,455,000
2,100,000
285,000

$

294,362
270,938
247,187
225,988
205,962
762,939
310,931
13,894

$

899,362
880,938
872,187
730,988
710,962
3,217,939
2,410,931
298,894

Totals

$

7,690,000

$

2,332,201

$

10,022,201

At June 30, 2020, the Airport had approximately $31.1 million in authorized and unissued debt.
NOTE I – RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Pension Plan Description – The Airport contributes to the Barnstable County Regional Retirement
System (the “Retirement System”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.
The Retirement System was established under Chapter 32 of Massachusetts General Laws (“MGL”).
The Retirement System is administered by the Barnstable County Retirement Board (the “Retirement
Board”). Stand-alone audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 were issued
and are available at the Retirement Board’s offices located at 750 Attucks Lane, Hyannis,
Massachusetts 02601.
Membership in the Retirement System for all employers as of December 31, 2019 was as follows:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive members
Active members

3,382
858
4,789
9,029

Benefit Terms – Membership in the Retirement System is mandatory for all full-time employees and
non-seasonal, part-time employees who, in general, regularly work more than twenty-five hours per
week. Members of the Retirement System do not participate in the federal Social Security retirement
system.
Massachusetts contributory retirement system benefits are uniform for each municipal retirement
system. The Retirement System provides for retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80%
of a participant’s highest three-year or five-year average annual rate of regular compensation,
depending on the participant’s date of hire. Benefit payments are based upon a participant’s age,
length of creditable service, level of compensation and job classification.
The most common benefits paid by the Retirement System include normal retirement, disability
retirement and survivor benefits.



Normal retirement generally occurs at age 65. However, participants may retire after twenty
years of service or at any time after attaining age 55, if hired prior to April 2, 2012 or at any
time after attaining age 60 if hired on or after April 2, 2012. Participants with hire dates
subsequent to January 1, 1978 must have a minimum of ten years’ creditable service in order
to retire at age 55. Participants become vested after ten years of service. Benefits
commencing before age 65 are provided at a reduced rate. Members working in certain
occupations may retire with full benefits earlier than age 65.



Ordinary disability retirement is where a participant is permanently incapacitated from a
cause unrelated to employment. Accidental disability retirement is where the disability is the
result of an injury or illness received or aggravated in the performance of duty. The amount
of benefits to be received in such cases is dependent upon several factors, including the age at
which the disability retirement occurs, the years of creditable service, average regular
compensation and veteran status.



Survivor benefits are extended to eligible beneficiaries of participants whose death occurs
prior to or following retirement.

Cost-of-living adjustments granted to members of Massachusetts retirement systems granted between
1981 and 1997 and any increases in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth during those years
have been the financial responsibility of the Commonwealth. Beginning in 1998, the funding of costof-living amounts became the responsibility of the participating units like the Retirement System.
Contributions Requirements – Under current MGL, the Retirement System is required to be fully
funded by June 30, 2040. Participating employers are assessed their share of the total retirement cost
based on the entry age, normal actuarial cost method. The Airport contributed $641,791 to the
Retirement System in fiscal year 2020, which equaled the actuarially-determined contribution
requirement for the fiscal year. The Airport’s contributions as a percentage of covered payroll was
approximately 22% in fiscal year 2020.
Net Pension Liability – At June 30, 2020, the Airport reported a liability of $7,285,975 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of
December 31, 2019 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. A number of actuarial assumptions changed in
this most recent actuarial valuation; the most significant changes included a reduction in the discount
rate to 7.15% from 7.375%. Refer to the actuarial assumptions section of this footnote for more
details on these changes in assumptions.
The Airport’s proportion of the net pension liability is based on a projection of the Airport’s longterm share of contributions to the Retirement System relative to the projected contributions of all
employers. The Airport’s proportion of the Town’s net pension liability was approximately 9.64% at
December 31, 2019 versus 9.62% at December 31, 2018.

Fiduciary Net Position – The elements of the Retirement System’s basic financial statements (that is,
all information about the Retirement System’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources and fiduciary net position) can be found in the Retirement System’s full
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, which can be obtained by
contacting the Retirement Board.
The Retirement System’s fiduciary net position was determined using the accrual basis of accounting.
The Retirement System’s accounting records are maintained on a calendar-year basis in accordance
with the standards and procedures established by the Commonwealth’s Public Employee Retirement
Administration Commission, or PERAC. Contributions from employers and employees are
recognized in the period in which they become due pursuant to formal commitments, statutory or
contractual requirements. Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recorded when incurred, regardless of the timing of payment. Investments are reported at fair value;
fair value is determined as the price one would receive in an orderly transaction between market
participants at a measurement date.
Pension Expense – The Airport recognized $983,676 in pension expense in the statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position in fiscal year 2020.
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources – At June 30, 2020, the Airport
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:
Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences between Airport
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

$

$

847,044

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$

61,414
-

-

435,420

244,144

62,845

1,091,188

$

559,679

The net deferred outflows of resources are expected to be recognized in the Airport’s pension expense
as follows:
Year ended June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

$

151,929
143,791
217,064
(65,854)
84,579

$

531,509

Actuarial Valuation – The measurement of the Retirement System’s total pension liability is
developed by an independent actuary. The significant actuarial assumptions used in the most recent
actuarial valuation included:
Actuarial cost method:
Investment rate of return:
Cost of living adjustments:
Asset valuation method:
Projected salary increases:
Mortality rates:

Entry age normal
7.15% (previously 7.375%)
3.0% on the first $18,000 of retirement income
Market value of investments
3.25% per year
Pre-retirement rates reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar
Employee Mortality Table projected generationally
with Scale MP-2017
Healthy retiree rates reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar
Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected
generationally with Scale MP-2017
Disabled retiree rates reflect the RP-2014 Blue Collar
Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table set forward one
year and projected generationally with Scale MP-2017

The Retirement System’s investment policy in regard to the allocation of its invested assets is
established by the Commonwealth’s Pension Reserves Investment Management Board. Retirement
System assets are managed on a total return basis with a long-term objective of achieving a fullyfunded status for the benefits provided through the pension plan.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a buildingblock method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension
plan's target asset allocation as of December 31, 2018 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
Domestic equities
International equities:
Developed markets
Emerging markets
Core fixed income
High-yield fixed income
Real estate
Commodities
Hedge fund, GTAA, Risk parity
Private equity

Target
Allocation

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

21.00%

6.15%

13.00%
5.00%
15.00%
8.00%
10.00%
4.00%
11.00%
13.00%

6.78%
8.65%
1.11%
3.51%
4.33%
4.13%
3.19%
9.99%

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in the December 31,
2019 actuarial valuation report was 7.15%, which is a reduction from the previous discount rate of
7.375%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions will be made at rates
equal to the actuarially determined contribution rate. Based on those assumptions, the Retirement
System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
Sensitivity Analysis – The following presents the Airport’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability calculated using the current discount rate of 7.15% as well as the Airport’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability using a discount rate that is 1% lower or higher than the current rate:
Current
Rate
7.15%

Net Pension Liability At
1% Decrease
Current Rate
1% Increase
$

9,581,345

$

7,285,975

$

5,357,502

NOTE J – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
In addition to the pension benefits described in Note I, the Airport provides, through the Town,
health, dental and life insurance benefits (other postemployment benefits) to current and future
retirees, their dependents and beneficiaries (the “OPEB Plan”) in accordance with Chapter 32B of
MGL. Specific benefit provisions and contribution rates are established by collective bargaining
agreements, state law, and Town ordinance. All benefits are provided through the Town’s insurance
program. The OPEB Plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report and is presented as a fiduciary
fund in the Town’s financial statements.
Much of the OPEB Plan disclosures required under GAAP cannot be presented herein as the Airport
is an enterprise of the Town. The Airport neither administers the OPEB Plan nor maintains trust
assets specific to fund its OPEB liability. Reference is hereby made to the Town’s audited financial
statements for complete OPEB Plan disclosures.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms – The following employees were covered by the benefit terms
as of June 30, 2020:
Town-Wide
Active employees
Inactive employees

Airport

603
354

31
1

957

32

Contributions – The contributions requirements of OPEB Plan members, inclusive of the Airport, are
established and may be amended by the Town. Retirees contribute 20% of the set premium for
master medical and 10% for other medical plans, 100% for dental premiums and 55% for life
insurance. The Town funds the remainder of these premiums as well as the cost to administer the
OPEB Plan. The Town currently contributes enough money to the OPEB Plan to satisfy current
obligations in a pay-as-you-go basis.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town’s average contributions rate was approximately 10% of
covered employee payroll, inclusive of the Airport.
Net OPEB Liability – The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 using an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2018. The components of the net OPEB liability at June 30, 2020 were as
follows:
Town-Wide

Airport

Total OPEB liability
Plan fiduciary net position

$ 127,951,438 $
(3,681,241)

4,546,320
-

Net OPEB liability

$ 124,270,197

4,546,320

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of total OPEB liability

2.9%

$

0.0%

The total OPEB liability in the most recent actuarial valuation was determined using the following
key actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise
specified:
Actuarial Cost Method
Investment Rate of Return

Individual entry age normal
4.99%, net of OPEB Plan investment expense, including
inflation

Municipal Bond Rate
Single Equivalent Discount Rate

2.66% as of June 30, 2020
3.75%, net of OPEB Plan investment expense, including
inflation

Inflation
Health Care Trend Rate
Pre-Retirement Mortality

2.50%
4.50%
RP-2014 Employees Mortality Table for Blue Collar
Employees projected generationally with scale MP-2016, set
forward one year for females

Post-Retirement Mortality

RP-2014 Employees Mortality Table for Blue Collar Healthy
Annuitants projected generationally with scale MP-2016, set
forward one year for females

Disability Mortality

RP-2014 Employees Mortality Table for Blue Collar Healthy
Annuitants projected generationally with scale MP-2016, set
forward 1 year

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB Plan investments was determined using a buildingblock method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of OPEB Plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The
target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return are reflected in the following
table:

Expected
Investment
Rate of Return

Target
Allocation

Asset Class
Domestic equity - large cap
International equity - developed markets
Domestic fixed income
Cash

30.00%
5.00%
50.00%
15.00%
100.00%

1.80%
5.45%
2.05%
0.00%

Real rate of return
Inflation assumption

2.74%
2.50%

Total nominal rate of return
Investment expense

5.24%
-0.25%

Net investment return

4.99%

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability as 3.75%, which is a
decrease from the prior year’s discount rate of 4.0%.
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability – The following table summarizes the changes in the net OPEB
lability for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Balances at June 30, 2019

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Fiduciary
Total OPEB
Net OPEB
Net Position
Liability
Liability
(a)
(b)
(a) - (b)
$
3,869,632 $
- $
3,869,632

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Experience differences
Changes in assumptions
Other
Employer contributions
Benefit withdrawn
Benefit payments

164,242
176,603
(26,610)
182,413
331,123
(151,083)

Net changes
Balances at June 30, 2020

151,083
(151,083)
-

676,688
$

4,546,320

164,242
176,603
(26,610)
182,413
331,123
(151,083)
151,083
(151,083)

$

-

676,688
$

4,546,320

Sensitivity Analyses – The following presents the Airport’s proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability calculated using the current discount rate of 3.75% as well as the Airport’s proportionate
share of the net OPEB liability using a discount rate that is 1% lower or higher than the current rate:
Current
Rate
3.75%

Net OPEB Liability At
1% Decrease
Current Rate
1% Increase
$

5,333,063

$

4,546,320

$

3,923,876

The following presents the Airport’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using
the current health care trend rate of 4.50% as well as the Airport’s proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability using a discount rate that is 1% lower or higher than the current rate:
Current
Rate
4.50%

Net OPEB Liability At
1% Decrease
Current Rate
1% Increase
$

3,840,025

$

4,546,320

$

5,460,852

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB – For the year ended
June 30, 2020, the Airport recognized OPEB expense of $393,840. Deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB at June 30, 2020 were reported as follows:
Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions

$

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
OPEB Plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences between Airport
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
$

147,210
418,893

Deferred Inflows of
Resources
$

212,883
-

1,369

-

-

293,798

567,472

$

506,681

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized into OPEB expense (benefit) as follows:
Year Ended June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

$

10,136
10,136
10,658
21,318
7,681
862

$

60,791

NOTE K – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments – At June 30, 2020, the Airport had open contracts totaling approximately $1.8 million
primarily for equipment, buildings and infrastructure projects.
State and Federal Awards – Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to
audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal and state governments. Any
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable
funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this time, although the Airport expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
The Airport is subject to certain Federal arbitrage laws in accordance with long-term borrowing
agreements. Failure to comply with the rules could result in the payment of penalties. The amount of
penalties, if any, cannot be determined at this time, although the Airport expects such amounts, if any,
to be immaterial.
Legal – The Airport is party to certain legal claims arising from the conduct of its business, including
personal injury claims, contract disputes, employment claims and environmental matters. While it is
not possible for the Airport to ascertain the ultimate legal and financial liability with respect to
contingent liabilities, the Airport believes that the aggregate amount of such liabilities, if any, in
excess of amounts covered by insurance are currently not material. It is possible, however, that the
future financial position and/or results of operations for any particular future period could be
materially affected by changes in the Airport’s assumptions or strategies related to these
contingencies or changes out of the Airport’s control.
COVID-19 – In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the breakout of the novel
coronavirus (“COVID-19”) a pandemic. Resulting travel restrictions and business closures have
negatively affected the Airport’s revenue generation in the second half of fiscal year 2020 and into
fiscal year 2021. While this disruption is currently believed to be temporary, there is uncertainty
around its duration. Therefore, while the Airport expects this matter to negatively impact its fiscal
year 2021 results of operations and financial position, the related financial impact cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time.
NOTE L – ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE
The Airport is dependent in part on intergovernmental grants from federal and state agencies as well
as operating transfers from the Town. In fiscal year 2020, the Airport reported $2,912,863 in
intergovernmental revenues. Without these funds, the Airport would not generate sufficient funds
from its operations to sustain its operations.
NOTE M – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Airport has evaluated subsequent events through December 31, 2020, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE N – IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS
Current Year Implementations
None.
Future Implementations
In January 2017, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective
of the Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for
accounting and financial reporting purposes and how these activities should be reported. As
amended, the provisions of this Statement are effective for financial reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2019 (fiscal year 2021). The Airport is currently evaluating whether adoption
will have a material impact on the financial statements.
In June 2017, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. This Statement redefines the
manner in which long-term leases are accounted and reported. As amended, the provisions of this
Statement are effective for financial reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021 (fiscal year
2022). The Airport is currently evaluating whether adoption will have a material impact on the
financial statements.
In June 2018, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred
Before the End of a Construction Period. This statement establishes accounting requirements for
interest costs incurred before the end of a construction period. As amended, the provisions of this
Statement are effective for financial reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020 (fiscal
year 2022). The Airport is currently evaluating whether adoption will have a material impact on
the financial statements.
In August 2018, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interest – An
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61. The objective of this Statement is to
improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in
a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information
for certain component units. As amended, the provisions of this Statement are effective for
financial reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 (fiscal year 2021). The Airport is
currently evaluating whether adoption will have a material impact on the financial statements.
In May 2019, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The
objective of this Statement is to standardize the reporting of conduit debt obligations by issuers
by clarifying the existing definition of conduit debt obligation, among other matters. As
amended, the provisions of this Statement are effective for financial reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2021 (fiscal year 2023). The Airport is currently evaluating whether adoption
will have a material impact on the financial statements.
In March 2020, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered
Rates. The objective of this Statement is to address accounting and financial reporting
implications that result from the replacement of an interbank offered rate. This Statement
eliminates the use of LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for derivative instruments
that hedge interest rate risk of taxable debt for reporting periods after December 31, 2021. The
provisions of this Statement are effective for financial reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2020 (fiscal year 2021). The Airport is currently evaluating whether adoption will have a
material impact on the financial statements.

In March 2020, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public
Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to
improve financial reporting by addressing issued related to public-private and public-public
partnership arrangements. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2022 (fiscal year 2023). The Airport is currently evaluating
whether adoption will have a material impact on the financial statements.
In May 2020, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information
Technology Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to address accounting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements to government end users based on the
standards established in Statement No. 87, as amended. The provisions of this Statement are
effective for financial reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022 (fiscal year 2023). The
Airport is currently evaluating whether adoption will have a material impact on the financial
statements.
In June 2020, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred
Compensation Plans – An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a
Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The objective of this Statement is to (1) increase
consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in
circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the
primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2)
mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain deﬁned contribution pension plans, deﬁned
contribution OPEB plans, and employee beneﬁt plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans
(other employee beneﬁt plans) as ﬁduciary component units in ﬁduciary fund ﬁnancial
statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and
ﬁnancial reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 deferred compensation plans that meet
the deﬁnition of a pension plan and for beneﬁts provided through those plans. The provisions of
this Statement are effective for financial reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021 (fiscal
year 2023). The Airport is currently evaluating whether adoption will have a material impact on
the financial statements.
******

NANTUCKET MEMORIAL AIRPORT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF THE AIRPORT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
(dollar amounts are in thousands)

Year Ended
June 30,

Proportion of the
Net Pension
Liability

2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015

9.64%
9.62%
9.65%
9.55%
9.18%
9.16%

Proportionate
Share of the Net
Pension Liability
$

7,286
7,602
6,359
6,706
5,778
5,172

Proportionate
Plan Fiduciary
Share of the Net Net Position as a
Pension Liability Percentage of the
as a Percentage of
Total Pension
Covered Payroll
Liability

Covered
Payroll
$

2,938
2,798
2,604
2,644
2,424
2,404

248.0%
271.7%
244.2%
253.6%
238.4%
215.1%

57.6%
57.6%
61.9%
60.4%
58.1%
60.4%

SCHEDULE OF THE AIRPORT'S CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PENSION PLAN
(dollar amounts are in thousands)

Actuarially
Determined
Contribution

Year Ended
June 30,
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015

$

642
605
558
570
543
477

Contributions in
Relation to the
Actuarially
Determined
Contribution
$

642
605
558
570
543
477

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)
$

Covered
Payroll
-

$

2,938
2,798
2,604
2,644
2,424
2,404

Contributions as a
Percentage of
Covered Payroll
21.9%
21.6%
21.4%
21.6%
22.4%
19.8%

The Airport is a member of the Barnstable County Contributory Retirement System. Stand-alone audited financial
statements may be obtained by contacting the Barnstable County Contributory Retirement System at 750 Attucks
Lane, Hyannis, MA 02601.
These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years. However, until a full
ten-year trend is completed, information is presented for those years in which information is available.
See accompanying independent auditors' report.

ANDERSON & KREIGER DRAFT 2.8.21
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL
ARTICLE XX
To see if the Town will vote to amend Chapter 58-3 of the Code of the Town of Nantucket as
follows, or to take any other action related thereto:
1. Replace Section 58-3.B with the following:
The total number of motor vehicles available for lease on the island of Nantucket
shall not exceed 700. The Select Board shall issue each rental agency the number of
rental vehicle medallions (RVMs) the rental agency states it intends to rent in the
Town during that year in the rental agency’s annual license application. No rental
agency shall be issued more than ___ RVMs per year, provided that
1. if the number of RVMs requested by April 1 of any year exceeds 700, the Select
Board may reduce the number of RVMs provided to each requesting rental
agency by a pro-rata amount; and
2. if the number of RVMs requested as of June 1 is below 700, the Select Board may
on or after that date issue any rental agency that has received __ RVMs an
additional number of RVMs upon a showing that the rental agency in fact intends
to rent an additional number of vehicles in the Town during that year.
Each RVM constitutes the right to lease one motor vehicle for one year. An RVM
shall be non-transferable. All RVMs issued prior to January 1, 2021 shall expire on
December 31, 2021 and shall be non-transferable thereafter.
2. Delete Section 58-3.D.
VOTERS’ GUIDE
This Article would amend the Town’s Car Rental Bylaw to address concerns regarding the
existing cap on the number of rental cars in the Town. The cap was implemented in 1996, and
all of the rental vehicle medallions have previously been issued, although not all are used. This
prevents competition by new entrants into the rental car market, especially at the airport. Under
this article, the cap would remain in place, but rental car medallions would expire annually, and
companies would not be granted more than __ medallions. In addition, RVMs would no longer
be transferable, limiting the incentive for car rental agencies to hold onto licenses without using
them in order to limit competitors from accessing them.

Nantucket Memorial Airport

Monthly Statistical Report

(December 2020)

Nantucket Memorial Airport

Operations FY2020 - FY2021
CY 2020

CY2021

JUL
Air Carrier

AUG

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

JAN

315

291

139

34

22

22

Air Taxi

4,369

4,889

4,635

3,412

1,905

1,384

General Aviation

3,241

3,765

3,223

2,215

1,378

858

36

15

34

29

28

42

7,961

8,960

8,031

5,690

3,333

2,306

Civil

36

36

8

18

20

59

Military

2

5

0

6

3

3

Local

38

41

8

24

23

62

Operations

7,999

9,001

8,039

5,714

3,356

2,368

% Change

-44.31%

-37.35%

-18.22%

7.65%

-22.37%

-42.65%

Military
Intinerant

FEB

MAR

APR

MAY

December 2020 – December 2021 Down – 42.65%
YTD Down -30.28%

Operations FY2017
Operations FY2018
Operations FY2019
Operations FY2020
Operations FY2021

JUL

AUG

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

TOTAL

16,538

15,647

11,562

8,426

6,876

6,756

65,805

14,530

14,843

8,418

7,748

6,771

6,324

58,634

11,692

11,975

8,013

5,230

3,840

3,065

43,815

14,364

14,367

9,830

5,308

4,323

4,129

52,321

7,999

9,001

8,039

5,714

3,356

2,368

36,477

% Change

-10.90%
-25.27%
19.41%
-30.28%

JUN

TOTAL

Nantucket Memorial Airport

Operations FY 2015-2018
18,000
16,000
14,000

Operations

12,000
10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000
0

JUL

AUG

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

JAN

FEB

MAR

APR

MAY

JUN

Operations FY2017

16,538

15,647

11,562

8,426

6,876

6,756

5,061

4,630

4,996

5,312

8,219

10,890

Operations FY2018

14,530

14,843

8,418

7,748

6,771

6,324

3,933

2,664

2,462

3,490

5,822

8,695

Operations FY2019

11,692

11,975

8,013

5,230

3,840

3,065

2,597

2,169

2,655

3,473

5,955

9,153

Operations FY 2020

14,364

14,367

9,830

5,308

4,323

4,129

2,976

2,769

2,404

1,376

1,825

3,729

Operations FY 2021

7,999

9,001

8,039

5,714

3,356

2,368

Nantucket Memorial Airport
December 2020 SW Ramp Operations

Nantucket Memorial Airport

Passenger Enplanements FY2020 - FY2021
FY2021

AIRLINE

JUL

AUG

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

1,838

2,200

2,525

2,495

1,446

1,160

United Airlines

346

513

88

CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED

947

Delta Airlines

477

548

148

CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED

1,173

JetBlue Airways

2,316

2,910

1,915

733

321

238

Tradewind Aviation

1,256

1,581

1,149

560

252

96

AMERICAN

3,723

3,709

1,013 CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED

283

295

553

290

137

Monthly Total

10,239

11,756

7,391

4,078

2,156

% Change Prior Year

-68.98% -67.41% -59.00% -38.80% -23.14% -49.73%

Cape Air / Nantucket Air

Southern Airways

JAN

FEB

MAR

APR

MAY

Enplanements FY 2017
Enplanements FY 2018
Enplanements FY 2019
Enplanements FY 2020
Enplanements FY 2021

AUG
30,830
29,375
32,112

CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED

8,433
4,894

CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED CLOSED

33,012
11,236

SEP

TOTAL
11,664

1,494

OCT

8,445
41
37,114

December 2020 – December 2021 Down -49.73%
YTD Down -59.57%

JUL
29,787
28,582
30,511

JUN

NOV

DEC

TOTAL

16,542

7,899

3,358

2,959

91,375

14,856

7,902

3,764

3,512

87,991

17,291

7,248

3,188

2,944

93,294

36,074

18,029

6,663

2,805

2,972

99,555

12,862

8,424

4,078

2,156

1,494

40,250

%
Change

-3.70%
6.03%
6.71%
-59.57%

Nantucket Memorial Airport

Passenger Enplanements
2017-2021
40,000
35,000

Passengers

30,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000
5,000
0

JUL

AUG

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

JAN

FEB

MAR

APR

MAY

JUN

Enplanements FY 2017

29,787

30,830

16,542

7,899

3,358

2,959

2,501

2,480

3,260

3,196

6,785

14,724

Enplanements FY 2018

28,582

29,375

14,856

7,902

3,764

3,512

3,202

2,353

2,646

3,526

7,329

16,792

Enplanements FY 2019

30,511

32,112

17,291

7,248

3,188

2,944

2,421

2,006

2,474

2,871

7,138

17,529

Enplanements FY 2020

33,012

36,074

18,029

6,663

2,805

2,972

1,852

1,673

347

177

770

2,895

Enplanements FY 2021

11,236

12,862

8,424

4,078

2,156

1,494

Nantucket Memorial Airport

Operations /Enplanements

AIRLINE
Cape Air / Ack Air
United Airlines
Delta Airlines
JetBlue Airways
Tradewind Aviation
Rectrix Airlines
USAirways (AMERICAN)
Southern Airways
Monthly Total

FY DEC 2020
569
CLOSED
CLOSED

OPERATIONS

FY DEC 2021
351

CLOSED
CLOSED

0

11

67

35

CLOSED
CLOSED
CLOSED
636

CLOSED
CLOSED
CLOSED
397

% Diff.
-38%
CLOSED
CLOSED
-48%
CLOSED
CLOSED
CLOSED
-38%

ENPLANEMENTS

FY 20
2,716
CLOSED
CLOSED

FY 21

CLOSED
CLOSED

1,160

0

238

256

96

CLOSED
CLOSED
CLOSED
2,972

CLOSED
CLOSED
CLOSED
1,494

% Diff.
-57%
CLOSED
CLOSED
-63%
CLOSED
CLOSED
CLOSED
-50%

Nantucket Memorial Airport
Cape Air/ACK Air Average Load Factor ACK-BOS

Nantucket Memorial Airport Total Passenger Enplanements
CAPE AIR/ACK Air
9 Seats (BOSTON)
2020

January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

Enplanements
833
745
430
58
212
812
1337
1579
2020
1200
566
508

# of flights
224
206
154
55
128
248
294
300
368
229
139
97

Average # of
Pax per flight
3.72
3.62
2.79
1.05
1.66
3.27
4.55
5.26
5.49
5.24
4.07
5.24

2019
Capacity
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9

Average Load
Factor %
41%
40%
31%
12%
18%
36%
51%
58%
61%
58%
45%
58%

Enlpanement
Change %
3%
-9%
-52%
-95%
-91%
-75%
-64%
-53%
-54%
-37%
-53%
-67%

Enplaned
811
820
903
1160
2335
3200
3704
3371
4425
1915
1208
1536

Deplaned
827
737
1034
1302
2472
3348
3557
3655
4165
1780
1440
1417

Nantucket Memorial Airport
Cape Air/ACK Air Average Load Factor ACK-EWB

Nantucket Memorial Airport Total Passenger Enplanements CAPE AIR/ACK AIR Air 9 Seats
(EWB)
2020
2019
Average # of
Average Load Enplanement
Enplanements # of flights Pax per flight Capacity
Factor %
Change % Enplaned Deplaned
January
108
28
3.86
9
43%
-54%
233
230
February
69
24
2.88
9
32%
-53%
147
145
March
34
18
1.89
9
21%
-76%
143
149
April
5
12
0.42
9
5%
-97%
172
168
May
46
20
2.30
9
26%
-81%
242
222
June
115
31
3.71
9
41%
-66%
335
403
July
274
64
4.28
9
48%
-64%
756
740
August
240
52
4.62
9
51%
-69%
771
834
September
229
47
4.87
9
54%
-54%
501
488
October
134
38
3.53
9
39%
-53%
286
263
November
54
19
2.84
9
32%
-74%
205
198
December
56
17
3.29
9
37%
-58%
133
145

Nantucket Memorial Airport
Cape/ACK Air Average Load Factor ACK-HYA

Nantucket Memorial Airport Total Passenger Enplanements CAPE AIR/ACK Air 9 Seats (HYA)
2020

January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

Enplanements
2
99
68
21
112
115
11
32
27
808
644
506

Average # of
Average Load
# of flights Pax per flight Capacity
Factor %
9
0.22
9
2%
27
3.67
9
41%
15
4.53
9
50%
22
0.95
9
11%
58
1.93
9
21%
61
1.89
9
21%
48
0.23
9
3%
47
0.68
9
8%
61
0.44
9
5%
251
3.22
9
36%
189
3.41
9
38%
181
2.80
9
31%

2019
Enplanement
Change %
-95%
1314%
1260%
950%
559%
785%
-21%
39%
125%
2%
-8%
-43%

Enplaned
38
7
5
2
17
13
14
23
12
791
697
895

Deplaned
7
3
5
0
14
1
9
0
7
678
614
731

Nantucket Memorial Airport
Jet Blue Average and Cape Air Average Load Factor ACK-JFK
Nantucket Memorial Airport Total Passenger EnplanementsJET BLUE 100 SEATS (JFK)
Enplanements

# of flights

2020
Average # of Pax
per flight

January

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

February

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

March

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

April

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

May

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

June

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

CLOSED

July

1166

31

37.61

100

38%

-82%

6585

7434

August

1471

30

49.03

100

49%

-81%

7707

8247

September

1570

34

46.18

100

46%

-70%

5200

3747

October

733

17

43.12

100

43%

0%

0

0

November

December

2019

Capacity

Average Load Factor
%

Enplanement
Change %

Enplaned

Deplaned

321

11

29.18

100

29%

0%

0

0

238

11

21.64

100

22%

0%

0

0

Nantucket Memorial Airport Total Passenger Enplanements CAPE AIR/ACK Air
2020
Average # of Pax
per flight

Capacity

Average Load Factor
%

9 Seats (JFK)

2019

Enplanement
Change %

Enplaned

Enplanements

# of flights

January

18

4

4.50

9

50%

-80%

92

92

February

0

0

#DIV/0!

9

#DIV/0!

-100%

89

100

March

0

0

#DIV/0!

9

#DIV/0!

-100%

97

138

April

0

0

#DIV/0!

9

#DIV/0!

-100%

135

125

Deplaned

May

12

8

1.50

9

17%

-85%

80

82

June

114

29

3.93

9

44%

#DIV/0!

0

0

July

106

26

4.08

9

45%

#DIV/0!

0

0

August

162

30

0.00

9

0%

#DIV/0!

0

0

September

154

28

5.50

9

61%

214%

49

65

October

190

40

4.75

9

53%

25%

152

133

November

78

26

3.00

9

33%

-37%

123

161

December

14

5

2.80

9

31%

-90%

146

128

Nantucket Memorial Airport

JFK Market

JFK

JetBlue
Cape

Dec
2019
0
146

Dec
2020
238
14

Change

% Chnge

238
-132

-90%

146

252

106

73%

Nantucket Memorial Airport
Cape Air/ACK Air Average Load Factor ACK-MVY

Nantucket Memorial Airport Total Passenger Enplanements
CAPE AIR/ACK Air 9 Seats (MVY)

January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

2020
Average # of
Enplanements # of flights Pax per flight
102
30
3.40
102
33
3.09
54
28
1.93
3
2
1.50
10
3
3.33
26
9
2.89
30
8
3.75
28
7
4.00
18
6
3.00
109
39
2.79
114
55
2.07
76
51
1.49

2019
Average Load Enplanement
Capacity
Factor %
Change % Enplaned Deplaned
9
38%
264%
28
25
9
34%
827%
11
6
9
21%
0%
54
95
9
17%
-89%
27
21
9
37%
-66%
29
25
9
32%
-13%
30
152
9
42%
-59%
73
139
9
44%
-39%
46
136
9
33%
-54%
39
218
9
31%
211%
35
177
9
23%
714%
14
23
9
17%
1167%
6
12

Nantucket Memorial Airport

July

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

June

Total

FY17402,398.0

341,424.0

145,201.0 52,648.0

19,657.0

25,742

3,535.0

7,751.0

6,339.0

25,649.0

80,204.4

199,254.0

1,309,802.4

FY 18384,477.0

359,991.0

156,476.0 68,930.0

37,252.0

28,032

5,751.0

9,210.0

8,783.0

32,660.0

72,878.0

197,662.0

1,362,102.0

FY19375,956.0

430,235.0

201,124.0 66,758.0

43,835.0

23,409

7,878.0

12,091.0

7,721.0

27,197.0

68,438.0

219,951.0

1,484,593.0

FY 20407,550.0

435,334.0

200,320.0 75,088.0

27,165.0

40,429

8,916.0

6,802.0

11,897.0

6,451.0

28,600.0

157,699.0

1,406,251.0

FY 21349,605.0

345,669.0

201,165.0 132,177.0

43,409.0

25,880

-14.22%

-20.60%

0.42%

76.03%

59.80%

1,097,905.0

-35.99%

December 2020 – December 2021 Down – 35.99%
YTD Down -7.42%

2017 Jet A
2018Jet A
2019Jet A
2020 Jet A
2021 Jet A

July

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

402,398.00

341,424.00

145,201.0

52,648.0

19,657.0

Dec
25,742

YTD Total % Change
987,070.00

384,477.00

359,991.00

156,476.0

68,930.0

37,252.0

28,032

1,035,158.00

375,956.00

430,235.00

201,124.0

66,758.0

43,835.0

23,409

1,141,317.00

407,550.00

435,334.00

200,320.0

75,088.0

27,165.0

40,429

1,185,886.00

349,605.00

345,669.00

201,165.0

132,177.0

43,409.0

25,880

1,097,905.00

4.87%
10.26%
14.56%
-7.42%

Nantucket Memorial Airport

500,000.0

Monthly Jet A Gallons Sold
Per Fiscal Year

450,000.0
400,000.0
350,000.0

Gallons

300,000.0
250,000.0
200,000.0
150,000.0
100,000.0
50,000.0
-

July

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

June

FY17

402,398.0

341,424.0

145,201.0

52,648.0

19,657.0

25,742

3,535.0

7,751.0

6,339.0

25,649.0

80,204.4

199,254.0

FY 18

384,477.0

359,991.0

156,476.0

68,930.0

37,252.0

28,032

5,751.0

9,210.0

8,783.0

32,660.0

72,878.0

197,662.0

FY19

375,956.0

430,235.0

201,124.0

66,758.0

43,835.0

23,409

7,878.0

12,091.0

7,721.0

27,197.0

68,438.0

219,951.0

FY 20

407,550.0

435,334.0

200,320.0

75,088.0

27,165.0

40,429

8,916.0

6,802.0

11,897.0

6,451.0

28,600.0

157,699.0

FY 21

349,605.0

345,669.0

201,165.0

132,177.0

43,409.0

25,880

Nantucket Memorial Airport

January vs. January UP 84.42%
Jet A
July

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

June

Total

FY17402,398.0

341,424.0

145,201.0 52,648.0

19,657.0

25,742

3,535.0

7,751.0

6,339.0

25,649.0

80,204.4

199,254.0

1,309,802.4

FY 18384,477.0

359,991.0

156,476.0 68,930.0

37,252.0

28,032

5,751.0

9,210.0

8,783.0

32,660.0

72,878.0

197,662.0

1,362,102.0

FY19375,956.0

430,235.0

201,124.0 66,758.0

43,835.0

23,409

7,878.0

12,091.0

7,721.0

27,197.0

68,438.0

219,951.0

1,484,593.0

FY 20407,550.0

435,334.0

200,320.0 75,088.0

27,165.0

40,429

8,916.0

6,802.0

11,897.0

6,451.0

28,600.0

157,699.0

1,406,251.0

FY 21349,605.0

345,669.0

201,165.0 132,177.0

43,409.0

25,880

16,443.0

-14.22%

-20.60%

0.42%

76.03%

59.80%

500,000.0

-35.99%

1,114,348.0

84.42%

Monthly Jet A Gallons Sold
Per Fiscal Year

450,000.0
400,000.0

Gallons

350,000.0
300,000.0
250,000.0
200,000.0
150,000.0
100,000.0
50,000.0
-

July

Aug
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Nov
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Feb

Mar

Apr

May

June

FY17

402,398.0

341,424.0

145,201.0

52,648.0

19,657.0

25,742

3,535.0

7,751.0

6,339.0

25,649.0

80,204.4

199,254.0

FY 18

384,477.0

359,991.0

156,476.0

68,930.0

37,252.0

28,032

5,751.0

9,210.0

8,783.0

32,660.0

72,878.0

197,662.0

FY19

375,956.0

430,235.0

201,124.0

66,758.0

43,835.0

23,409

7,878.0

12,091.0

7,721.0

27,197.0

68,438.0

219,951.0

FY 20

407,550.0

435,334.0

200,320.0

75,088.0

27,165.0

40,429

8,916.0

6,802.0

11,897.0

6,451.0

28,600.0

157,699.0

FY 21

349,605.0

345,669.0

201,165.0

132,177.0

43,409.0

25,880

16,443.0

Nantucket Memorial Airport

AvGas (100LL) Gallons Sold FY2017 - FY2021
July

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

FY 2017

26,296.7

25,032.4

16,766.8

11,119.6

5,527.0

FY 2018

19,705.4

21,362.2

13,381.8

9,774.9

FY 2019

21,609.2

24,059.7

14,611.3

FY 2020

21,303.1

21,364.0

FY 2021

13,952.0
-34.51%

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

5,334.0

3,167.0

2,750.0

3,111.5

5,176.0

5,313.5

4,070.0

2,982.8

2,939.1

3,998.1

10,169.6

7,483.1

6,141.3

4,988.9

3,441.8

15,548.0

8,914.0

8,057.0

7,508.0

4,705.0

4,998.0

16,684.0

14,731.0

9,498.0

6,402.0

4,648.0

-21.91%

-5.25%

6.55%

-20.54%

-38.09%

May

June

Total

10,535.5

13,789.4

128,605.9

6,661.6

11,402.3

15,457.7

117,049.4

5,691.2

6,532.1

11,433.0

15,636.7

131,797.9

3,820.0

4,075.0

2,734.0

8,431.0

111,457.1
65,915.0

December 2020 – December 2021 Down -38.09%
YTD Down -20.29%

2017 AvGas
2018 AvGas
2019 AvGas
2020 AvGas
2021 AvGas

July
26,296.70
19,705.40
21,609.20
21,303.10
13,952.00

Aug
25,032.40
21,362.20
24,059.70
21,364.00
16,684.00

Sep
16,766.8
13,381.8
14,611.3
15,548.0
14,731.0

Oct
11,119.6
9,774.9
10,169.6
8,914.0
9,498.0

Nov
5,527.0
5,313.5
7,483.1
8,057.0
6,402.0

Dec
YTD TOTAL % Change
5,334.0 90,076.50
4,070.0 73,607.80
-18.28%
6,141.3 84,074.20
14.22%
7,508.0 82,694.10
-1.64%
4,648.0 65,915.00
-20.29%

Nantucket Memorial Airport

30,000.0

Monthly 100LL Gallons Sold
Per Fiscal Year

25,000.0
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FY 2017

26,296.7

25,032.4

16,766.8

11,119.6

5,527.0

5,334.0

3,167.0

2,750.0

3,111.5

5,176.0

10,535.5

13,789.4

FY 2018

19,705.4

21,362.2

13,381.8

9,774.9

5,313.5

4,070.0

2,982.8

2,939.1

3,998.1

6,661.6

11,402.3

15,457.7

FY 2019

21,609.2

24,059.7

14,611.3

10,169.6

7,483.1

6,141.3

4,988.9

3,441.8

5,691.2

6,532.1

11,433.0

15,636.7

FY 2020

21,303.1

21,364.0

15,548.0

8,914.0

8,057.0

7,508.0

4,705.0

4,998.0

3,820.0

4,075.0

2,734.0

8,431.0

FY 2021

13,952.0

16,684.0

14,731.0

9,498.0

6,402.0

4,648.0

Nantucket Memorial Airport

January vs. January UP 0.15%
AVGAS 100LL
July

Aug

Sep

Oct

Jan

Feb

Mar

FY 2017

26,296.7

25,032.4

16,766.8

11,119.6

5,527.0

5,334.0

3,167.0

2,750.0

3,111.5

5,176.0

FY 2018

19,705.4

21,362.2

13,381.8

9,774.9

5,313.5

4,070.0

2,982.8

2,939.1

3,998.1

FY 2019

21,609.2

24,059.7

14,611.3

10,169.6

7,483.1

6,141.3

4,988.9

3,441.8

FY 2020

21,303.1

21,364.0

15,548.0

8,914.0

8,057.0

7,508.0

4,705.0

4,998.0

FY 2021

13,952.0

16,684.0

14,731.0

9,498.0

6,402.0

4,648.0

4,712.0

-34.51%

-21.91%

6.55%

-20.54%

-38.09%

0.15%

-5.25%

Nov

30,000.0

Dec

Apr

May

June

Total

10,535.5

13,789.4

128,605.9

6,661.6

11,402.3

15,457.7

117,049.4

5,691.2

6,532.1

11,433.0

15,636.7

131,797.9

3,820.0

4,075.0

2,734.0

8,431.0

111,457.1
70,627.0

Monthly 100LL Gallons Sold
Per Fiscal Year

25,000.0

Gallons

20,000.0
15,000.0
10,000.0
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-
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Aug

Sep
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Nov

Dec
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Feb
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Apr
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June

FY 2017

26,296.7

25,032.4

16,766.8

11,119.6

5,527.0

5,334.0

3,167.0

2,750.0

3,111.5

5,176.0

10,535.5

13,789.4

FY 2018

19,705.4

21,362.2

13,381.8

9,774.9

5,313.5

4,070.0

2,982.8

2,939.1

3,998.1

6,661.6

11,402.3

15,457.7

FY 2019

21,609.2

24,059.7

14,611.3

10,169.6

7,483.1

6,141.3

4,988.9

3,441.8

5,691.2

6,532.1

11,433.0

15,636.7

FY 2020

21,303.1

21,364.0

15,548.0

8,914.0

8,057.0

7,508.0

4,705.0

4,998.0

3,820.0

4,075.0

2,734.0

8,431.0

FY 2021

13,952.0

16,684.0

14,731.0

9,498.0

6,402.0

4,648.0

4,712.0

Nantucket Memorial Airport

- CY 2020 monthly freight 2020

FY21

FY20

AIRLINE

JUL

AUG

Cape Air (KAP)

110,782

100,581

84,444

Wiggins-FedEx

119,676

86,720

13,329

Wiggins-UPS
Allies Air Freight
Monthly Total
% Change Prior Year

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

JAN

FEB

MAR

APR

82,391

106,406

117,738

40,542

30,491

37,151

46,730

62,151

53,249

44,608

51,288

22,895

21,274

32,468

7,695

6,139

16,164

14,204

10,977

9,008

5,878

CLOSED CLOSED

CLOSED

ClOSED CLOSED

CLOSED

6,533

JUN

TOTAL

56,661

71,470

885,387

35,070

51,564

86,602

667,565

14,187

13,906

17,470

7,549

136,506

5,572

4,794

CLOSED

CLOSED CLOSED

16,899

125,695 165,621

1,706,357

243,787

194,996

152,734

151,804

165,218

180,003

78,978

63,215

88,600

95,706

8.31%

-2.82%

13.19%

19.11%

61.89%

71.60%

-4.37%

-14.06%

-2.97%

-34.30%

MAY

-30.78%

-23.17%

December 2019 – December 2020 UP 71.60%
YTD UP 21.61%

Freight
FY 2017
FY 2018
FY 2019
FY 2020
FY 2021

July
200,823.0
204,698.0
214,878.0
225,081.0
243,787.0

Aug
190,768.0
197,802.0
202,628.0
200,652.0
194,996.0

Sep
131,947.0
124,036.0
140,118.0
134,935.0
152,734.0

Oct
96,783.0
104,165.0
123,490.0
127,453.0
151,804.0

Nov
70,228.0
113,084.0
115,382.0
102,056.0
165,218.0

Dec
106,220.0
120,250.0
101,381.0
104,898.0
180,003.0

Total
796,769.0
864,035.0
897,877.0
895,075.0
1,088,542.0

% Change
8.44%
3.92%
-0.31%
21.61%

Nantucket Memorial Airport

December 2020 Monthly Freight

Dec-19

Dec-20

Lbs Inc/(Dec)
over PY

% Inc/(Dec)
over PY

Cape Air Freight

3,542

59,913

56,371

1592%

USPS (Cape Air)

55,394

57,825

2,431

4%

Fed Ex (Wiggins)

33,286

51,288

18,002

54%

UPS (Wiggins)

6,908

10,977

4,069

59%

Allies Air Freight

5,768

-

(5,768)

-100%

Nantucket Memorial Airport

December 2020 Noise Complaints

July

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

June

Total

FY 2017 Calls

25

19

14

2

0

4

1

0

0

1

7

18

91

FY 2018 Calls

25

50

4

1

0

1

0

0

0

1

1

17

100

FY 2019 Calls

59

21

3

1

1

0

2

1

0

0

5

9

102

FY 2020 Calls

57

38

7

0

2

0

1

0

0

0

0

12

117

FY 2021 Calls

44

27

28

12

0

1

112

Nantucket Memorial Airport

December Noise Complaint Summary:
December 2020 – 1 Noise Complaint
1 complaint was received from 1 resident. Upon investigation it was determined that the
complaint originated from an IFR flight. No response was requested by complainant.

Nantucket Memorial Airport

Town of Nantucket

NANTUCKET MEMORIAL AIRPORT
14 Airport Road
Nantucket Island, Massachusetts 02554
Thomas M. Rafter, Airport Manager
Phone: (508) 325-5300
Fax: (508) 325-5306

Commissioners
Daniel W. Drake, Chairman
Arthur D. Gasbarro, Vice Chair
Anthony G. Bouscaren
Andrea N. Planzer
Jeanette D. Topham

February 9, 2021

Mr. Carlton Braley, A.A.E.
President/NEC
230 Washington Ave Extension
Suite 101
Albany, NY 12203
Dear Mr. Braley,

It is my pleasure to submit this letter of support for our Airport Manager, Tom
Rafter, in his quest for the position of Secretary/Treasurer of the AAAE. At our
meeting of February 9, 2021, the Airport commissioners agreed to support Mr.
Rafter and his attendance at the three AAAE annual Board of Directors meetings for
this position.

Mr. Rafter has demonstrated a passion and willingness to be active on a national
level in the aviation industry. His knowledge and experience have benefited the
Nantucket Memorial Airport greatly, and I am confident that his attributes would be
an asset to the AAAE.

If you have any questions, or need additional information, I would be glad to discuss
how I believe Mr. Rafter would benefit your organization. I can be contacted at
(508) 325-5300.
Sincerely,

Dan Drake, Chairman
Nantucket Memorial Airport Commission

